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ZHANG JIANHONG Chairman
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In 2019, the global economic situation remained grim.
International trade conflicts and other factors further affected
the economic development, while market demand could not be
released and economic growth generally slowed down. Under
such an environment, China's economy was also affected by the
global economy. Growth in the manufacturing industry of China
was at a slow mode and enterprises were under great pressure.
In an environment where domestic and overseas economic
conditions not being optimistic, the fluorosilicic industry has
also been impacted to a certain extent for the downstream
demand was low and the product price was falling. However,
amid the challenges under the critical domestic and foreign
economic condition, with its excellent profitability, operation and
management, the Group managed to stabilize production and
boost the sales, maintaining its leading position in the industry
while earning steady revenue.
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Business Review

1.

Maintained high profitability in face of market
pressure

During the year, the industry was affected by the major
environment with a sluggish demand and a decline in product
price. However, by leveraging its advantages of top-notch
technology, complete industry chain, integrated economy of
the park, excellent production and sales management, good
reputation and stable customer base, as well as the efforts from
the management and employees at all levels, the Group overcame
various pressure and recorded a total revenue of approximately
RMB12,958,692,000; our gross margin was 26.59% and our net
profit amounted to approximately RMB1,742,281,000.
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Successful spin-off listing of organic silicone
company

The Group overcame difficulties from various aspects in nearly
two years and achieved a key result in the spin-off listing of
Shandong Dongyue Organosilicone Materials Co., Ltd (“Dongyue
Organosilicone”), a subsidiary of the Group which was successfully
listed on ChiNext of the Shenzhen Stock Exchange on 12 March
2020. The spin-off listing of Dongyue Organosilicone is expected
to broaden the financing channels of the Group and enhance its
growth potential, accelerate the development of the business
of Dongyue Organosilicone and enhance its competitiveness
and industry status, increase the investment in technology and
environmental protection, improve profitability and create value
for the Group's shareholders.

The Group and its subsidiaries showered with
honors

The celebration of the 70th anniversary of the founding of New China
has attracted worldwide attention. As an excellent builder of socialism
with Chinese characteristics and a contributor to science and
technology, Mr. Zhang Jianhong, Chairman of the Board of the Group,
has been invited to participate in a series of activities to celebrate the
National Day. This special honor demonstrates the contribution to
the society and social status of the Group and Mr. Zhang. Shandong
Dongyue Polymers Co., Ltd. (LR EE =D FHMEBR A A)
("Dongyue Polymers”) , a subsidiary of the Group, was awarded the
title of Single Champion of Manufacturing Industry (23& % B IBH &
TRNEBE) from the Ministry of Industry and Information Technology
in 2019, which indicates that the technology and scale of the
fluoropolymer materials represented by PTFE in Dongyue Polymers
are in a leading position in the industry. Meanwhile, Shandong Huaxia
Shenzhou New Materials Co., Ltd. (IUBRZEE#AFTMEHR A
&) (“Shenzhou”) also successfully passed the Tst batch of review of
the Single Champion Demonstration Enterprise of Manufacturing
Industry. Shandong Dongyue Union Property Co, Ltd. (LLI5R 5R S H 3B
BEAR A (“Dongyue Union Property”), a controlling subsidiary
of the Group, was promoted from Level 3 to Level 2 development
qualification, which reflected the substantial improvement of the
Company’s comprehensive strength in technology, construction,
management, service and operation.
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Significant increase in research and development
expenses laid a solid foundation for future
development

In a period of industry downturn, research and development could
lay a good foundation for future development. During the year,
the research and development expenses of the Group increased
substantially to approximately RMB330 million, representing a
year-on-year increase of 85.63%. The Group submitted 84 patents
applications, and was granted approval of 20 patents during the
year. The Group won 8 national and provincial patent awards, with
one of the patents winning the National Patent Golden Award.
During the year, the Group had a total of 41 large-scale projects
on new product, production expansion, technical improvement,
environmental protection and automation enhancement. These
projects have been able to propel the development of new
products and the improvement of production technology. Among
which, “lon Exchange Membrane with High Current Efficiency and
its Preparation Method and Application” successfully passed the
assessment of China Membrane Industry Association and won the
Patent Golden Award. The new generation of chlorine alkali ion
membrane DF2807 successfully started commissioning activities
in the Shanghai chlorine and chlorine engineering electrolyzer,
which opened a new era of high-quality market application of
Dongyue chlorinium membrane. The Group stepped up its efforts
in pushing forward the “621" Taishan Climbing Plan. Through the
concerted efforts of functional departments and R&D departments,
significant progress has been made. Beijing, Shanghai, Shenzhen,
as well as Japan and Canada R&D centers have all been in
operation. The Group also established 16 joint laboratories with
universities and research institutes, and carried out 46 cooperative
projects. Together with the integration of 215 various high-end
talents in the industry, the Group has initially formed a new type
of scientific research mechanism and system focusing on the
frontier, internal and external collaboration and division of labor
and integration.
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Exploring ways to saving resources and saving
cost to increase efficiency

In response to the industry downturn, the Group exercised
accurate management and control in all aspects, implemented
all tasks in strict accordance with the management system of
the Company, managed and controlled expenses of all aspects
and reduced unnecessary cost and saved expenses. As such,
the administrative expenses was approximately RMB666 million,
representing a year-on-year decrease of 14.96%. Meanwhile,
through technological transformation and enhancement
of process, the consumption of major raw material and the
comprehensive energy consumption were further reduced,
enhancing the production efficiency and saving the cost of the
Group.

In addition, the supplier management of the Group further
optimized the supplier structure, revised the rules of bidding
and tendering, and strengthened control of the procurement
procedure. The expenditure on procurement of the same amount
of major raw material substantially decreased, offsetting the
impact brought by the decline in market price of the product on
the profit in an effective manner.
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Stable production and ramping up sales efforts

Facing the downward pressure of the industry, the Group
managed to maintain its leading position in the industry through
stable production and ramping up sales efforts. During the
year, the Group continued to pay close attention to safety and
environmental protection production, which provided a guarantee
for the stable production of the Group. At the same time, the
Group further improved its production technology, and certain
subsidiaries achieved “black screen operation”, that is, long-term
operation without abnormality, and maintenance and vehicle
breakdown were significantly reduced. In terms of sales, the
Group has successfully seized customers and stabilized its market
share by virtue of its high-quality products, excellent services and
outstanding reputation. During the year, the Group organized the
annual meeting of industrial chain cooperation between domestic
and foreign customers, where the Group presented its in-depth
analysis of international trade friction, hydrogen energy, 5G and
other economic hotspots, upgraded customer service in 2020,
and enhanced customers’ determination and confidence in the
strategic cooperation with the Group, promoting the market and
social brand image of the Group.

Dongyue Group Limited Annual Report 2019 07
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New achievements in automation and
informatization

During the year, the Group further improved its automation
system, thus manual operation rate decreased substantially.
The abnormal operation period of devices as well as the
abnormal vehicle breakdown and impacts on production
caused by malfunction have also reduced significantly.
Informatized management for unattended weighbridge and
hazardous chemicals vehicles was put into operation, enhancing
measurement efficiency and lowering transportation risks. Besides,
the Group launched the CRM system, integrated information
resources such as SAP and OA, and established a market
information system.

Recognized as high and new technology enterprise

During the year, Shandong Dongyue Chemicals Co., Limited
("Dongyue Chemicals”), a subsidiary of the Group, obtained the
high and new technology enterprise recognition from the Ministry
of Science and Technology and became the fourth high and new
technology enterprise of the Group. This achievement not only
allows Dongyue Chemicals to apply for tax incentives to increase
profit, but also marks a progress of the Group in its march toward
to goal of technological transformation.
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Prospect

2020 is expected to be a year of uncertainty. To cope with the
challenges in 2020, the Group will adopt the following measures:

1. Market-oriented operation and management

In 2020, amid an uncertain market environment, the Group
will continue its market-oriented operation and management
approach, and will put the emphasis on customer satisfaction,
creating a distinct marketing culture in which the sales staff give
full attention to the customers across the whole sales process,
clear all stocks every day, and align their individual goal with
the sales target. To cater for customer needs, the Group will also
undergo project upgrades, improving the production process
according to customer needs and further developing middle to
high end products. In addition, the Group will further control the
sales process and lower the cost of sales.

2. Strengthen research and development and ensure
a sustainable development

The Group's management has always attached great importance
to independent research and development, and considers it as
the foundation for a sustainable development of the Company.
Therefore, the Group has been able to sustain a relatively high
competitive advantage in the industry for a long period of time.
In 2020, the Group will establish a research and development
technology directing management system which will lead
various research and development branches and promote the
implementation of the development strategy of the Company.
The Group will also establish an innovative research and
development system, and create a good culture, environment
and ideal conditions for a long-lasting support to the system. The
Group will adopt a market-oriented approach to promote the
implementation of new products and new applications from the
Research Institute and various companies to cater for the market
demand, contributing new growth and profit to the Group.

Dongyue Group Limited Annual Report 2019 09



ERRESE
CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT

FRAERARSHFED

EMISEMER TRAOBRT @ AEEKE
—BRREN RIS TISHF ] © 20206 -
REBELEEHEBARKEYFE - 55 -
HEBERANMRDNEAAEDY @ URELEEK
Koo ZH - REBEEKE P BLRER
B BRIERMEBRA -

RS REREE

2020%F - AEEMIEEETRIERARER
SEHEERNEMN - 5L AKEKMLT
ZERFREBRRZSRELE - GERELE
CEREHE  ARE(CRERABELRRZR
RXEMET - KTMRERENLE - £
— o AEEBMERENT  RYE - &
BEY® - HMESERNVRBEGCHEE
MRS HREREE  ERBERARF
BRE -F= AKREHESMHAEREE
RATEEREN OB ERARBEFEXFTRITE
MER EEREGESHR  MEEH Y
FBERELEEYR - FW > AEBEEM
FERRER  BEADSBHLEE N
8 WIRFETT - BIRTELE - HRER
R - BREKTF - REEEKFMER
MK - Fh  AKREEBBFEEETT
B HE -# ¥ A ¥ DLRSE
RIBE - RABERE  BEoRkEERE

N RAKEREERREEM -

Reduce the cost to enhance competitiveness

Against a backdrop of product price decline in the market, the
Group will improve its competitiveness by further lowering the
cost. In 2020, the Group will concentrate reduction on resources
and energy consumption, maintenance expenses and procedural
costs in terms of production to lower the production cost. In
addition, the Group will further optimize its procurement process
and reduce the cost of raw material.

Raise various operation benchmarks

In 2020, the Group will focus on the standard management in
order to achieve high-quality development of the Company.
Firstly, the Group will put great efforts to compile with the
highest national standards and international advanced enterprise
standards for safety and environmental protection, and promote
the building of the safety and environmental protection culture
by enhancing standardization, so as to ensure stable production.
Secondly, the Group will carefully consider procurement and raise
the standards for the use of processing equipment, raw materials,
packaging materials and analytical instruments to benchmark
the international standards and adapt to the competitive
international environment. Thirdly, the Group will benchmark
the product standards, technical standards and the requirements
of outstanding enterprises exporting to developed countries,
and comprehensively benchmark the parameters of product
quality, impurity control, and resources and energy consumption.
Fourthly, the Group will raise the management standards by
linking to the labor productivity per capita, benchmarking against
peers, advanced enterprises, and the international standards of
informatization and intelligentization, and enhancing the standard
and efficiency of management. Fifthly, the Group will carry out
comprehensive auditing by raising the auditing standards of
production, supplies, sales, manpower, finance and materials,
improving the management standards, and enhancing the risk
management and control capacity to safeguard the steady
development of the Group.
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Enhance the efficiency of project construction
and deliver the project with quality and quantity
assurance

In recent years, the Group has concentrated on construction
projects, which is of historical significance and great importance
to the future development of the Group. In order to implement
the future development plans of the Group and promote
its development, we need to further enhance the efficiency
of project construction. For projects that are in construction
stage, standardized project management, promotion of project
construction in a rhythmic, disciplined and efficient manner, and
comprehensive assessments on quality, cost, safety, environmental
protection and project progress are required. The Group will
continue to adhere to the development concept of going green
and low-carbon, further enforce the construction of recycling
projects, including hazardous wastes, by-product hydrochloric
acids and reduction of sulfuric acid, and accelerate the project
completion such as production technology enhancement,
technological transformation, exploration of resources saving,
energy conservation and emission reduction.

Promote the further enhancement of
informatization and intelligentization

In recent years, the “Benchmarking Formosa Plastics” management
system of the Group has achieved initial results, with a significant
impact in aspects including cost and risk reduction, production
efficiency improvement and product quality guarantee. In
2020, the Group will further promote the enhancement of
intelligentization and informatization. The Group will realize
unmanned production equipment and promote “Predictive
maintenance techniques of Formosa” as a guarantee to maximize
production capacity. The Group will incorporate the informatized
big data into all aspects of production and operation, including
design, production, transportation, safety and environmental
protection, energy, market, finance and services to effectively
promote management efficiency. The Group will promote
precision marketing, intelligent production, smart services and
more to ultimately achieve network and visualized management
of services both inside and outside the Group.

Dongyue Group Limited Annual Report 2019 11
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7. Respond actively to the COVID-19 Pandemic

In early 2020, a sudden epidemic interrupted the normal life of
people around the world. In response to the outbreak of the novel
coronavirus ("Pandemic”), the management of the Group has
attached great importance to the situation, and the health of all
employees is of the utmost importance to the Group. Therefore,
in the early stage of the Pandemic, the Group immediately issued
instructions to strengthen the prevention and control, including
postponed the resumption of work for non-local employees
during the Spring Festival, allowed employees to work from home,
suspended employees to go on business trips, and other strict
measures on pandemic prevention. At the same time, in view of
the operation, the Group will carry out different measures such as
increase sales efforts, control operating costs, delay non-productive
expenses, speed up the collection of receivables, control the scale
of accounts receivable, and reduce financial expenses to lower
the impact caused by the Pandemic to the Group. Together we
stand to fight the virus. The Group actively donated to support
the “fight-virus” work to contribute to the people affected. The
development of the Pandemic is still uncertain, but the Group will
make full preparations to cope with the impact of the Pandemic.

The year of 2020 is destined to be a year of opportunities and
challenges. By such selections, the competitiveness of enterprises will
be displayed in times of difficulties. The Group has been developing
steadily in the fluorosilicone industry for 32 years. As a leading domestic
enterprise in the industry, the Group has advantages in many aspects,
such as scale, industrial chain, technical level and management
experience. The Group will make use of these advantages to operate
and develop with great effort in a stable manner, so as to create good
returns and repay shareholders for their long-term trust and support for
Dongyue.
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FINANCIAL REVIEW
Results Highlights

For the year ended 31 December 2019, the Group recorded revenue of
approximately RMB12,958,692,000, representing a decrease of 8.9% over
RMB14,218,937,000 in the previous year. The gross profit margin decrease
to 26.59% (2018: 31.87%) and the operating results margin was 17.50%
(2018: 23.50%). During the year under review, the Group recorded profit
before tax of approximately RMB2,120,300,000 (2018: profit before tax of
RMB3,234,899,000), and net profit of approximately RMB1,742,281,000 (2018:
2,434,699,000), while consolidated profit attributable to the Company’s
owners was approximately RMB1,462,974,000 (2018: RMB2,129,098,000).
Basic earnings per share was RMB0.70 (2018: basic earning of RMB1.00).

The Board recommended the payment of a final dividend of HK$0.23
(2018: HKS0.35) per share to the shareholders whose names appear on
the register of members of the Company on 18 June 2020.

Dongyue Group Limited Annual Report 2019 18
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Segment Revenue and Operating Results

Set out below is the comparison, by reportable and operating segments,
of the Group's revenue and results for the year ended 31 December 2019
and the year ended 31 December 2018:

BZ2019512831BLEE HE2018F 128318 ILEFE
For the year ended 31 December 2019 For the year ended 31 December 2018
¢ £ g S Y zs B =
Operating Operating
Reportable and Results Results
ERREE DT Operating Segments Revenue Results Margin Revenue Results Margin
AR®TT AR%TrR ARETT ARETR
RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000
BATHH Polymers 3,432,978 460,282 13.41% 3,879,793 915,014 23.58%
A Organic Silicone 2,686,292 507,410 18.89% 3,380,373 984,040 29.11%
BURH Refrigerants 2,677,890 355,368 13.27% 3,260,154 805,467 24.71%
—&R - BEAZ  Dichloromethane, Polyvinyl
& (Tpvc] ) Chloride (*PVC") and Liquid
KB Alkali 1,505,076 256,788 17.06% 1,723,746 466,059 27.04%
&M% Property development 1,852,300 357,867 19.32% 239,639 65,524 27.34%
Hith Others 804,156 331,634 41.24% 1735232 105,745 6.09%
e Consolidated 12,958,692 2,269,349 17.50% 14,218,937 3,341,849 23.50%
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Analysis of Revenue and Operating Results

During the year, the domestic and overseas economic conditions were
unstable, domestic market for the fluorosilicic industry has been impacted
to a certain extent and the downstream demand was low, resulting in a
relatively low price of the industry products, which had certain effects on
the results of the Group. Under the influence of this environment, results
of most of the Group's operating segments declined significantly. Only
the external sales and segment results of the operating segment “Property
development”, as well as the segment results “Others” operating segment
has recorded growth.
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BEBWED T
MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Fluoropolymer

During the year, the fluorine-containing polymers segment’s external sales
was RMB3,432,978,000, representing a year-on-year decrease of 11.52%
(2018: RMB3,879,793,000), accounting for 26.49% (2018: 27.29%) of the
Group's total external sales. This segment is the one contributing the most
to the Group's external sales. The results of the segment recorded a profit
of RMB460,282,000, representing an decrease of 49.70% as compared with
RMB915,014,000 in the same period of the previous year.

The decline in the results of fluorine-containing polymers was related to
changes in the industry market. During the period, due to the unstable
domestic and overseas economic situation, the market demand was
impacted. Some products were affected by the changes in the industry
market to a greater extent, and the price dropped significantly compared
with the same period last year. Among which, PTFE products were more
affected since these products accounted for the largest proportion in
this segment, and the decline in the amount of external sales had a
greater impact on the external sales of the segment. Although the price
of products reduced and the results declined accordingly, the Group
leveraged its long-standing market advantages to secure customers
and maintain a stable supply and demand relationship with customers,
resulting in an increase in market share.
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The Group relies on the internal supply of R22 for the production of
TFE (a fluorocarbon), which is used by the Group for the production of
polymers products such as PTFE (a synthetic fluoropolymer with high level
of resistance to temperature changes, electrical insulation, and aging and
chemical resistant that is used as a coating material and can also be further
processed into high-end fine chemicals which can be widely applied in
the chemicals, construction, electrical and electronics and automotive
industries) and HFP (an important organic fluorochemical monomer,
which can be used to produce various fine chemicals). Furthermore, the
refrigerants segment of the Group supplied R22 and R142b as the raw
materials for the production of a variety of downstream fluoropolymer
fine chemicals including FEP (modified materials of PTFE, produced with
HFP added in TFE, mainly used in the lining for wire insulation layer,
thin-walled tube, heat shrinkable tubes, pumps, valves and pipes), FKM
(Fluorine Rubber, a specialized fluorinated material, which is mainly used
in the fields of aerospace, automotives, machinery and petro-chemistry
because of its superior mechanical property, and excellent oil, chemical
and heat resistance), PVDF (fluorocarbon made with R142b to produce
VDF, mainly used as a fluorine coating resin, fluorinated powder coating
resin and lithium battery electrode binding material and VDF), in which
Huaxia Shenzhou has been engaging. Other fluorinated fine chemicals,
including PPVE, PSVE, HFPO, formed another major production category
of Huaxia Shenzhou.

Refrigerants

During the year, the refrigerants segment’s external sales decreased by
17.86% to RMB2,677,890,000 from 3,260,154,000 in the previous year,
accounting for 20.66% (2018:22.93%) of the Group’s total external sales. The
result of the segment recorded a profit of RMB355,368,000, representing
an decrease of 55.88% from a profit of RMB805,467,000 in 2018.

Affected by the domestic and overseas economic conditions, downstream
of the refrigerant segment was lowered and, meanwhile, the price of
upstream raw materials decreased to a certain degree, leading the drop in
price of the segment products. Among which, R22 products were products
subject to quota restriction. However, the price of R22 products decreased
to a certain extent due to the lower prices of fluorite, hydrofluoric acid and
other upstream raw materials. As the price of R22 has reached its historical
high in 2018, the price of R22, though falling in the current year, was still

at a reasonable price level.
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The Group has the largest production capacity of R22 in the world. R22
is the Group's backbone refrigerants product. Moreover, R22 is the most
widely used refrigerant in the PRC and is generally used in household
appliances. Apart from that, it has been one of the key raw materials for
the production of the fluoropolymers (i.e. PTFE, HFP and other downstream
fluorinated chemicals) and R125. R125 and R32 are the key refrigerant
mixture for other types of green refrigerants (such as R410a) to replace
R22. Currently, R410a has been the principal replacing refrigerant which
has been widely applied in inverter air conditioners and other green
home appliances. R134a is broadly used in the refrigeration and air-
conditioning systems in automobile air conditioners, while R152a is
another key refrigerant product of the Group which can also be used as
blowing agents, aerosols and cleaning agents. Apart from the fact that
R142b can be used as refrigerant, temperature controller medium, and
intermediates of aviation propellant, it can also be one of the main raw
materials for the production of VDF.

Pursuant to the Montreal Protocol, R22 would be progressively phased out
as a refrigerant by the end of 2030 and would be replaced by other green
refrigerants. The Chinese government has stopped granting approval to
the building up of new capacity for R22. Starting from 2013, the Chinese
government has been enforcing a quota system for the sales of R22 as a
refrigerant for all of the domestic R22 producers. On the other hand, R22
can be used as raw material for the production of the Fluoropolymer.
Therefore, although the Group has a huge production capacity of R22,
the saved production capacity of R22 as a refrigerant was devoted to the
production of Fluoropolymer in order to cope with the increasing market
demand for Fluoropolymer. With respect to the shortfall in the refrigerants’
market after the phase-out of R22, the Group had strategic deployment
for responding to the shortfall and the Group would continue to strive
to strengthen its position as the world's largest producer of refrigerants.

Organic Silicone

During the year, the organic silicone segment’s external sales decreased
by 20.53% to RMB2,686,292,000 from 3,380,373,000 in the previous
year, accounting for 20.73% (2018: 23.77%) of the Group’s total external
sales. The result of the segment recorded a profit of RMB507,410,000,
representing an decrease of 48.44% from a profit of RMB984,040,000 in
the previous year.
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After the price fluctuations in the second half of 2018, the prices of the
organic silicone industry were relatively stable during the year. Although
the average price level was lower than that in 2018, the organic silicone
segment maintained a considerable performance due to the Group's
outstanding marketing strategies, excellent business management,
long-standing market reputation and influence, and the great efforts of
Dongyue Organosilicon teams, making it the operating segment with the
most outstanding performance of the Group.

This segment mainly includes the production and sales of DMC (upstream
organic silicone intermediates that are used as raw materials to produce
deep processed mid-stream and downstream silicone products, such as
silicone oils, silicone rubber and silicone resins), 107 Silicone Rubber, Raw
Vulcanizate and Gross Rubber (collectively referred to as “Silicone Rubbers”,
deep processed organic silicone rubber products, where Raw Vulcanizate
is a key material for producing Gross Rubber), and other by-products and
other high-end downstream products, such as Gaseous Silica and Silicone
Oils. Named as “Industrial MSG”, organic silicone is widely applied in
military, aviation, automotive, electronic, construction and other industries,
mainly in the form of additives, treatment chemicals stabilizers, lubricants
and sealants and is a key ingredient in industrial processes. The Group
initially produces silicone monomers with silicone powder and internally
generated chloromethane and further processes them to become silicone
intermediates (mainly DMC), with certain portion of which the Group
produces for Silicone Rubbers and other organic silicone products. The
Group can also produce and generate other by-products and high-end
downstream products, such as Gaseous Silica and Silicone Qils through
its production processes.

Dichloromethane, PVC and Liquid Alkali

During the year under review, the segment’s external sales decreased
by 12.69% to RMB1,505,076,000 from 1,723,746,000 in the previous year,
accounting for 11.61% (2018: 12.12%) of the Group's total external sales. The
results of the segment recorded a profit of RMB256,788,000, representing
a year-on-year decrease of 44.90% (2018: profit of RMB466,059,000).
The products of this segment are chemical commodities with prices
significantly affected by economic factors. During the year, the price of
the industry products declined to a certain extent due to the unstable
domestic and overseas economic conditions.
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This segment includes the production and sales revenue of two major
auxiliary products (dichloromethane and liquid alkali) of Refrigerants
Segment of the Group and PVC products. Liquid alkali is a basic chemical
product from the production of methane chloride (essential chemical for
the production of refrigerants and organic silicone products), and used
in the textile, power and materials industries. Methane chloride includes
dichloromethane, which is mainly used to produce antibiotics and as a
foaming mode for polyurethane. The Group engaged in the production
of PVC (a widely used thermoplastic polymer applied in the construction
industry to replace traditional building materials). The production of
refrigerants products generates a chemical, hydrogen chloride, which is
one of the basic raw materials for PVC production. Therefore, the Group’s
PVC production can ensure production synergies and increasing economic
value generated from a self-sufficient business chain.

Property development

As at the date hereof, this segment included four property projects, which
are located in Huantai County, Zibo City, Shandong Province, Zhangdian
District, Zibo City, Shandong Province, Yucheng City, Shandong Province,
and Zhangjiajie City, Hunan Province, respectively. The segment’s external
segment during the year was RMB1,852,300,000, representing an increase
of 672.95% as compared to thatin 2018 (2018: RMB239,639,000), accounting
for 14.29% of the Group’s total external sales. The segment result was
RMB357,867,000, representing an increase of 446.16% as compared with
that in 2018 (2018: RMB65,524,000). Due to the exceptional nature of the
industries in the segment, the revenue of fewer items was recognized in
2018, therefore the amount of external sales in 2018 was lower. During the
year, certain projects were included in the revenue, therefore the growth
was more significant than that in 2018.

Others

During the year, the external sales of the segment was RMB804,156,000,
representing a decrease of 53.66% as compared with RMB1,735,232,000
in the previous year. The results of the segment recorded a profit of
RMB331,634,000 (2018: RMB105,745,000), representing a year-on-year
increase of 213.62%, The result of the segment is closely related to the
market environment, which was largely attributable to the volatile market
conditions in this year.
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This segment included the revenue from the production and sale of the
Group's other by-products of the various operating segments, such as
Ammonium Bifluoride, Hydrofluoric Acid, Bromine, and so on.

Distribution and Selling Expenses

During the year under review, the distribution and selling expenses
increased by 2.1% to RMB366,263,000 from RMB358,726,000 of the
previous year, which is attributable to the year-on-year increase in
external sales volume and transportation distance resulted in an increase
in transportation expenses, and the growth in property sales resulted in
the increase in sales commission.

Administrative Expenses

During the year under review, the administrative expenses decreased by
14.96% to RMB665,666,000 from RMB782,735,000 of the previous year.
The decrease is attributable to the year-on-year decrease in the results in
2019, the year-on-year decrease in allowances such as wages and bonus,
resulted in a decrease in total employee remuneration.

Finance Costs

During the year under review, the finance costs increased by 3.49% to
RMB100,528,000 from RMB97,135,000 of the previous year. This was mainly
attributable to increase in average monthly loan balances of the Group
during the year under review compared to previous year.

Capital Expenditure

For the year ended 31 December 2019, the Group’s aggregate capital
expenditure was approximately RMB1,365,954,000 (2018: RMB888,561,000).
The Group's capital expenditure is mainly for the construction of factories,
plant, equipment, production line and others under the expansion projects
of the Group.
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Liquidity and Financial Resources

The Group’s financial position is sound with healthy working capital
management and strong operational cash flow. As at 31 December 2019,
the Group's total equity amounted to RMB8,955,623,000, representing
a decrease of 4.6% as compared with that as at 31 December 2018.
As at 31 December 2019, the Group’s bank balances and cash totaled
RMB2,943,792,000 (31 December 2018: RMB3,331,147,000). The decrease
in the Group's bank balances and cash is mainly attributable to the
decrease in sales during the year, as well as the increase in dividend
and investment in fixed assets. During the year, the Group generated
a total of RMB2,330,301,000 (for the year ended 31 December 2018:
RMB3,873,382,000) net cash inflow from its operating activities. The current
ratio” of the Group as at 31 December 2019 was 2.04 (31 December
2018:1.78).

Taking the above figures into account, together with the available bank
balances and cash, the unutilized banking credit facilities and support from
its banks as well as its sufficient operational cash flows, the management is
confident that the Group will have adequate resources to settle any debts
and to finance its daily operational and capital expenditures.
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Spin-off and Seperate Listing of Shandong Dongyue

Organosilicone Materials Co., Ltd. (“Dongyue

Organosilicone”)

On 12 October 2018, the Company announced that Dongyue
Organosilicone (a non wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company) will
issue certain number of new A shares on ChiNext of the Shenzhen Stock
Exchange by way of initial public offering to the public in the PRC (the
“Spin-off”). On 12 March 2020, Dongyue Organosilicone was successfully
listed on ChiNext of the Shenzhen Stock Exchange by the issuance of
300,000,000 new A shares, representing 25% of the enlarged number of
issued shares of Dongyue Organosilicone, at the final offer price of RMB6.9
per A share. The gross proceeds raised amounted to RMB2,070 million.
Immediately upon completion of the Spin-off, the Company indirectly
holds 57.75% interest in Dongyue Organosilicone, and therefore Dongyue
Oganosilicone remains as a non-wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company.

The Spin-off constituted a deemed disposal of the Company's equity
interest in Dongyue Organosilicone under Rule 14.29 of the Listing Rules
and a Spin-off was approved by the shareholders of the Company at
the extraordinary general meeting on 31 October 2018. Please refer to
the announcements of the Company dated 29 March 2018, 12 October
2018, 12 November 2018, 4 November 2019, 28 November 2019 and 24
February 2020 and the circular of the Company dated 15 October 2018
for further details of the Spin-off.

Capital Structure

During the year under review, the Company did not repurchase or cancel
any of the Company’s listed securities. The number of issued shares of the
Company was 2,111,689,455 as at 31 December 2019.
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As at 31 December 2019, the borrowings of the Group totaled
RMB1,931,150,000 (31 December 2018: RMB2,082,450,000). The gearing
ratio? of the Group was -11.31% (31 December 2018:-13.30%). The
negative gearing ratio as at 31 December 2019 represents the Group is
“net cash” positive (i.e. has more cash & equivalents than its debt) which
is usually a good sign.

The Group had no particular seasonal pattern of borrowing. As at 31
December 2019, the Group's borrowings comprised non-current portion
(over 1 year) and current portion (within 1 year). The non-current portion
of borrowings amounted to approximately RMB1,420,550,000 which are
repayable in full after one year but not exceeding five years. The current
portion of borrowings amounted to approximately RMB510,600,000. The
Group's borrowings were made at fixed interest rates and floating rates. The
weighted average effective interest rates on floating rate borrowings for
the yearended 31 December 2019 were 5.61% (2018: 5.36%) per annum. As
at 31 December 2019, all of the Group's borrowings bear variable interest
rate (31 December 2018: 73.28% of the Group's borrowings bear variable

interest rates while the remaining borrowings bear fixed interest rates).

As at 31 December 2019 and 2018, the Group's borrowings were
denominated in RMB only.

Notes:
(1) Current Ratio = Current Assets + Current Liabilities
) Gearing Ratio = Net Dept + Total Equity

Net Debt = Total Borrowings — Bank Balances and Cash

Group Structure

During the year under review, there has been no material change in the
structure of the Group.
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Charge on Assets

As at 31 December 2019, the Group had certain property, plant and
equipment and right-of-use assets/lease prepayments with an aggregate
carrying value of approximately RMB10,145,000 (31 December 2018:
RMB10,747,000), and bank deposits of RMB309,241,000 (31 December 2018:
RMB363,133,000), which were pledged to secure the Group’s borrowings,
the bills payable and deposits from presale of properties of the Group.

Exposure to Fluctuations in Exchange Rates and Related
Hedges

The Group’s functional currency is RMB with most of the transactions
settled in RMB. However, foreign currencies (mainly United States dollars)
were received/paid when the Group earned revenue from overseas
customers and when settling purchases of machinery and equipment
from the overseas suppliers.

In order to reduce the risk of holding foreign currencies, the Group normally
converts the foreign currencies into RMB upon receipt while taking into
account its foreign currencies payment schedule in the near future.

Employees and Remuneration Policy

The Group had 5,664 employees in total as at 31 December 2019 (31
December 2018: 5,876). The Group implemented its remuneration policy
and bonus based on the performance of the Group and its employees.
The Group provided benefits such as social insurance, employee option
scheme and pensions to ensure remuneration competitiveness.
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Directors

The board of directors (the “Board”) of the Company is responsible for
the management and operation of the Company’s businesses and has
the general authority in this regard. Certain information of the members
of the Board is as follows:

Executive directors

Mr. ZHANG Jianhong, aged 60, was appointed as the chairman, chief
executive officer and executive director of the Company in July 2006.
He has been with the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively the
“Group”) and its predecessors since October 1986 and has over 33
years of experience in the chemical industry. He is also the chairman
of Dongyue Chemicals and Dongyue Polymers etc., and a director
of Dongyue F&S and Dongying Dongyue Salt, all of which are the
Company's subsidiaries. Mr. Zhang is a professor-level senior officer of
political affairs. He had served the People’s Liberation Army Navy from
1978 to 1982. Mr. Zhang is the vice chairman of the 11th All-China
Federation of Industry and Commerce (58 +— &2 Bl L), currently
serves as vice chairman of China Civil Chamber of Commerce (FBR
I ®), the president of the Hong Kong China Chamber of Commerce,
the standing chairman of China Association of Organic Fluorine
and Silicone Material Industry and a standing committee member
of Chinese People's Political Consultative Conference of Shandong
Province (LLIERE ). He has obtained the honorary titles of National
Outstanding Builder of Socialism in the Non-Public Economy (Fourth
Session), “100 outstanding private entrepreneurs during the 40 years
of reform and opening up”, Powerful Figure of China Petroleum and
Chemical Industry (First Session), Top 10 Outstanding Figures of Chinese
Brands in the International Market, National Outstanding Demobilized
Soldier, and Most Outstanding CEO of the Year chosen by a Hong Kong
magazine “Capital CEO" ("BZARA & ").

Mr. FU Kwan, aged 62, was appointed as the executive director of
the Company in July 2006. Mr. Fu is currently the chairman of the
board of directors and the president of Macro-Link Group. Mr. Fu
served as a police commissioner of Liling City, deputy secretary of the
Party Committee of the Commune, secretary of the township party
committee, deputy director of the Liling City Economic Commission,
director of the Municipal Foreign Trade Bureau and the Party secretary,
deputy general manager of Hunan Arts and Crafts Import and Export
Group (1M E L& M H Q& E), and associate leader of social
working team of province station at Liuyang City. Mr. Fu served as the
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member of executive committee, standard committee of All-China
Federation of Industry and Commerce, the director of participation and
deliberation of politics committee of All-China Federation of Industry
and Commerce, the deputy chairman of the tenth All-China Federation
of Industry and Commerce, and the deputy chairman of the eleventh
of China Chamber of Commerce. He also served as the eleventh, the
twelfth and the thirteenth CPPCC member, the member of the social
and legal committee of CPPCC, and the chairman of Hong Kong China
Chamber of Commerce. He was appointed as deputy chairman of the
board of Central South University and Beijing Foreign Studies University.
He was selected for several times as “Outstanding builders of socialism
with Chinese characteristics”, “Top ten Entrepreneur in China”, “China
Economic Person of the Year”, “100 outstanding private entrepreneurs
at the 40th anniversary of China’s reform and opening-up”, “Persons of
China Private Sector for the 40 Years" and other honors. In addition,
Mr. Fu is the director of Macrolink Culturaltainment Development Co.,
Ltd. G EER bRz 3 R AR KD AR 2 R]), a company listed on the
Shenzhen Stock Exchange. Mr. Fu is also the chairman and executive
director of Macrolink Capital Holdings Limited (¥TZEE:E KRB R AT,
a company listed on the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited. Mr Fu
owns a direct 4.25% and an indirect 90% interest in Macrolink Holding,
which wholly owns Macrolink International. Macrolink International is a
substantial shareholder of Macrolink Capital Holdings Limited.

Mr. LIU Chuangqi, aged 70, was appointed as the executive director
of the Company in July 2006. He has been with the Group and
its predecessors since October 1986. Mr. Liu has over 30 years of
experience in the chemical industry and was a director of Dongyue
Chemicals, Dongyue Polymers, Dongyue F&S, Dongyue Organic
Silicone, Dongying Dongyue Salt, Huaxia Shenzhou, Dongyue Precision
Chemicals and Zibo Dongyue Lvyuan, all of which are the Company'’s
subsidiaries. He is also formerly the general manager of Dongyue
Chemicals and the president of the Group. He is a senior officer of
political affairs, and was awarded “Medal for Enhancing the Labour
Force of Zibo City" in 2002 by the Zibo City Labour Union.

Mr. ZHANG Zhefeng, aged 45, was appointed as the executive director,
vice president and chief financial officer of the Company in May 2017.
Mr. Zhang was the financial controller of the Group from 2006 to
2007. He has served as the financial controller and general manager of
MacroLink Mineral Co., Ltd. (¥T:EETEZ B R A 7)) from February 2008
to February 2016. Mr. Zhang is also the director of Shandong Dongyue
Organosilicon Materials Co. Ltd (a company listed on the ChiNext of
the Shenzhen Stock Exchange). Mr. Zhang graduated in the Hunan
University in 2003. He is also a member of the Chinese Institute of
Certified Public Accountants and a registered tax agent in the PRC. Mr.
Zhang has more than 20 years of experience in accounting and finance.
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Mr. ZHANG Bishu, aged 50, was appointed as the executive director of
the Company in May 2017. Mr. Zhang is a master postgraduate. He is also
a certified accountant and registered tax agent in the PRC. In his earlier
years, Mr. Zhang worked for state-owned enterprises and government
authorities. He joined the Macro-Link Group in October 2004. He has
since served as the deputy financial officer of the Macro-Link Group, the
chairman of Macro-Link Weihung Food Company Ltd. GHTEE$EB R
mABR A F]), the director and the general manager of Jiayuan Cobalt
Holdings (=84 5B FR /A A)) and the financial officer and the chief
officer of the investment department of the MacroLink Group. Mr. Zhang
is currently the senior vice president, chief accountant and the president
of the chemical and tyre business department of the Macro-Link Group.
In addition, Mr. Zhang currently also acts as an executive director of
Liaoning Chengda Co,, Ltd. GEZER AR/ BPRAF]) (a company listed
on the Shanghai Stock Exchange), Sichuan Hongda Co., Ltd. (F9)I| 7=
f& 15 B PR 2 7)) (a company listed on the Shanghai Stock Exchange),
Macrolink Capital Holdings Limited (a company listed on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited), Sailun Group Co., Ltd. (@ company
listed on the Shanghai Stock Exchange), Asia-Pacific Property & Casualty
Insurance Co,, Ltd. and Daxinganling Rural Commercial Bank.

Mr. ZHANG lJian, aged 47, was appointed as the executive director
of the Company in July 2006 and has been with the Group since
February 2006. Mr. Zhang has more than 20 years of experience in the
investment banking and corporate finance. Mr. Zhang holds a bachelor
degree in Economics and Law from Jiangxi University of Finance and
Economics and a Master degree in Business Administration from The
Chinese University of Hong Kong. Mr. Zhang is currently the director,
senior vice president of the Marco-Link Group and the director of its
integrated corporate management department, as well as an executive
director of New Silkroad Culturaltainment Limited (a company listed on
the HKSE) and Macrolink Capital Holdings Limited (a company listed on
the HKSE), the vice-chairman of Keda Clean Energy Co. Ltd. (@ company
listed on the Shanghai Stock Exchange), and a director of Macrolink
Culturaltainment Development Co., Ltd. FTEER AL iR R D E
R 2 7)) (a company listed on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange).

Independent non-executive directors

Mr. TING Leung Huel, Stephen VMH, FCCA, FCPA (PRACTISING), ACA, CTA
(HK), FHKIoD, aged 66, was appointed as an independent non-executive
director of the Company in November 2007. Mr. Ting is a certified public
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accountant and is the partner of Messrs Ting Ho Kwan & Chan, Certified
Public Accountants (Practising). Mr. Ting is currently a non-executive
director of Chow Sang Sang Holdings International Limited and an
independent non-executive director of six companies listed on the HKSE,
namely Tong Ren Tang Technologies Company Limited, Tongda Group
Holdings Limited, New Silkroad Culturaltainment Limited, Computer and
Technologies Holdings Limited, Texhong Textile Group Limited and China
SCE Group Holdings Limited.

Mr. YUE Rundong, aged 79, was appointed as an independent
non-executive director of the Company in November 2007 and has
been with the Group since then. Mr. Yue has more than 40 years of
experience in the chemical industry. He was the technician, project
leader and deputy director of research department of Shen Yang
Chemical Research Institute, the dean of Chen Guang Chemical
Research Institute and the dean of Chengdu Silicone Research Centre.
Mr. Yue has taken the post of the dean of Bluestar Institute of Chemical
Technology, the standing chairman and professorate senior engineer of
China Association of Organic Fluorine and Silicone Material Industry. Mr.
Yue is currently the honorary standing chairman of China Association
of Organic Fluorine and Silicone Material Industry. Mr. Yue also receives
special allowance from the State Council.

Mr. YANG Xiaoyong, aged 64, was appointed as an independent non-
executive director of the Company in August 2014. Mr. Yang has over
30 years of experience in fluoropolymer and organic silicone industries.
Mr. Yang served at China Bluestar Chengrand Research Institute of
Chemical Industry as chief engineer and director of National Organic
Silicone Engineering and Technological Research Centre and National
Synthetic Resin Quality Supervision and Inspection Centre, and the
chief secretary of the Organic Silicone Professional Committee of China
Association of Fluorine and Silicone Industry and so forth. Mr. Yang
is currently director of the Expert Committee of China Association
of Fluorine and Silicone Industry. In addition, Mr Yang is currently an
independent director of Hubei Xingfa Chemicals Group Co., Ltd (j#
b TEERKBER AR, a company listed on the Shanghai
Stock Exchange, an independent director of Ningbo Runbe High-Tech
Materials Co., Ltd (BERBERSF M RIEHER 7D AR A F]), a company
listed on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange, Henan Hengxing Science &
Technology Co. Ltd., a company listed on Shenzhen Stock Exchange,
and an independent director of New Asia Man Silicon Chemistry Co.,

Ltd. GRaes@ L ERMH AR A R).
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Senior management

Mr. WANG Weidong, aged 56, has worked for the Group since September
1996 and is responsible for technology R&D and corporate management
matters. During the period, he chaired the overall preparation works
for incorporation of fluorosilicone companies as well as organic silicone
companies. He then acted as the general manager of fluorosilicone
companies, silicone companies and chemical companies of Dongyue.
Mr. Wang is also the chairman of Shandong Dongyue Organosilicon
Materials Co. Ltd (@ company listed on the ChiNext of the Shenzhen
Stock Exchange). He has over 30 years' experience for manufacture and
management in the chemical industry. He is currently the president of the
Group and the director of the subsidiaries of Dongyue Group. Mr. Wang
also received various awards such as the nationwide outstanding chemical
engineerer (2BI{t TEFEHET T 1EH) from Petroleum and Chemical
Industry Federation (FRF{t T T 21®), Outstanding Contribution
Entrepreneurs (# 1 & Bt & % %K) and Shandong Outstanding
Entrepreneurs (ILERAEFEZER). Mr. Wang holds a master degree in
business administration from Shanghai Jiao Tong University.

Mr. LI Yuwen, aged 52, obtained a bachelor's degree in English from
Beijing Foreign Studies University and the title of senior political
scientist of professor level. He has worked for the Group since March
2002 until now, currently serves as the deputy president of the
Group. He excels in management, innovation and corporate culture
development, and has promoted the management reform of the
Company under the support and guidance of the Group’s management.
He is the author of Management Revolution { B IEHIE ), etc.

Company secretary

Ms. CHUNG Tak Lai, aged 38, is a full time company secretary of
the Company. She joined the Group on 20 March 2015. Ms. Chung is
primarily responsible for company secretarial matters of the Company.
Ms. Chung has 17 years of work experience in accounting, corporate
finance and strategic investment. Prior to joining the Company, Ms.
Chung had worked in the audit and financial advisory divisions of a
leading international accounting firm; merger and acquisition team
of a Hong Kong listed blue-chip company; finance and accounting;
and strategic investment divisions of two listed companies in Hong
Kong respectively. Ms. Chung holds a bachelor degree of business
administration, majoring in professional accountancy from the Chinese
University of Hong Kong and a bachelor degree of laws from the
University of London. Ms. Chung is a fellow member of the Association
of Chartered Certified Accountants and a member of the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

The Directors present their report together with the audited financial
statements of Dongyue Group Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(collectively the “Group”) for the year ended 31 December 2019.

Principal activities

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. The
principal activities of the subsidiaries are set out in note 37 to the
financial statements. There were no significant changes in the nature of
the Group's principal activities during the year.

Results and appropriations

The results of the Group for the year are set out in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income on page 125.

The Directors did not recommend the payment of an interim dividend
for the six months ended 30 June 2019 (six months ended 30 June
2018: Nil).

The Directors now recommend the payment of a final dividend of
HKS$0.23 per share (the "Final Dividend") (approximately equivalent to
RMBO0.20 per share) (2018: HK$0.35 per share, approximately equivalent
to RMBO0.30 per share), in respect of the year 2019, to the shareholders
whose names appear on the register of members of the Company
(the “Register”) on 18 June 2020. The Final Dividend is subject to the
approval of the members of the Company at the forthcoming annual
general meeting (the “AGM") to be held on 9 June 2020.

Closure of the Register

The Register will be closed to ascertain the qualification for attending
and voting at the AGM and for the entitlement to the Final Dividend.

The Register will be closed from 4 June 2020 to 9 June 2020, both days
inclusive, during which period no transfer of shares will be registered. In
order to qualify for attending and voting at the AGM, all share transfers,
accompanied by the relevant share certificates, must be lodged with
the Company's Hong Kong branch share registrar and transfer office,
Tricor Investor Services Limited, at Level 54, Hopewell Centre, 183
Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong, not later than 4:30 p.m. on 3 June 2020.
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The Register will be closed from 15 June 2020 to 18 June 2020, both
days inclusive, during which period no transfer of shares will be
registered. In order to qualify for the entitlement to the Final Dividend,
all share transfers, accompanied by the relevant share certificates, must
be lodged with Tricor Investor Services Limited at Level 54, Hopewell
Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong, not later than 4:30 p.m. on
12 June 2020.

Reserves

Movements in the reserves of the Group during the year are set out in
the consolidated statement of change in equity on page 128.

Property, plant and equipment

Details of the movements in property, plant and equipment of the
Group are set out in note 15 to the financial statements.

Share capital

Details of the movements in the share capital of the Company are set
out in note 31 to the financial statements.

Distributable reserves

As at 31 December 2019, the Company’s reserves available for
distribution to shareholders as computed in accordance with the
Companies Law (2003 Revision) of the Cayman Islands amounted to
RMBT1,156,594,000 of which HK$48,688,000 (approximately equivalent to
RMB42,797,000) has been proposed as Final Dividend.

Pre-emptive right

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
articles of association or the laws of the Cayman Islands which would
oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to the
existing shareholders.

Purchase, sale or redemption of listed securities

Other than as disclosed in the section headed "Employee Option
Scheme” in this report, neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries
has purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities
during the year ended 31 December 2019.
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Employee Option Scheme

On 27 December 2018, the Company adopted an employee option
scheme (the “Employee Option Scheme”) which shall be valid and
effective for a term of five (5) years. The purposes of the Employee
Option Scheme are (i) to recognize the contributions by certain
employees or consultants of the Group and to provide them with
incentives in order to retain them for the continual operation and
development of the Group; and (ii) to attract suitable personnel for
further development of the Group.

Pursuant to the Employee Option Scheme, Shandong Dongyue Future
Enterprise Management Consulting Services Co., Ltd.,, a wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company, as the trustee will purchase existing Shares
from the market out of cash contributed by the Group of not more than
HK$800,000,000 in total at all material times and hold such Shares on
trust for the relevant employees or consultants of the Group selected
by the Board (the “Selected Employees”). The Board may, from time to
time, at its absolute discretion grant to any Selected Employee the right
to purchase the relevant Shares (the “Option”). The Selected Employee
may, when exercising the Option, elect the number of Shares which he
wishes to (i) be transferred and/or (ii) sell and receive the difference, if
any, between the sale price of the Shares and the exercise price of the
Option.

During the year ended 31 December 2019, Shares in the amount of
RMB168,897,000 (approximately HK$192,146,758) have been purchased
by the Trustee under the Employee Option Scheme. No Options have
been granted under the Employee Option Scheme up to the date of
this report.

The Employee Option Scheme is not a share option scheme and is not
subject to the provisions of Chapter 17 of the Listing Rules.

Further details of the Employee Option Scheme are set out in the
Company's announcement dated 27 December 2018.
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Directors

The Directors during the year ended 31 December 2019 and up to the
date of this report were:

Executive Directors

Mr. Zhang Jianhong (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Fu Kwan

Mr. Zhang Zhefeng

Mr. Liu Chuangi

Mr. Zhang Bishu

Mr. Zhang Jian

Independent non-executive Directors (“INEDs")

Mr. Ting Leung Huel, Stephen
Mr. Yue Rundong
Mr. Yang Xiaoyong

Pursuant to Article 87(1) of the Company’s articles of association, at
each of the annual general meeting, one third of the Directors for the
time being, or, if their number is not 3 or a multiple of 3, then the
number nearest to but not less than one-third, shall retire from office
by rotation provided that every Director shall be subject to retirement
by rotation at least once every 3 years. Mr. Zhang Jianhong, Mr. Ting
Leung Huel, Stephen and Mr. Yang Xiaoyong will retire by rotation
at the forthcoming AGM and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-
election.

Directors’ service contracts

None of the Directors proposed for re-election at the forthcoming AGM
has entered or has proposed to enter into any service contracts with
the Company or any of its subsidiaries which is not determinable by the
Group within one year without payment of compensation, other than
statutory compensation.
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Directors’ interests in contracts

No contract of significance, to which the Company, its fellow
subsidiaries, its subsidiaries or its holding company was a party and
in which a Director of the Company had a material interest, whether
directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time
during the year.

Director’s rights to acquire shares

Other than as disclosed in the section headed "Employee Option
Scheme” in this report, at no time during the year was the Company,
its holding company or any of its subsidiaries and fellow subsidiaries,
a party to any arrangement to enable the Directors, their respective
spouse or minor children to acquire benefit by means of the acquisition
of Shares in, or debentures of, the Company or any other body
corporate.

Biographical details of Directors and senior
management

Brief biographical details of Directors of the Company and senior
management of the Group are set out on pages 25 to 29.

Remuneration of the Directors

The remuneration of each Director is determined with reference to the
duties, responsibilities, performance of the Directors and the results of
the Group.

Details of the remuneration of the Directors are set out in note 11 to
the financial statements.

Corporate governance practice

Details of the corporate governance practice of the Company are set
out on pages 48 to 67.

Environmental, Social and Governance practice

Details of the environmental, social and governance practice of the
Company are set out on pages 68 to 115.
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Name of Director

EEME

Nature of interest

(a) Directors’ and chief executives’ interests and short

positions in the Shares, underlying Shares and
debentures

As at 31 December 2019, the interests or short positions of the
Directors and the chief executive of the Company and their
respective associates in the Shares, underlying Shares and debentures
of the Company or its associated corporations (within the meaning
of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFO”)) which
were required to be notified to the Company and the HKSE pursuant
to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests and
short positions which they were taken or deemed to have taken
under such provisions of the SFO) or which were required, pursuant
to Section 352 of the SFO, to be entered in the register referred to
therein, or which were required, pursuant to the Model Code for
Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model
Code”) to be notified to the Company and the HKSE were as follows:

B 10 S B B 1 BB
Number of Shares
or underlying Shares

HERITRABSL
% of issued
share capital

KBRS
Mr. Zhang Jianhong

BELLE

Mr. Fu Kwan

2EHEE
Mr. Liu Chuanqj

RESL
Mr. Zhang Jian

REIEFE
Mr. Zhang Zhefeng

B0
Corporate interest”
EamtkEn

Beneficial interest

20
Corporate interest®

ERERC
Corporate interest®

En L e
EmiEem

Beneficial interest

BNl e N
EmiEem

Beneficial interest

EmiEs
Beneficial interest

178,277,273 (L) 844 (L)
7,147,636 (L) 0.34 (L)
616,646,818 (L) 29.20 (L)
75,634,000 (L) 3.58 (L)
7,053,454 (L) 033 ()
397,091 (L) 0.02 (L)
650,000 (L) 0.03 (L)
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Notes:

(1) Pursuant to the SFO, as Mr. Zhang Jianhong holds 100% interest in
Dongyue Team Limited, Mr. Zhang is deemed to be interested in the
178,277,273 Shares(L) held by Dongyue Team Limited.

(2)  These Shares in which 150,000,000 Shares (L) are directly held by
Macrolink Overseas (a wholly owned subsidiary of Macrolink International)
and 466,646,318 Shares (L) directly held by Macrolink International which
in turn is wholly owned by Macrolink Industrial. Macrolink Holding, a
company owned by Cheung Shek as to 93.4% and by Mr. Fu Kwan as to
2.83%, respectively, wholly owns Macrolink Industrial. In addition, Mr. Fu
Kwan and Ms. Xiao Wenhui directly own Cheung Shek as to 59.76% and
33.46%, respectively.

(3)  These Shares are directly held by Dongyue Wealth Limited which is
wholly owned by Mr. Liu Chuangi. Mr. Liu is deemed to be interested in
the 75,634,000 Shares(L) held by Dongyue Wealth Limited under the SFO.

(4) L: Long Position

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2019, none of the then
Directors or chief executive of the Company or their respective
associates had any interests or short positions in the Shares, underlying
Shares and debentures of the Company or any of its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) which were
required to be notified to the Company and the HKSE pursuant to
Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests and short
positions which they were taken or deemed to have taken under such
provisions of the SFO) or which were required, pursuant to section 352
of the SFO, to be entered in the register referred to therein or which
were required, pursuant to the Model Code, to be notified to the
Company and the HKSE.
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(b) Substantial shareholders’ and other person’s

interests and short positions in the Shares,

underlying Shares and debentures

As at 31 December 2019, so far as is known to the Directors and

the chief executive of the Company, the following persons (not

being a Director or chief executive of the Company) had an

interest or a short position in the Shares or underlying Shares

of the Company as recorded in the register required to be kept
under Section 336 of the SFO or which would fall to be disclosed

to the Company under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part

XV of the SFO:

RORABBRDEE
Number of shares
or underlying Shares

HEBRTREABDLL
% of issued
share capital

Macrolink Overseas

T EE B B R
Macrolink International

SRR
Macrolink Industrial

FEE AL
Macrolink Holding

A
Cheung Shek

HXEz+t
Ms. Xiao Wenhui

Dongyue Team Limited

ERBEE
Mr. Cui Tongzheng

Dongyue Initiator Limited

B
Beneficial interest!

g3 £k
Beneficial interest’
B

Corporate interest!

SRR
Corporate interest!

DEES
Corporate interest!

DR
Corporate interest!

e E
Corporate interest!

B L gAE Lo
E\/\$g/\

Beneficial interest?

Corporate interest?
B
Beneficial interest

B
Beneficial interest®

150,000,000 (L)

466,646,818 (L)

150,000,000 (L)

616,646,818 (L)

616,646,818 (L)

616,646,818 (L)

616,646,818 (L)

178,277,273 (L)

156,852,363 (L)

5,162,180 (L)

156,852,363 (L)

22.1(L)

7.1(L)

29.20 (L)

29.20 (L)

29.20 (L)

29.20 (L)

844 (L)

743 (L)

0.24 (L)

743 (L)
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These Shares in which 150,000,000 Shares (L) are directly held by
Macrolink Overseas (a wholly owned subsidiary of Macrolink International)
and 466,646,818 Shares (L) directly held by Macrolink International which
in turn is wholly owned by Macrolink Industrial. Macrolink Holding, a
company owned by Cheung Shek as to 93.4% and by Mr. Fu Kwan as to
2.83%, respectively, wholly owns Macrolink Industrial. In addition, Mr. Fu
Kwan and Ms. Xiao Wenhui directly own Cheung Shek as to 59.76% and
33.46%, respectively.

Pursuant to the SFO, as Mr. Zhang Jianhong holds 100% interest in

Dongyue Team Limited, Mr. Zhang is deemed to be interested in the
178,277,273 Shares (L) held by Dongyue Team Limited.

Pursuant to the SFO, as Mr. Cui Tongzheng holds 100% interest in
Dongyue Initiator Limited, Mr. Cui is deemed to be interested in the
156,852,363 Shares (L) held by Dongyue Initiator Limited.

L: Long Position
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31 December 2019

ZHEARANEERREE

Name of substantial shareholder
of such subsidiary

(c) Interests in other members of the Group as at

HERKBAT
TRITRER

HEEME

AMEXREDL

% of issued share
capital/registered
capital of

Nature of interest

such subsidiary

IWERRERAEM R BR AR
(IRERED

Shandong Dongyue Fluo-Silicon
Materials Co., Ltd. (‘Dongyue F&S")

AELARESBRLCTIERDA
Inner Mongolia Dongyue Peak Fluorine
Chemicals Co,, Ltd.

FEEFRERR AT
Chifeng HuaSheng Mining Co., Ltd.

W RERE SO B BR A
Shandong Dongyue Wenhe Fluorine
Chemicals Co,, Ltd.

IWERFRERK DN HER QA

Shandong Dongyue Future Hydrogen
Energy Materials Co., Ltd.

IWRREBABEXZAR DA
Shandong Dongyue Union Property
Co,, Ltd.

IWRREBEEMHIRDER AR
Shandong Dongyue Organosilicon
Material Co., Ltd

HBRNEERR AR

Zibo Juyue Commercial Limited

TRER IS SRR BR A A
Chifeng Zhongxing Information
Technology Co., Ltd.

TRE RIS SRR BR A A
Chifeng Zhongxing Information
Technology Co., Ltd.

RSO AR A )
Shandong Wenhe New Materials
Co,, Ltd.

EMRABEARBREAREE
(HtEET)

Huoer Guosi Xuri Equity Investment
Partnership (Note 1)

BRERARRHRZERER A E (FFE2)
Paramita Times Technology Holdings
Limited (Note 2)

MIERERETZEBR AR
Zibo Jingrun Construction
Engineering Company Limited

RAKEGR QA (KEE3)
Cheung Shek Investment Limited
(Note 3)

HERFEXEEABLE
(BRA&R) (MEE4)

Zibo Xiaoxi Enterprise Management
Limited Partnership (Note 4)

N A]

Corporate

NG|
Corporate

NG
Corporate

NG
Corporate

ERAER

Limited partnership

NG
Corporate

NG
Corporate

NG
Corporate

NG|

Corporate
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Note:

(1) Huoer Guosi Xuri Equity Investment Partnership (“Huoer Guosi”) is a PRC
limited partnership principally engaged in equity investment, which
general partner is a director of certain subsidiaries of the Company, and
which limited partners include two executive Directors who together
hold more than 30% interest in Huoer Guosi as limited partners.
Therefore, Huoer Guosi is a connected person of the Company.

(2)  Paramita Times Technology Holdings Limited (“Paramita”) is a company
established in the PRC with limited liability which is principally engaged
in investment holding and asset management. An associate of Mr. Fu
Kwan (an executive Director of the Company), owns 66% interest in
Paramita. Therefore, Paramita is a connected person of the Company.

(3) Cheung Shek Investment Limited (“Cheung Shek Investment”) is a
company established in the PRC with limited liability which is principally
engaged in investment and management of investment. Cheung Shek
Investment is directly controlled by Mr. Fu Kwan (an executive Director of
the Company). Therefore, Cheung Shek Investment is a connected person
of the Company.

(4) Zibo Xiaoxi Enterprise Management Limited Partnership (“Zibo Xiaoxi") is
a partnership established in the PRC and legally in existence. Zibo Xiaoxi
is principally engaged in corporate management, corporate management
consultancy, business consultancy and corporate services. Mr. Zhang
Jianhong and Mr. Zhang Zhefeng (both are executive Directors of the
Company) together own more than 30% of Zibo Xiaoxi. Therefore, Zibo
Xiaoxi is a connected person of the Company.

Saved as disclosed above, so far as is known to the Directors and the
chief executive of the Company, as at 31 December 2019, no other
person (other than the Directors or the chief executive of the Company)
had any interest or a short position in the Shares or underlying Shares
of the Company which would fall to be disclosed to the Company
under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, or
who were, directly or indirectly, interested in 10% or more of the
nominal value of any class of share capital carrying rights to vote in all
circumstances at general meetings of any other member of the Group.

Saved as disclose in this report, there was no other contract of
significance between the Company or any of its subsidiaries and the
controlling shareholder or any of its subsidiaries during the year and up
to the date of this report.
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Directors’ interests in competing business

During the year ended 31 December 2019, none of the Directors of the
Company was interested in any business which competes or is likely to
compete, either directly or indirectly, with the business of the Group.

Management contracts

No contract concerning the management and administration of the
whole or any substantial part of the business of the Group were entered
into or existed during the year.

Major suppliers and customers

The percentages of purchases and sales for the year attributable to the
Group’s major suppliers and customers are as follows:

Purchases
- the largest supplier 543%
— five largest suppliers combined 20.10%
Sales
- the largest customer 1.71%
— five largest customers combined 6.82%

None of the Directors, their associates or any shareholder (which to
the knowledge of the Directors owns more than 5% of the Company’s
share capital) had an interest in the major suppliers or customers noted
above.
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Connected transactions

During the year, the Group had entered into connected transactions
that are subject to be reported under Chapter 14A of the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on the HKSE (the “Listing Rules”) as
below:

Shandong Huaxia Shenzhou New Materials Co., Ltd., (the “Seller”) a
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, has entered into the Land
Disposal Agreement with the Shandong Dongyue Future Hydrogen
Energy Materials Co., Ltd. (the “Purchaser”), pursuant to which the Seller
agreed to sell and the Purchaser agreed to purchase the land use rights
of the Land for a consideration of RMB19,764,000.

The Purchaser is held as to 40% by the Seller, 30% by Huoer Guosi Xuri
Equity Investment Partnership (“Huoer Guosi”) and 30% by Macro-link
Holdings Limited (“Macro-link”), and is accounted for as a subsidiary of
the Company. Huoer Guosi and Macro-link are the connected persons
of the Company. Therefore, pursuant to Rule 14A.16 of the Listing Rules,
the Purchaser is a connected subsidiary of the Company as it is a non-
wholly owned subsidiary of the Company in which each of Huoer Guosi
and Macro-link can exercise or control the exercise of 10% or more of
the voting power at the Purchaser’s general meeting.

Further details of the transaction are set out in the announcement
dated 8 March 2019.
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Details of the continuing connected transactions conducted by the
Group during the year ended 31 December 2019 not falling under Rule
14A.33 of the Listing Rules are set out below:

20195 MHERERS EELR BReE
Continuing connected transactions for the year 2019 Annual Cap Actual
(ARBBET) (ANEEBET)
(RMB million) (RMB million)
BEMURREEREMH Renewal of raw material master supply agreement 385 230
AR MERMEH for the supply of raw materials to Shandong
R R 15 (FT3E0) Dongyue Organosilicon Materials Co,, Ltd (Note 1)
ETREERIR R E AR Second renewal of raw material master supply 340 =
BRABEEERMEMEMEHEEE  agreement for the supply of raw materials to
iEACiES) Shandong Dongyue Organosilicon Materials Co,,
Ltd (Note 2)
MEBEREEMEERAR Supplemental financial services master agreement 500 480

REFTRS KRB
SRRG T BRI WS

(THFEERRS ) (HE3)

HEREREERHERAR

RO RURS & & SRS 0 £ B RS
Tihs ((EESRRBHHE])

GEZY

for provision of deposit services and loan services
by macro-link Holding Group Finance Company
Limited (“Supplemental FS Agreement”) (Note 3)

Financial services master agreement for provision of
deposit services and loan services by Marco-link
Holding Group Finance Company Limited (the
"Renewed FS Agreement”) (Note 4)

(maximun daily
outstanding balance of
deposits during the period
between 26 July 2018 and
25 July 2019)
(201857 A26H %2019
F7RBEHEERER
RERERER)

410 408
(maximun daily

outstanding balance of
deposits during the period
between 26 July 2019 and

31 December 2019)
(201957 A26B %2019
F12A31BHRESEH
RERERER)
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Continuing connected transactions for the year 2019 Annual Cap Actual
(ANEEBET) (ANE¥BBEET)
(RMB million) (RMB million)
HINRRERRGEMEERAT Raw materials S& Framework Agreement with 37 365
(IREGEDITIMEMBEER Shandong Dongyue Future Hydrogen Energy (HWEFEER) (Sale from 1 March 2018
TER ik (FEE5) Materials Co,, Ltd. (‘Dongyue Hydrogen”) (Note 5) (Sale annual cap) ~ to 28 February 2019)
110 (R2018%F3A18
(BEEEER) Z2019%2A28BHE)
(Purchase annual cap) 88
(Purchase from 1 March
2018 to 28 February 2019)
(R2018F3A1H
Z201962A28REE)
BETRERE MR ER Renewed raw materials S& Framework Agreement 77 28
TEZR 3k (Ff E6) with Dongyue Hydrogen (Note 6) (HEFELR) (Sale from 1 March
(Sale annual cap)  to 31 December 2019)
138 (R2019F3A18
(BEFELR) ENANAEE)
(Purchase annual cap) 74
(Purchase from 1 March
to 31 December 2019)
(R2019%3A1H
Z12A318BE)
MisE1 : 72018612208 + ARRIEA AR BENB R Note 1: On 20 December 2018, the Company to Shandong Dongyue Organosilicone

AR EEMEMEER AR ([ REA#E]ET
SEMAMEEERENEE - Bt - ARREBRE
MREEEEERERME - ftEAEREE A -
E2019F 1283181 - RSGFBHIIRARE HH
B20185F 12 A20A A ©

RIEFH AR Bl EE - AATEAEAR
EARREERHE(AE—ETE 25 BR
(EF) - BRRELHE) - HEEERBE LA -

Materials Co., Ltd (“Dongyue Organosilicone”), a connected subsidiary of
the Company, entered into the Renewed Raw Materials Master Supply
Agreement, pursuant to which the Company has agreed to supply raw
materials to Dongyue Organosilicone for its production and operations up to
31 December 2019. Details of the transaction are set out in the Company's
announcement dated 20 December 2018.

Pursuant to the renewed raw materials master supply agreement, the
Company has agreed to supply raw materials (including chloromethane,
steam, waste gas (hydrogen), liquid alkali and refrigerant) to Dongyue
Organosilicone for its production and operation purposes.
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Note 3:

Note 4:
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Dongyue Organosilicone is held as to 77% by Shandong Dongyue Future
Corporate Management Consultancy Services Co,, Ltd. (LR EEHRRDEES
AR AR ZAF]) (@ wholly owned subsidiary of the Company), 13% by
Zibo Xiaoxi Enterprise Management Partnership (1B AP EETESED
%) (“Zibo Xiaoxi”) and 10% by Cheung Shek Investment Limited (RAIXEH
BR A |)) (“Cheung Shek Investment”). Zibo Xiaoxi is a PRC limited partnership
in which Mr. Zhang Jianhong and Mr. Zhang Zhefeng (both are executive
Directors) together own more than 30% interest. Cheung Shek Investment
is directly controlled by Mr. Fu Kwan (an executive Director). Therefore,
each of Zibo Xiaoxi and Cheung Shek Investment is a connected person of
the Company at the issuer level. Accordingly, Dongyue Organosilicone is a
connected subsidiary of the Company.

Since the renewal agreement expired on 31 December 2019, the Company
had, on 31 December 2019 , entered into the second renewal raw materials
master supply agreement with Dongyue Organosilicone (see Note (2) below).

Reference to note (1) above, the raw materials master supply agreement
expired on 31 December 2019, the Company had, on 31 December 2019,
entered into the second renewed raw materials master supply agreement
with Dongyue Organosilicone, pursuant to which the Company has agreed
to supply raw materials to Dongyue Organosilicone for its production and
operations up to 31 December 2020. Details of the transaction are set out in
the Company’s announcement dated 31 December 2019.

On 26 July 2018, the Company and Marco-link Holding Finance Company
Limited (the "Marco-link Finance”) entered into the Supplemental Financial
Services Master Agreement, pursuant to which Marco-link Finance has agreed
to provide the Group with deposit services and loan services on normal
commercial terms in its ordinary and usual course of business for a term of
one year from 26 July 2018 to 25 July 2019. Details of the Supplemental FS
Agreement are set out in the Company’s announcement dated 26 July 2018.

Marco-link Finance is a connected person of the Company, which is a wholly-
owned subsidiary of Marco-link Holdings Limited, which indirectly holds
approximately 29.20% of the issued share capital of the Company. In addition,
Marco-link Holdings Limited is indirectly controlled by Mr. Fu Kwan (an
executive Director).

Since the Supplemental FS agreement is expired on 25 July 2019, the
Company had, on 25 July 2019, entered into the renewed financial services
master agreement with Marco-link Finance (see Note (4) below).

Reference to note (3) above, on 25 July 2019, the Company and Macro-link
Finance entered into the Renewed FS Agreement, pursuant to which Marco-
link Finance has agreed to continue to provide the Group with deposit
services and loan services on normal commercial terms in its ordinary and
usual course of business for a term of one year from 26 July 2019 to 25 July
2020.
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Note 5: On 1 March 2018, the Company and Dongyue Hydrogen entered into the
Raw Materials S&P Framework Agreement. Pursuant to the Agreement, the
Company has agreed to (i) supply raw materials to Dongyue Hydrogen for
its production and operation purposes (the “DY Raw Materials”), and (ii)
purchase raw materials and products from Dongyue Hydrogen for the Group's
production and on-selling to independent customers (the “Hydrogen Raw
Materials and Products”). Further details of the transaction are set out in the
announcement dated 1 March 2018.

Dongyue Hydrogen is held as to 40% by Shandong Huaxia Shenzhou New
Materials Co., Ltd., a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, 30% by
Huoer Guosi Xuri Equity Investment Partnership, (a connected person of the
Company) and 30% by Macro-link Holdings Limited (a connected person of
the Company), therefore, Dongyue Hydrogen is a connected subsidiary of the
Company,

Since the Raw Materials S&P Framework Agreement is expired on 28 February
2019, the Company had, on 1 March 2019, entered into the Renewed Raw
Materials S&P Framework Agreement with Dongyue Hydrogen (see Note (6)
below).

Note 6: Reference to note (5) above, on 1 March 2020, the Company and Dongyue
Hydrogen entered into the Renewed Raw Materials S&P Framework
Agreement, pursuant to which the Company agreed to supply and purchase
the raw material to Dongyue Hydrogen from 1 March 2019 and up to and
including 28 February 2021. Details of the transactions are set out in the
Company announcement dated 1 March 2019.

The aforesaid continuing connected transactions have been reviewed
by the INEDs. The INEDs confirmed that the aforesaid continuing
connected transactions were entered into (a) in the ordinary and usual
course of business of the Group; (b) either on normal commercial terms
or on terms no less favourable to the Group than terms available to or
from independent third parties; and (c) in accordance with the relevant
agreements governing them on terms that are fair and reasonable and
in the interests of the shareholders of the Company as a whole.

The Board engaged the auditors of the Company and the auditor has
confirmed the requirements set out in rule 14A.56 in respect of the
aforesaid continuing connected transactions.
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Related party transactions

The details of the related party transaction during the year are set out
in the note 34 to the consolidated financial statements. The related
party transactions are also the connected transactions (including the
continuing connected transactions) in Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules, which have been complied with the disclosure requirements in
accordance with Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

Sufficiency of public float

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company and
within the knowledge of the Directors, as at the date of this report, the
Company has maintained sufficient public float of the issued shares of
the Company as required under the Listing Rules.

Auditors

Elite Partners CPA Limited will retire as auditors of the Company and,
being eligible, offer themselves for re-appointment. A resolution for
the re-appointment of Elite Partners CPA Limited as auditors of the
Company will be proposed at the forthcoming AGM.

Permitted Indemnity Provision

The Articles of Association of the Company provides that the Directors
shall be indemnified and secured harmless out of the assets and profits
of the Company from and against all actions, costs, charges, losses,
damages and expenses which they may incur or sustain by reason of
any act done, concurred in or omitted in or about the execution of their
duty, or supposed duty, in their offices, provided that such indemnity
shall not extend to any matter in respect of any fraud or dishonesty.

On behalf of the Board

Zhang Jianhong
Chairman

The People’s Republic of China, 28 March 2020
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORTS

The board of Directors (the “Board”) of Dongyue Group Limited (the
“Company”) recognizes their mission of creating values and maximizing
returns to the shareholders of the Company (the “Shareholders”), while
at the same time fulfilling their corporate responsibilities. To this end,
we strive to promote and uphold the highest standard of corporate
governance.

The Board has reviewed the corporate governance practices of
the Company with the adoption and improvement of the various
procedures and documentation which are detailed in this report. To
the best knowledge and belief of the Directors, the Company has
adopted and complied with the code provisions of the Corporate
Governance Code contained in Appendix 14 of the Listing Rules (the
“Code") during the year ended 31 December 2019 and up to the date
of this report, except for deviation regarding the roles of chairman and
chief executive officer, the details of which have been disclosed in the
relevant paragraphs below in this report.

The Board

The Board is responsible for leadership and control of the Company
and its subsidiaries (together the “Group”), and oversees the Group's
businesses, strategic direction and performance. The Board delegates
the authority and responsibility to the Group’s management for the
management of the Group. In addition, the Board has also delegated
various responsibilities to the Board's Committees. The composition of
the Board is reviewed regularly to ensure that it has a good balance of
expertise, skills and experience which can meet the requirements of the
business of the Group.

During the year ended 31 December 2019 and up to the date of this
report, there was no change in the structure of the Board, which
currently comprises nine Directors and its composition is set out as
follows:
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Executive Directors (“EDs"):

Mr. Zhang Jianhong (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Fu Kwan

Mr. Liu Chuangi

Mr. Zhang Zhefeng (Vice President and Chief Financial Officer)
Mr. Zhang Bishu

Mr. Zhang Jian

Independent non-executive Directors (“INEDs"):

Mr. Ting Leung Huel, Stephen
Mr. Yang Xiaoyong
Mr. Yue Rundong

The brief biographical details of the Directors are set out in the “Directors’
and Senior Management's Profile” section on pages 25 to 29 of this
annual report.

The Company has three INEDs representing one-third of the Board.
At least one of the INEDs has appropriate professional qualifications
or accounting or related financial management expertise pursuant to
Rule 3.10 of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the HKSE
(the “Listing Rules”). The Board has received from each INED an annual
confirmation of his independence and considers that all the INEDs are
independent under the guidelines set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing
Rules.
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During the year under review, the Board was met regularly to discuss
the overall strategy as well as the operation and financial performance
of the Group, and to review and approve the Group's annual and
interim results, as well as corporate governance, business operations,
financial, capital, remuneration, acquisition and spin-off. During the
year under review, four Board meetings and an annual general meeting
("AGM") were held. The attendance of each Director at the Board
meetings and the AGM is set out as follows. In addition, certain matters
relating to entering of the continuing connected transaction and the
connected transaction were dealt with by written resolutions of the
directors.

During the year, the attendance of each Director at the Board meetings
is set out as follows:

HiE BT HERR
EEEERRHE BEXKE
Number of
Board meetings Attendance
attended/held of the AGM
BITES ! EDs:
REBRIE Mr. Zhang Jianhong 3/4 X
BELE Mr. Fu Kwan 2/4% X
RETEE Mr. Liu Chuangi 2/4* X
REIESTE Mr. Zhang Zhefeng 3/4 v
RNESE Mr. Zhang Bishu 2/4* X
REEAE Mr. Zhang Jian 3/4 X
BYFHTES: INEDs:
TREBEA Mr. Ting Leung Huel, Stephen 4/4 v
BT A Mr. Yang Xiaoyong 4/4 X
EEREE Mr. Yue Rundong 4/4 v/

* BRAERIEEZERKRREERFEHHRELEE

PN =3
EEEE -

*

Mr. Fu and Mr. Liu appointed representatives to attend the Board meetings on
their behalf during their absence.
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During the year ended 31 December 2019 the Board has dealt
with matters covering mainly the Group’s overall strategy, annual
and interim results, risk management, dividend policies, corporate
governance, capital, financial, investment and remuneration. The Board
has delegated the day-to-day operations of the Group to the senior
management under the supervision of the Board. In addition, the
Chairman held the discussion with all the INEDs without the presence
of other EDs to exchange views on matters concerning the business

development and internal control of the Group.

Board meetings are scheduled to be held regularly and as required
by business needs. At least 14 days' notice of regular Board meetings
(or reasonable notice for all other meetings) is normally given
to all Directors who are given an opportunity to include matters
for discussion in the agenda. The Company Secretary assists the
Chairman in preparing the agenda for meetings and ensures that all
applicable rules and regulations are complied with. The agenda and
the accompanying Board papers are normally sent to all Directors at
least 3 days before the intended date of a Board meeting. All minutes
are kept by the Company Secretary and are open for inspection at any

reasonable time on reasonable notice by any Director.

In facilitating the Directors to discharge their responsibilities as
stipulated under the Listing Rules, the Directors have been provided
with monthly updates giving a balanced and understandable
assessment of the Group's performance, position and prospects in
sufficient detail and with appropriate insurance cover to protect them
from potential risks arising from legal actions against them while they
discharge their duties.

Directors’ continuous professional development

The Directors are briefed on the amendments to or updates on
the relevant laws, rules and regulations. In addition, the Directors
are provided with written materials to develop and refresh their
professional skills. On 30 May 2019, the Company organized for the
Directors an in-house workshop (the “Workshop”) on the Listing Rules.
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According to the records maintained by the Company, the Directors
received the following training on continuous professional development
during the year under review:

EBEZHEEEREN
EE - RAR
ERNERER
Received training on
Corporate Governance/
Updates on laws,

rules and regulations

BiTES EDs:

SRIERSTE Mr. Zhang Jianhong v/
BELE Mr. Fu Kwan v/
ZETLE Mr. Liu Chuangi v/
R E 4 Mr. Zhang Zhefeng v/
RMNBLEE Mr. Zhang Bishu v/
REBEAE Mr. Zhang Jian v/
BYKBITES: INEDs:

TRERE Mr. Ting Leung Huel, Stephen v/
B A Mr. Yang Xiaoyong v/
ERmRAEE Mr. Yue Rundong v/

ESELXELSTNERE

EERBERSRELEE ANERERILTY
BRENEME - Rt - CXRERZEGRA(HS
BRE)EHARFANCEERABRRELERIALK
NEREETTRIMAREANNEBRE -

FEHBENARECEERLZE G | —&HF 4
RABCER o

Directors’ responsibilities in corporate governance

The Directors recognize the importance and their responsibilities for
maintaining a high standard of corporate governance. In this accord,
the corporate governance committee is responsible for, among
others, reviewing the Company’s policies and practices on corporate
governance and the Company's compliance with the Code and the
relevant disclosure in this report.

More details are set out under the relevant paragraphs of the section
headed “Corporate Governance Committee” of this report.
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Directors’ securities transactions

The Company has adopted a code of conduct regarding securities
transactions by Directors on terms no less exacting than the required
standard set out in the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Issuers set out in Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules.
Having made specific enquiry of all Directors, all Directors confirmed
they have complied with the required standard set out in the code of
conduct regarding securities transactions by Directors adopted by the
Company.

Roles of chairman and chief executive officer

Code A.2.1 of the Code stipulates that the roles of chairman and chief
executive officer should be separate and should not be performed
by the same individual. Mr. Zhang Jianhong is both the Chairman
and Chief Executive Officer of the Company. The Board believes that
vesting the roles of both Chairman and Chief Executive Officer in the
same position provides the Group with stronger and more consistent
leadership and allows for more effective planning. Further, the Board
considers that this structure will not impair the balance of power, which
has been closely monitored by the Board, which comprises experienced
and high caliber individuals. The Board has full confidence in Mr. Zhang
and believes that the current arrangement is beneficial to the business
prospect of the Group.

Appointment and re-election of Directors

The appointment of new Director(s) and other related matters have
been delegated to the Company’s Nomination Committee, which
would make recommendations to the Board on relevant matters
including the appointment or reappointment of the Directors of the
Company. The Board considers that the new Director(s) is expected to
have expertise in relevant area to make contribution to the Company
and to have sufficient time to participate in the decision making
process of the Company.
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All EDs of the Company did not enter into service contracts with the
Company. In addition, the INEDs signed a letter of appointment with
the Company for a term of approximately two years commencing from
1 January 2020.

Pursuant to the Company’s articles of association (the “Articles”), one-
third of the Directors for the time being (or if the number is not a
multiple of three, then the number nearest to but not less than one-
third) shall retire from office by rotation at each AGM in accordance
with the provisions of the Articles. Accordingly, all Directors shall be
subject to retirement by rotation and re-election at AGM under the
Articles.

Board committees

The Board has established a Remuneration Committee, an Audit
Committee, a Nomination Committee, a Corporate Governance
Committee and a Risk Management Committee, each of which has its
specific written terms of reference, which have been available on the
Company's and the HKSE's websites, and is chaired by INEDs (except
the Nomination Committee and the Corporate Governance Committee).
To further enhance independence, all the committees (except the
Corporate Governance Committee) include a majority of INEDs.

Remuneration committee

The Remuneration Committee comprises the Company’s two INEDs
and one ED, namely, Mr. Yang Xiaoyong (being the Chairman of the
Committee), Mr. Ting Leung Huel, Stephen and Mr. Zhang Jianhong.
The written terms of reference of the Remuneration Committee cover,
among other things, the review of the Group's policy and structure
for the remuneration for all the Directors and senior management of
the Group, the approval of the remuneration for all the EDs and senior
management of the Group, including the granting of options over
Shares to the Group’s employees and the EDs under the Company’s
Employee Option Scheme (if any), and the recommendation to the
Board for the remuneration for the INEDs.
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217 During the year ended 31 December 2019, one meeting of the

—ReE - SKEMHEBEREINT Remuneration Committee was held. The attendance of each member is
set out as follows:

BRLEEETHER
Number of
meetings
attended/held

FEEKE : Committee member:
BB LA Mr. Yang Xiaoyong v/
TREBEAE Mr. Ting Leung Huel, Stephen /
REREE Mr. Zhang Jianhong X
e@EHETEZER20019F 12431 LT EERH During the meeting, the remuneration of the EDs and the Group's

TEERAEESEEEASHF - ths -
BEEgXNBENRLEN TEERAKESEEE

ABWFMEASEZHMERER -

=]

G

BB B 5IanT

EEIEABREE2019F 128318 IEFEERNH

%= senior management for the financial year ended 31 December 2019
were approved. In addition, the members discussed and reviewed the
remuneration for the Directors and the Group’s senior management

and the Group's remuneration related matters.

The remuneration of the members of the senior management by band
for the year ended 31 December 2019 is set out below:

FEE(ET) A
Number of
Remuneration bands (HKD) persons

4,500,001,%8 7T 25,000,000/ 7T
10,500,0018 7T 2 11,000,00078 7T
20,000,001 7 £ 20,500,000 7T

RIE LR AN E 68T BN B BESFH N

RN

Afuke & E S ME — LB H R B REM
11120

4,500,001 to 5,000,000 1
10,500,001 to 11,000,000 1
20,000,001 to 20,500,000 1

Further particulars regarding Directors’ remuneration and the five
highest paid employees as required to be disclosed pursuant to
Appendix 16 to the Listing Rules are set out in notes 11 and 12 to the
financial statements.
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Audit committee

The Audit Committee comprises the Company’s three INEDs, namely,
Mr. Ting Leung Huel, Stephen (being the Chairman of the Committee
with appropriate professional qualification or accounting or related
financial management expertise), Mr. Yang Xiaoyong and Mr. Yue
Rundong.

The primary duties of the Audit Committee are to review the Company’s
annual reports and accounts, half-yearly reports and accounts and
to provide advice and comments thereon to the Board, to make
recommendation to the Board on the appointment, re-appointment
and removal of external auditors and to approve the remuneration and
terms of engagement of the external auditors. The Audit Committee
is also responsible for reviewing the financial reporting process and
internal control system of the Group and to give suggestions in these
regards.

The Audit Committee held five meetings during the year ended 31
December 2019 and the attendance of each member is set out as
follows:

HiE BT
ZEEERRE
Number of
Committee
meeting
attended/held

LZEGKE - Committee member:
TREBEAE Mr. Ting Leung Huel, Stephen 2/2
HEBEBELE Mr. Yang Xiaoyong 2/2
BEREE Mr. Yue Rundong 2/2

ARRINEBZEMEASERREREASNEG H

A AT A Ay
FEEE

The external auditors of the Company and the related management of
the Group also attended these meetings.
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During the meetings held in the financial year ended 31 December
2019, the Audit Committee has performed the works which are set out
as follows:

discuss and review auditing, internal controls, risk management
and financial reporting matters including the review of the annual/
interim reports, accounts and the related results announcements,
before recommending them to the Board for approval;

approve the remuneration for the audit and non-audit services
provided by the external auditors and its relevant terms of
engagement in respect of the financial year ended 31 December
2018; and

review the external audit findings, the accounting principles and
practices adopted by the Group, the Listing Rules and statutory
compliance in relation to the financial reporting.

On 30 November 2018, the Audit Committee conducted pre-audit
meeting with the external auditors in respect of the audit of the
financial statements of the Group for the financial year ended 31
December 2019. The Audit Committee also had a meeting with
management on 24 March 2020 to review the accounting standards
and practices adopted by the Group and to discuss matters regarding
internal control and financial reporting including the review of the
Group’s annual results for the year ended 31 December 2019 before
proposing to the Board for approval.
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Nomination committee

The Company established a Nomination Committee with written terms
of reference on 18 March 2012 to be responsible for the appointment
of new Director(s) of the Company and other related matters. Mr.
Zhang Jianhong was appointed as the chairman of the Nomination
Committee and Mr. Ting Leung Huel, Stephen and Mr. Yang Xiaoyong
were appointed as the members of the Nomination Committee.
The primary duties of the Nomination Committee are to review the
structure, size and composition (including the skills, knowledge,
experience and diversity) of the Board, to identify individuals suitably
qualified to become members of the Board, to assess the independence
of the INEDs, to review the policy (the “Policy”) concerning the diversity
of the Board and the measurable objectives that the Board has adopted
for implementing the Policy and to make the relevant disclosure on
the progress of achieving those objectives in the corporate governance
report of the Company.

The Nomination Committee held one meeting during the year ended

—REg&®k  SKEMERBERNOT 31 December 2019 and the attendance of each member is set out as
follows:

gREERR
Attendance of
the meeting

ZEEKE : Committee member:
REREE Mr. Zhang Jianhong v
TRE\BEE Mr. Ting Leung Huel, Stephen v
BRB LA Mr. Yang Xiaoyong /
e LZEeKBilm I ESeNEKIERE During the meeting, the members discussed matters relating to the
B UittmESeER#HEERSENUMHEE -5 composition of the Board and make recommendation thereon to the

%%A;ﬂzé Zilt RERAFRKELEEES
Efﬁ%%fﬁi e =% X R FE BR A AT ORI 8 B AR SR
- RIS T B ST TE EMELE -

Board for consideration, the diversity of the Board, the re-election of the
directors at AGM, the recommendation of the measurable objectives
that the Board should adopt for implementing the Policy as well as
reviewed the independence of the INEDs.
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In addition, a summary of the Policy for the diversity of the Board is set

out as follows:

A.

Policy Statement

The Company recognizes and embraces the benefits of having a
diverse Board. A truly diverse Board will include and make good
use of differences in the skills, regional and industry experience,
background, race, gender and other qualities of Directors. These
differences will be taken into account in determining the optimum
composition of the Board. All Board appointments will be based
on meritocracy, and candidates will be considered against
objective criteria, having due regard for the benefits of diversity of
the Board.

Measurable Objectives

The Nomination Committee will discuss and agree annually
measurable objectives for implementing diversity on the Board
and recommend to the Board for adoption.

The Company aims to build and maintain a Board with a diversity
of Directors, in terms of skills, experiences, knowledge, expertise,
culture, independence, age and gender.

Monitoring and Reporting

The Nomination Committee will report annually, in the Corporate
Governance Report, on the Board’s composition under diversified
perspectives, and monitor the implementation of the Policy.

A summary of the Policy, together with the measurable objectives
set for implementing the Policy and the progress made towards
achieving those objectives will be disclosed in the Corporate
Governance Report.

Review of the Policy

The Nomination Committee will review the Policy, as appropriate,
and recommend any proposed changes to the Board for approval.
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The Board has adopted the following measurable objectives during the
year ended 31 December 2018:

Inclusion of candidates for Board members with overseas

academic, research or working experience (outside of PRC);

ensuring that there is no limitation on gender on selection of
Directors; and

inclusion of candidates for Board members with working
experience in other industries.

During the year, the Board achieved the above measurable objectives
by which the Board had included both male and female candidates
with overseas academic, research or working experience in other
industries in the selection of Directors.

Corporate Governance Committee

The Company established a Corporate Governance Committee
with terms of reference on 21 March 2013. Mr. Zhang Jianhong was
appointed as the chairman of the Corporate Governance Committee
and Mr. Liu Chuangi and Mr. Zhang Bishu were appointed as the
members of the Corporate Governance Committee. The primary
duties of the Corporate Governance Committee are to develop and
review policies and practices on corporate governance and make
recommendations to the Board, to review and monitor the training
and continuous professional development of Directors, to review
and monitor policies and practices on compliance with legal and
regulatory requirements and to review the compliance with the Code
and disclosure in the Corporate Governance Reports. During the year,
no Corporate Governance Committee meeting was held. Instead, the
approval of corporate governance report were dealt with by written
resolution of the members.
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Risk Management Committee

The Company established a Risk Management Committee with written
terms of reference on 13 August 2015 to review and advise the risk
management and internal control of the Company and other related
matters. Mr. Ting Leung Huel, Stephen was appointed as the chairman
of the Risk Management Committee and Mr. Yang Xiaoyong and Mr.
Yue Rundong were appointed as the members of the Risk Management
Committee. The primary duties of the Risk Management Committee are to
consider, review and approve the risk management policies, identify the
risk of the Group, approve major decisions affecting the Group’s risk profile
or exposure, consider the effectiveness of decision making processes in
crisis and emergency situations and review the effectiveness and resources
of the internal control systems of the Group.

The Risk Management Committee held two meetings during the year
under review. The attendance of each member is set out as follows:

HE BT
ZEEERRY
Number of
Committee meeting
attended/held

ZEEKE Committee member:

TRERE Mr. Ting Leung Huel, Stephen 2/2
BB LA Mr. Yang Xiaoyong 2/2
EHEREE Mr. Yue Rundong 2/2

REBZE2019F 12 A3 B I BRFEERTNEZ
o RRERREREESHAER S kERT
ERAARENEPE IR R BUR M EEBIERA
EENURABELERE (BBUEADARRR)

During the meetings held in the financial year ended 31 December
2019, the members discussed and reviewed matters relating to
the Company’s internal control measures and polices and its
implementation, and the internal control report (prepared by the
independent consulting firm), before recommending them to the Board
for approval.
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Respective responsibilities of Directors and
external auditors

The Directors are responsible for the preparation of the financial statements,
which give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Group and of
the Group's results and cash flows. The external auditors are responsible
to form an independent opinion, based on the audit, on the financial
statements prepared by the Directors and report the opinion solely to the
members of the Company as a body and for no other purpose.

Risk management and internal control

The Board of Directors is responsible for assessing and determining
the nature and extent of the risks that the Group is willing to accept
in reaching its strategic objectives and to ensure that the Group has
established and maintained appropriate and effective risk management
and internal control systems. The Board of Directors has supervised
the management’s design, implementation and monitoring of risk
management and internal control systems. The Board confirmed that
it is responsible for establishing risk management and internal control
systems for the Group and will continue to monitor the system and
ensure to review the effectiveness of the risk management and internal
control systems of the Company and its principal subsidiaries at least
once a year.

The Company’s Board of Directors, Audit Committee and Risk
Management Committee have also confirmed that they have reviewed
the effectiveness of the risk management and internal control systems
of the Group and its principal subsidiaries, covering all important
monitoring aspects of the Group, including strategic, financial,
operational and compliance monitoring.

The Company has set up internal audit function. The Company has also
conducted procedures of risk management, which mainly include:

1) identify risk and form risk list;

2) Based on the possibility of various types of potential risks and
the concerns of the management of the Group, combined with
the risk of financial losses, make risk assessment on the impact
of operational efficiency, sustainable development capacity and
reputation, and prioritize them;
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Identify risk management measures for significant risks, conduct
evaluations of the design of risk management measures, and
improve the deficiencies through formulating measures;

Develop risk management manuals for risk management, identify
the responsibilities for the management, Board of Directors, Audit
Committee and Risk Management Committee in risk management,
and continuously monitor risk management;

The management has reported to the Audit Committee and Risk
Management Committee on the review and assessment of risk
management, major risk factors and related response measures.

However, risk management and internal control systems are designed

to manage rather than eliminate the risk of failing to reach a business

goal, and to make reasonable, not absolute, warranties of no significant

misrepresentation or loss.

Set out below is the Company’s procedures and internal controls for

handling and distributing inside information:

The Company acknowledges its obligations under the Securities
and Futures Ordinance and the Listing Rules. The first principle
is that the information should be immediately published when
the Company is aware of and/or when the related decision is
made, unless such inside information falls under the Safe Harbour
Provisions under the Securities and Futures Ordinance;

In dealing with the matters, adhere to the Guidelines on
Disclosure of Inside Information promulgated by the Securities
and Futures Commission in June 2012 and the “Recent Economic
Developments and the Disclosure Obligations of Listed Issuers”
issued by the SEHK in 2008; and

Unauthorized use of confidential or inside information has been
expressly prohibited in the internal system.
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The Board has reviewed the effectiveness of risk management and
internal control systems during the year under review and considered
them to be effective and adequate. The Board will continuously
improve and monitor the effectiveness of risk management and internal
control systems.

External auditor’'s remuneration

For the year ended 31 December 2019, the total remuneration for
the audit services provided by the external auditors amounted to
HK$2,800,000 (approximately RMB2,467,000).

For the year ended 31 December 2019, the total remuneration for
the permissible non-audit services provided by the external auditors
amounted to approximately HK$700,000 (approximately RMB615,406)
which is for the review of the interim financial report of the Group for the
six months period ended 30 June 2019.

The re-appointment of Elite Partners CPA Limited as auditor of the Company
has been recommended by the Audit Committee and endorsed by the
Board and is subject to approval by the Shareholders at the forthcoming
AGM.

Shareholders’ rights

Procedures for the Shareholders to convene extraordinary
general meetings (“EGM")

Pursuant to the Articles, one or more registered Shareholders holding
not less than one-tenth (10%) of the paid up capital of the Company (the
“EGM Requisitionists”) carrying right of voting at the general meetings
can deposit a written requisition to convene an EGM to the Board
or the Company Secretary at the registered office, which is presently
situated at Vistra (Cayman) Limited, P.O. Box 31119, Grand Pavilion,
Hibiscus Way, 802 West Bay Road, Grand Cayman, KY1-1205, Cayman
Islands, or its office in Hong Kong, which is presently situated at Unit
02, 15/F, Capital Centre, 151
EGM Requisitionists must state in their requisition the businesses of the

Gloucester Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong. The

EGM to be transacted and such requisition must be signed by all the
EGM Requisitionists.
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Promptly after confirmation that the EGM Requisitionists’ requisition is
in order, the Company Secretary will arrange with the Board to convene
the EGM by serving sufficient notice to all the registered Shareholders
in accordance with all the relevant statutory requirements. According
to the Articles, the EGM shall be held within two months after the
deposit of the requisition. If within twenty-one days of the deposit of
the requisition, the Board fails to proceed to convene the EGM, the
EGM Requisitionists may do so in the same manner, and all reasonable
expenses incurred by them as a result of failure of the Board shall be
reimbursed to the EGM Requisitionists by the Company.

Procedures for the Shareholders to put forward proposals
at a general meeting

To put forward proposals at AGM or EGM, the Shareholders should
submit a written notice of those proposals with their detailed contact
information to the Board or the Company Secretary at Unit 02, 15/F,
Capital Center, 151 Gloucester Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong. The request
will be verified and upon confirmation that the request is proper and
in order, the Company Secretary will request the Board to include the
resolution in the agenda for the general meeting.

The notice period to be given to all the Shareholders for consideration
of the proposal raised by the Shareholders concerned at AGM or SGM
varies according to the nature of the proposal, as follows:

At least 14 clear days' notice in writing if the proposal constitutes
an ordinary resolution of the Company in EGM

At least 21 clear days’ notice in writing if the proposal constitutes
a special resolution of the Company in EGM or an ordinary or
special resolution of the Company in AGM

Procedures for the Shareholders to propose a person
for election as a Director

As regards the procedures for proposing a person for election as
a Director, please refer to the procedures made available on the
Company's website www.dongyuechem.com.
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Procedures for directing Shareholders’ enquiries to the
Board

Shareholders may at any time send their enquiries and concerns to the
Board in writing through the Company Secretary whose contact details
are as follows:

Unit 02, 15/F

Capital Centre,

151 Gloucester Road
Wanchai, Hong Kong

Fax: 2180-7524

Email: carrie_dy@hotmail.com

Shareholders may also make enquiries with the Board at any general
meetings of the Company.

Investor relations
Communication channels

In order to develop and maintain continuing relationships with the
Shareholders, the Company has established various channels to
facilitate and enhance communication:

the AGM provides a forum for the Shareholders to raise comments
and exchange views with the Board; and

updated key information of the Group is available on the
Company's website to enable the Shareholders and the investor
community to have timely access to information about the Group.

The Chairman and the Directors (including the chairmen and/or the
members of the various Board Committees) are available at AGM to
answer questions raised by the Shareholders.
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Change in the constitutional documents of
the Company

During the year under review and up to the date of this report, there
has been no change in the constitutional documents of the Company.

On behalf of the Board

Zhang Jianhong
Chairman

The People’s Republic of China, 28 March 2020
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About the report

Time frame

The report covers from 1 January 2019 to 31 December 2019,
while partial contents are beyond the above time frame.

Publication cycle

The environmental, social and governance report of Dongyue
Group Limited is published on an annual basis.

Scope of report

The report covers the headquarters of Dongyue Group
Limited and its subsidiaries including: Dongyue Fluorosilicone
Science and Technology Group Co., Ltd., Shangdong Dongyue
Chemical Co., Limited, Shandong Dongyue Polymers Co., Ltd,,
Shandong Dongyue Fluo-Silicon Materials Co., Ltd., Shandong
Huaxia Shenzhou New Materials Co., Ltd., Shandong Dongyue
Organosilicon Materials Co., Ltd, Inner Mongolia Dongyue Peak
Fluorine Chemicals Co., Ltd., Inner Mongolia Dongyue Fluorine
Chemicals Co., Ltd., Chifeng HuaSheng Mining Co., Ltd., Dongying
Dongyue Salt Co., Ltd,, Dongying Dongyue Precision Chemicals
Co., Ltd., Shandong Dongyue Wenhe Fluorine Chemicals Co,, Ltd.,
Shandong Dongyue Union Property Co., Ltd.,, Huangtai Dongyue
International Trade Co., Ltd., Hong Kong Trulene International
Trade Co., Ltd., Shandong Dongyue Future Hydrogen Energy
Materials Co., Ltd.,, Shandong Boda Real Estate Development Co,,
Ltd., Zhangjiajie Xinye Real Estate Development Co., Ltd., Zibo
Herun Shuiwu company Limited.

Basis of preparation

The report has been prepared in reference to the Environmental,
Social and Governance Reporting Guide of the Hong Kong Stock
Exchange.
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Explanations on short names

For ease of presentation, “Dongyue Group Limited” is expressed

as “Dongyue Group”, “the Group”’, “the Company” and “we”, “our”

or “us” in the report.

Explanations on Information

Historical data cited in the report is the final statistical data. In
case of any discrepancy between financial data and annual report,
the latter shall prevail. Unless otherwise stated, Renminbi is used
in the report as functional currency.

Access to report

The report is prepared in Chinese and English, which can
be downloaded electronically from: The website of HKSE
http://sc.hkex.com.hk; The website of Dongyue Group Limited
http://www.dongyuechem.com/

ESG Management

Upholding the concept of sustainable development and ensuring

efficient ESG management, the Company developed an ESG

management system guided by the Board, organized by task groups

and implemented by relevant functional departments. The ESG

management system also identified the specific division of work and

responsibilities at the ESG levels.
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including formulating relevant strategies and guidelines and performing special reviews
on the annual ESG report.
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The Company established a special task group in the investor relations department for
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coordinating ESG management related tasks on a daily basis, including the preparation
of the annual ESG report, collection of ESG performance indicators and organization of
training and promotion.
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Respective functional departments and subsidiaries of the Company were responsible

types of ESG activities.

for the centralized management of ESG issues, and regular reports of relevant
management initiatives, performance indicators and best practices and organizing all

Stakeholders Engagement

V1

pel

Dongyue Group attaches great importance to the communication
with stakeholders by using various channels to disseminate the
Group's social responsibility philosophy and practices, and understand

the requirements of stakeholders, and taking measures to meet the

reasonable expectations and pursuits of stakeholders.
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Government and regulators
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Implementing the national policies, laws and
regulations
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Promoting local economic development
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Driving local employment

TEREE

Production safety

¥R

Submitting the documents

BEEBE

Offering advice and suggestions
HBER

Special subject report
BEEE

Inspection & supervision
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Returns on investment
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Fulfilling the contractual obligations in
accordance with the law

BMELE

Integrity operation
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Quality products and services
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Promoting industry development
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Compliant emission
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Energy conservation and emission reduction
TRAEERE

Protecting the ecology
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Rights and interests protection

BEREE
Occupational health
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Salaries and benefits
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Career development
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Improving the community environment
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Participating in public welfare undertakings
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Open and transparent information
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Company announcement
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Special subject report
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Field investigation
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Business communication

BERE

Customer feedback
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Exchange & discussion
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Negotiation & cooperation
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Work report
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Filing and submission
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Investigation & inspection
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Workers' congress
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Collective consultation
REEATA

Democratic communication platform
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Company website
NCIVN

Company announcement
IR

Interview & communication
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BEAMEEHATE Determination of Major Issues
AR RS EE S - AEHMRIERSE  In order to enhance the pertinence and responsiveness of the report,
EXGHGRE @ REAREIESIIHNELK - the Company identified the subject of sustainable development and

SR SENEZEWHTEAMHT - ®FH  determined the significance in accordance with the requirements of

EWBRNEELEBEEAREEMAZMEBAE  Hong Kong Stock Exchange’s Environmental, Social and Governance

FRERER Reporting Guide (ESG Guide), to ensure that the information disclosed
in the report covers the key issues which are relevant to the Company’s
development and the shareholders’ concerns.
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Selection process of environmental, social and governance issues

RERIR Sources of issues
—RRERERZ — Proposed by management of the Company
— NINBER DI - Proposed by internal and external experts based on analysis
—EBEESN ~ Analysis of media information
— B INE Z T — Research on benchmarking with domestic and overseas peers
— M EREIFERER — Criteria and guidance on social responsibility
R Selection criteria
— ¥R FEERENTE — Contribution to sustainable development
—N=AEE S LT — Common concern of stakeholders
—HEEFAEEEERRH ~ Emphasized in social responsibility- related guidance
—HERAERERTE ~ Meeting the strategic development needs of the Company
BEAMHAEER Determination of significance
= 4
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Promoting industry development R&D innovation
BIRRRE EERE
Protection of employees’ rights Production safety
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“gl E Supplier management Compliant operation
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Responsible Operation

Dongyue Group persistently adhered to the concept of

responsible operation, integrated responsible operation into the

daily operation and future planning of the Group, and persistently

followed the operation concept of integrity and compliance.

The Group continued to improve product quality and provide

quality products, actively performed its responsibilities towards

stakeholders such as suppliers and customers to provide quality

services, and coordinated and managed various resources to

assure supply.

1.1

Integrity and Compliance

Dongyue Group adhered to its business ethics of “embracing
all with a high virtue, building itself on integrity” and
integrated this ethics into the daily operation of the Group.
In the process of building an excellent goodwill, the Group
adhered to the notion of legal compliance. The Group
required all employees to strictly comply with the industry
norm, and improved its capability of corporate governance
according to the laws in an all-round way.

To build a corruption-free working environment, the Group
strictly comply with the Opinions on Issues Concerning
the Application of Law in the Handling of Criminal Cases
of Commercial Briberies, Interpretation on Several Issues
Concerning the Application of Law in the Handling of
Criminal Cases of Embezzlement and Bribery and other laws
and regulations, and continued to improve its governance
mechanism against corruption and strengthened its
institutional improvement on an ongoing basis. The
Company developed the Dongyue Group Risk Management
Manual to improve its risk management system, and to
identify and control the Company’s risk. The Company also
developed the Dongyue Group Regulations on Anti-fraud
Management to regulate employee professional behavior
and prevent fraud.
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In 2019, the Disciplinary Inspection Department issued the
Requirement of Order and Discipline for Party Members
and Cadres of the Group During the Chinese New Year,
and reiterated the Eight Rules for the Party Cadres of
the Group during the Chinese New Year. In accordance
with the general requirements of “building firm lines of
defense, protecting cadres, strengthening supervision, and
celebrating festival with integrity” set forth by the Party
Committee of the Group, the Disciplinary Committee of the
Group reiterated the requirement for cadres and employees
to celebrate festival with integrity. In addition, the Group
organized the collection of the the kinship profile of party
members and cadres, and implemented the disclosure
of matters related to the authority of party members
and cadres. Meanwhile, the Group has kept in mind the
requirements set by party committees and discipline
inspection committees at all levels of strengthening the
creation of a corporate culture of integrity, and reiterated
the Rules regarding Weddings and Funerals of Party
Members and Cadres of Dongyue Group which forbade
party cadres from organizing extravagant weddings and
funerals, requiring them to adhere to the principle of thrift
and integrity.

The Group established independent reporting mailboxes
and reporting hotlines to encourage the reporting of fraud,
illegal and corrupt conducts. Establishment of systems,
integrity education, reporting supervisions and other
approaches also facilitated the healthy development of the
Company.
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In 2019, there were two accumulative concluded legal cases
regarding corrupt practices of the Group, namely, litigation
case of RMB200 million of guarantee deposits recovered by
Dongyue Chemicals™* ! and RMB300 million of guarantee
deposits recovered by Dongyue Polymersho 2. All the cases
have been written off as part of the lump sum assets in the
consolidated financial statements of FY2015, therefore, the
Board considers that the Supreme Court’s decision will not
have a material adverse impact on the business, operation
and financial position of the Company.

In addition, the Group carried out a series of legal
education activities for anti-corruption in 2019 to enhance
development of the legal system:

Note I: For details, please refer to the announcement "Voluntary
announcement - Update on Legal Proceedings in the PRC"
issued by the Company on 18 January 2019.

Note 2: For details, please refer to the announcement “Voluntary

announcement — Update on Legal Proceedings in the PRC”
issued by the Company on 13 August 2019.
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On 31 January, a legal training activity at the
Group's workers school was organized for marketing
personnel of the Group, with a total of approximately
200 employees participating in the event.

On 21 June, in order to raise awareness on legal
risks of the Group’s management personnel and
strengthen the prevention and control of criminal
legal risks, Mr. Tian Wenchang, the Company’s legal
adviser and a renowned lawyer, was invited to
present the Report on Corporate Criminal Legal Risk
Prevention and Protection of Organic Rights and
Interests, with more than 150 employees present.

The legal department conducted pre-employment
legal education training on the topic of Law
Concerns Everyone (GEFERHIE)) for all newly
recruited employees in 2019, with a large number of
participants.

1.2 Quality Products

Quality products determine the core competitiveness of
the Group, and represent the true value of the Group. The
Company established rules such as the Quality System
Management Manual, Quality Management System and
Measures for the Implementation of Quality Management
Assessment based on the Product Quality Law of the
People’s Republic of China so as to make strict control
of the full life cycle of the product such as raw material
purchasing, manufacturing and quality inspection and
every other stages of the production and operation
process. Meanwhile, in order to strengthen quality control
on equipment and implement the system of responsibility,
the Company formulated the Quality Management System
on Procurement of the Group’s Equipment. In 2019, the
Group established a comprehensive management system
for Dongyue by compiling the contents of DuPont's
management solutions of equipment, environmental
management system, occupational health, quality control,
technology control and safety control.



1.3

%

EREBEEREERKMmBRIE
FF IﬂTﬂiﬂTTEuuﬁAﬂ%ﬁwﬁi 17 BB
ARmEHERREF)HEENTAR
mETRE  BRATFRERHSEE

DU

mémomw¢'$%@$¥$§ﬁ
EUR = -
ZER AEBETNLRERELIS

RAGIAREEEERZERIR - £
BTETZERHECRRELBIMNT
SRR - Kt MBEAREERSE
— RHEF-RKe =% BR -8
2 1Bh EH RUZFEARNINESR
ENBHFHER -

BER®

REB LT +oEREEFHER -
BAOREHREBENEFRY - ~&E
RBZBEBERT PR RIRTER
. NEE - BHER BEFEH -
HBEFPEEE - AR - RAITHE

BEFNEEER  SHHEFRHF -

KIBCEPIRFEEIE T R
B -RASW BT ERE
£ Igﬁ%hm THEHEBNR RN
;E °

i

FEBTBZ D FRARSHBFEBE
BoOBBTRAEFEEEEEEHE
BEREMHER  REEERBENG

BEEM IR ZAREZAERAE
FlR#EE H BREXFEEER -

B HERERRSE

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

1.3

The Group has strictly executed the product inspection
process following national standards and the finished
product inspection procedures, and disposed of the
unaccepted products in accordance with the Non-
conforming Product Control & Management Procedures to
ensure the provision of high-quality products to customers.
In 2019, there was no products recall of the Group.

Over the years, Shandong Dongyue Chemicals Co., Ltd,,
a subsidiary company of the Group, has a worldwide
reputation for providing high-quality products, leading
the market with its primary products, green environmental
refrigerant, which ranked first in terms of size, technology
and market share over the world; and it is an excellent
supplier to domestic and overseas famous enterprises
including DuPont, Daikin, Mitsubishi, Haier, Hisense, Gree,
Midea and Changhong.

Quality Services

The Group attached great importance to communication
with customers and was committed to offering quality
service to customers. The Group has, through a variety
of channels, maintained the long-term and stable
contact details with customers, such as phone call, mail
communication, customer visit, customer annual meeting
etc. Meanwhile, the Company attached great importance
to the feedbacks from customers, conducted timely
investigation, reason analysis, measure formulation and
feedbacks regarding to customer complaints according to
the Customer Complaint Management Measures, and kept
tracking and improving such measures.

In view of its own business characteristics, each subsidiary
companies of the Group understood the individual needs
of customers through different customer relationship
maintenance channels, provided quality services and
products, and strived to comprehensively improve quality
of customer service in every aspect so as to achieve mutual
benefits with customers.

Dongyue Group Limited Annual Report 2019 i
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1.4 Assuring Supply

The Group assured quality of supplied products through
supplier management and procurement management. In
line with the Dongyue Group Materials Purchasing Process,
the Group strengthened the management of all aspects
of procurement, and ensured the smooth production
through effective control of the supply of materials. At
the same time, the Group optimized the relevant process
system through a detailed evaluation criteria for suppliers,
as well as verified the production qualification and sales
performance of suppliers on the basis of the Supplier
Management System, so as to assist suppliers to improve
their performance and achieve win-win cooperation with
suppliers.

Currently, the Group's suppliers are divided into three
categories according to the scope of supplied products:
major raw material suppliers, suppliers of packaging and
auxiliary materials, and suppliers of production equipment
and other equipment. As of the end of the reporting period,
the Group had a total of 1,039 registered compliance
suppliers, of which 651 were manufacturers, and the
manufacturer optimization rate accounted for 62.66%,
exceeding the optimization rate of 60% as specified in the
assessment documents.

HERE it E D
Geographical Distribution of Suppliers
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In 2019, the Group held the annual meeting of the
industrial chain, conducted training on quality for suppliers
of the Group, refined supplier's understanding on the
quality requirements of the Group, and introduced in
detail the quality requirements, inspection methods and
traceability of products provided by the Group to the
suppliers, with around 200 suppliers attending the annual
meeting.

Led by Innovation

Dongyue Group upholds the national strategy of “Made in
China 2025" as its core guidelines while continuously optimizing
its technological innovation system, actively promoting the
development and innovation of fluorine technologies and
products, and vigorously converting innovative ideas into new
products. The Company actively carries out technical cooperation
and communications, and integrates the internal and external
resources to enhance its industrial influence and lead the
development of fluorine technologies. In 2019, the Company
invested a total of RMB329.242 million in its R&D activities.

2.1 Inspire Technology Innovation

Dongyue Group has always believed that strong capability
in R&D innovation is not only an important factor for
the Company to maintain its core competitiveness, but
also a guarantee for the sustained and steady growth
of its core business. The research and development of
Dongyue Group focuses on fluorosilicic chemical products,
materials of high-performance fluorosilicic membrane and
production processes, taking into account the performance,
environmental and social impacts during the research and
development process, and firmly believes that long-term
and stable growth needs to be driven by environmental
protection as well as social contribution.
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Dongyue Group has formulated administrative guidelines,
namely Patent Management System of Dongyue Group,
Application Process for Invention and Innovation, Patent
Appraisal & Approval System and Incentive Scheme
for Technological Innovation in Dongyue Group to
standardize procedures of application, evaluation and
awarding of patents, make clear details in respect of
the review of patents during the application process
and after authorization, and specify the details of the
incentives for technological innovation, etc., thus
strengthening the Company’s patents, inventions and
innovations management. The Company improves its
technological R&D management expertise in accordance
with the Administrative Measures for Investments in the
Construction, Refurbishment and Expansion Projects of
Dongyue Group, and guides its affiliates and subsidiaries
through the certification process of their management
systems for intellectual property management specifications
and standards under the Intellectual Property Management
Standards for Business Enterprises (20490-2013) to promote
the standardization of its intellectual property management.

Dongyue Group has extensively cooperated with
universities and research institutions and set up 20 joint
laboratories, including an organic silicone laboratory
with Shandong University, a perfluoropolyether catalyst
laboratory with Shanghai Institute of Technology, and a
national 1000-person workstation with Southern University
of Science and Technology, forming a research mechanism
for the integration, combination and coordination between
non-local R&D centers and joint laboratories, and research
institutes in the campus and research institutes of various

companies.
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In 2019, Dongyue Group received patent subsidies totaling
RMB1.655 million, completed the annual patent application
plan beyond expectation, applied for a total of 84 patents
and was granted approval of 20 patents. The Company’s
patent “lon Exchange Membrane with High Current
Efficiency and its Preparation Method and Application”
won the Patent Gold Award of China Membrane Industry
Association, and the other three patents won the first
prize of Patent Award and the Outstanding Award of the
fluorosilicic industry in China. The Company's project
“Research on Technology of High-density Low-pore
Pressure Chlorinated lon-exchange Membrane” won the
first prize of Science and Technology Progress Award of
the China Petroleum and Chemical Industry Federation;
while the chlorinated ion-exchange membrane and fuel
cell membrane have been listed in the First Batch of
Application Demonstration Directory for Key New Materials
(Annual Edition) of the Ministry of Industry and Information
Technology of the PRC, and the polychlorotrifluoroethylene
project has been included in the provincial national patent
navigation project. Dongyue Group has implemented the
standardization management of intellectual property rights
and gradually started the research on patent retrieval and
analysis, which the informatization of archives management
has allowed Dongyue Group to become the benchmarking
enterprise of archives management in Zibo City. As of
2019, the Group has a total of 371 national patents, 21
international patents, and 46 trademarks.
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to meet requirements of market and customers has always
been the ideology of Dongyue Group's research and
development of science and technology in general.

Dongyue Group clearly divides stages of product

sl

development and achievement transformation:
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phase

In the process of achievement transformation, each
department demonstrates flexibility in division of labor
and collaborates, ensures sufficient interactions and
communication with customers, analyzes market trends,
and responds to customer and market demands. After the
commercialization of innovative products, the Company
continues to pay close attention to customer usages,
actively gathers and digests feedback, and constantly

improves and upgrades the innovative achievements.
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In 2019, Dongyue Group has attained remarkable
innovative achievements and a number of products have
been successfully launched into the market and employed.
As the world’s largest manufacturer of PTFE (a synthetic
fluoropolymer with high level of resistance to temperature
changes, electrical insulation, aging and chemical resistant
that is used as a coating material and can also be further
processed into high-end fine chemicals which can be
widely applied in the chemicals, construction, electrical
and electronics and automotive industries), Dongyue
Group launched five PTFE products which are free of PFOA
(@ workplace hazardous substance), focusing on creating
healthy innovative products of high-quality. Production
capacity of Dongyue Group's PVDF (a fluorine coating
resin, fluorinated powder coating resin and lithium battery
electrode binding material) ranked first in China. In 2019,
the Company launched a new PVDF product, which would
be mainly used in the field of new energy to produce
lithium-ion battery, filling gaps in the domestic market.

In 2019, Dongyue Group actively implemented scientific
and technological policies to promote the transfer and
transformation of scientific and technological achievements.
The two scientific and technological achievements
of “high-density low-pore pressure chlorinated ion-
exchange membrane” and "development of ethylene
tetrafluoroethylene resin” were accredited by the China
Petroleum and Chemical Industry Federation. Surpassing
the foreign technology of chlorinated ion-exchange
membrane and breaking up monopolies are of great
significance in promoting the Company’s scientific and
technological research and development progress.

Nurturing Leading Talents

Dongyue Group has a high regard for talent nurturing, and
believes that a pool of high-calibre human resources serves
as the cornerstone of scientific research and development.
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2.4

Dongyue Group initiated the campaign of “Where there
is the talent, there is Dongyue”. Apart from its places of
operation, the Group has founded R&D technology support
centers in Beijing, Shanghai, Shenzhen, Japan and Canada,
attracting scientific research talents from major cities for
the high-quality development of Dongyue Group.

Dongyue Group makes clear the incentive mechanism for
scientific and technological innovation and arouses the
initiatives and enthusiasm of scientific and technological
personnel to carry out innovation research through the
formulation of a series of mechanisms, including the
Administrative Measures for Scientific Research Initiatives
and the Methods for Research Achievements Incentives
and Selection of Outstanding Scientific Research Talents in
the Research Institute. Taking Dongyue Research Institute
as the leading scientific research unit, the Company aims
at building a R&D team of technical talents. As of 2019,
Dongyue Research Institute has 135 employees, including
10 doctoral postgraduates, 34 master postgraduates
and 45 undergraduates, and 65.9% of employees of the
institute are researchers. The Group’s “621" Taishan Scholars
Climbing Plan going strong. Through the concerted efforts
of functional departments and R&D departments, significant
progress has been made. Beijing, Shanghai, Shenzhen, as
well as Japan and Canada R&D centers have all been in
operation, establishing 16 joint laboratories with universities
and research institutes, and carried out 46 cooperative
projects. Together with the integration of 215 various high-
end talents in the industry, the Group has initially formed
a new type of scientific research mechanism and system
focusing on the frontier, internal and external collaboration
and division of labor and integration.

Leading Industry Development

While developing its own business, Dongyue Group drives
the coordinated development of the whole industry and
unblocks the channels for the transformation of technology
into economic benefits through building a platform
for cooperation and communication with the research
institutes, industry associations, and authoritative experts.
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As the vice chairman of the Fluorosilicone Association, a
director of the China Petroleum and Chemical Industry
Federation, chairman of the Fluoroplastics Processing
Association, and the deputy secretary-general of the
Membrane Industry Association, the Company actively
organizes and presides over the academic exchange
meetings of the fluorosilicone industry. In 2019, Dongyue
Group co-organized the Third Conference of the
Fluorosilicone Industry in China with China Association
of Organic Fluorine and Silicone Material Industry and
carried out more than 50 technical exchanges with industry
associations and relevant international R&D institutes.

In 2019, Dongyue Group actively participated in the
formulation of national standards. It participated in the
drafting of 8 national standards, 8 industry standards, and
was involved in 44 standards of the fluorosilicone indsutry
group. Among them, 1 group standard was selected as one
of the "100 Group Standard Application Demonstration
Projects” by the Ministry of Industry and Information
Technology in 2019. Dongyue Group maintained its
lead in quality and standards of the industry. Its silicone
rubber products were named as Shandong Brand Product,
and its polytetrafluoroethylene products received the
Single Champion Product accolade from the Ministry of
Industry and Information Technology, and were named in
the Enterprise Standard Frontrunner List by Shangdong
Province.

Security

In strict compliance with the national laws and regulations such
as the Safe Production Law of The People’s Republic of China,
and carefully implementing the national standards in relation
to safe production, in 2019, the Group centered on the policy
of “safety first, health-oriented; territorial management, total
involvement; risk management, anomaly management; and
precaution crucial, continuous improvement”, and carried out
various safety management works on a steady basis. During the
year, the Company did not incur any significant or serious safety
production accidents.
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3.1

Safety Management System

The Group has, subject to Production Safety Law and
other relevant regulations and standards, rooted the safety
and occupational health management in every detail of
operation by developing clear safety policy goals and
management system.

To coordinate the advantageous resources to be put in
safety management, the Group has set up the Production
Safety Committee (“PSC") consisting of Chairman as director,
President as vice director, Group Vice President, all department
heads and general managers of all subsidiaries as members.
The PSC holds regular meetings to acquaint themselves with
the production safety management performance within
the Group, look into the problems in the production safety
recently and lay down countermeasures.

Construction of a Dual System

The Group vigorously promoted the construction of a
“Dual System” of risk grading and hidden danger screening.
The Company set up a team of leaders for its risk grading
management and control system led by the general
manager, with the vice director of production and chief
technical engineer as the deputy team leaders, and the
heads of the production lines as the members, with clarified
responsibilities of each member, and detailed work plans
and processes to ensure safety. The Company assisted its
subsidiary companies in constructing the “Dual System”
with special counseling, aiming to promote a scientific and
effective safety management model.

In October 2019, the Group undertook the assessment of
the construction of a Dual System and its operation for
enterprises in both the fluorochemical industry and the
organic silicone industry in Shandong province at the
request of the Department of Emergency Management of
Shandong Province. The Company has assigned 20 internal
experts from the Group and established three review panels
to conduct audit and evaluation on 41 enterprises in strict
accordance with requirements.
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Standardized Management

On the basis of safety standardization, the Group learnt
from the international leaders in building a unified
management system within the Group, and classified and
managed the elements, establishing eight management
teams. Meanwhile, the Company uses the Dynamic Tracking
Table of the Management System of Dongyue Group
to guide the administrator of each element to optimize
each management standard and form, and check on the
implementation of each regulation, with regular assessment
and strengthened supervision, which has effectively
improved the execution of safety management.
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Process safety

REEE ER 23

Electric instrument

Device management Electrics

RREE AFEBNERER

Environment Contractor and vehicle
protecting management transportation

rEEERME

The Group’s Management Teams

REEBLER
BARKE2016FREBEM AL 2 EEE
AEBAR - BEAL2EEERE

EER#ES FTERTRERFERR
XAt KB REEE BRBUEEFER
BEEL ETBESRFMERLD
- BL2ERERTEETERNE
BM3|E -

Safety Information Construction

Since the launch of consultation on the DuPont safety
management by the Group in 2016, the DuPont safety
management concept and the actual circumstances of
Dongyue have been combined, forming a safety culture
with Dongyue characteristics; and contents of caring
leadership and hidden danger screening have been
informatized, with data statistics and graphical analysis
being carried out to effectively supervise and guide the
work in safety and environmental protection.
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Dongyue intelligent management and control system
comprehensively monitored and issued early warning
for 75 grade 1 to 4 major hazard sources, 7 places of
flue gas discharge, 1 place of water discharge and 62
items of solid waste of enterprises of the Group which
involved in dangerous chemical production. A total of 236
comprehensive, special and on-site emergency plans have
been formulated, with coordination of fire control, video
surveillance, production command system initiated in case
of emergency.

For logistics and security management and control, the
Group had daily access to more than 400 dangerous
chemicals vehicles. By adopting the vehicle all-in-one card
management platform where vehicles are connected with
the order business, vehicles with no record are prohibited
from entering the factory. Each vehicle entering the factory
should have one card, facilitating the automatic collection
of vehicle information, immediate upload of data, and
hence the informationization and visual management and
control of logistics.

At the same time, more than 1,500 video surveillance
units of various models have been installed throughout
the Group to monitor key roads, equipment, dangerous
chemicals tanks and other areas in real time. With the
use of cameras of the three-dimensional prevention and
control cloud-based defensive system set on a high place
in the southern factory area of polymers and chemicals,
panoramic monitoring of the factory area becomes feasible.
The combination of videos recorded by cameras positioned
on high and low places facilitates the function of “picture in
picture” to realize the three-dimensional monitoring of the
whole and any part of it at the same time.
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3.2 Risk Prevention and Control

The Group has paid high attention to the safety risk
prevention and control, continuously carried out the
identification and rectification of hidden dangers at all
levels, and implemented 12 times of identification in the
reporting period, with a rectification rate up to 99%.

Device safety management

As the focus of safety management, the Group carried out
various actions to strengthen the safety management of
equipment in 2019:

Assessment optimization: Targeting on the
characteristics of different on-site equipment
operating statuses and different strengths of
equipment management of each company,
the Company changed the strategy of monthly
professional assessment for equipment in a timely
manner, instead of focusing on the scenes and
hidden dangers, it now focuses on management and
upgrading. Since June 2019, the Company assessed
the management level of 7 projects in each company,
including large unit management and equipment
lubrication management, and urged the companies
to rectify and improve their own issues at the
management level in the form of assessment ranking.
With the deepening of monthly assessment and
unremitting efforts of the companies, the equipment
management capacities of the companies are
improving gradually, and the number of unplanned
stoppages due to equipment failure are gradually
reduced. Comparing with that in the first quarter,
the number of unplanned stoppages were reduced
by 42% and the equipment operation had been
improving month by month.
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Annual overhaul: The Group carried out the annual
overhaul in November 2019, successfully completed
the preparation and review of the safety and quality
management manual, introduced the quality
control method (ITP) of the overhaul process during
the overhaul, and comprehensively managed the
inspected scenes by the inspection team.

Special action: Upholding the management concept
of paying attention to abnormalities and tracing
the origins, the Group carried out the special action
of “Integrated Management of Abnormal Problems
in Equipment Specialty” in July 2019. As at the end
of December, the Group conducted research and
analysis on 6 special projects in total, including “quality
control of insulation construction, supervision and
management of construction, and pressure pipeline
management”, and provided rectification suggestions.

Emergency Responding and Dirills

According to relevant regulatory requirements, the Group
has revised regularly the comprehensive emergency plans,
special emergency plans and on-site disposal programs for
accidents. All companies are required to, on the basis of the
Group's emergency plans, strengthen the emergency plan
exercise, and improve the emergency response capability
of companies and positions and employees’ self-defense
and self-rescue ability. In 2019, 531 safety exercises have
been organized at all levels, with 19,056 person-times of
employees involved, including 126 fire drills, with 5,900
person-times of employees involved.
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In addition, the Group has closely liaised with China
Chemical Safety Association, and carried out multiple
works in 2019: it encouraged all companies to become
member units of the association, reached an agreement
with the association to carry out special safety diagnosis,
and carried out the construction of the Group’s training
base under the guidance of the association. In May
2019, the association dispatched a total of 9 experts in 7
majors, including basic management, process, equipment,
electrics, instrumentation, design and general drawing, and
firefighting and emergency, to carry out a two-week special
safety diagnosis in 6 companies of the Group. 595 issues
were identified from the perspective of legal and regulatory
compliance, and the safety management level of all
companies was quantitatively scored. As at December 2019,
rectification works were completed by multiple companies,
and the companies have invited the association to review
the problems discovered.

Contractor safety management

The Group included the safe production of contractors into
the focus of the Company’s safety management, and raised
the HSE management level of contractors by formulating
the Dongyue Group Contractor Management System. The
Company requests that its contractors must meet the entry
criteria, sign a safety responsibility agreement and strictly
abide by the provisions on occupational health, safety
and environmental protection. The Company regularly
supervises and assesses the contractor’s performance,
including maintenance of the contractor’s safety education
records, the log book of camp inspection, and the daily
report on the inspection of contractor’s on-site construction
safety to strengthen the control of the contractor.
Furthermore, the Company aroused the contractor’s
initiative concerning safety management through safety
education and training in addition to assessment and
incentives. In 2019, the number of serious accidents
involving employees and contractors of the Company was 0.
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3.3 Occupational Health Protection

The Group has been emphasizing the occupational health
and safety protection of employees, and has strictly
followed the Law of the People’s Republic of China on the
Prevention and Control of Occupational Diseases to provide
comprehensive occupational health protection for its
employees through various measures:

The Group conducted occupational physical
examination regularly, established occupational
health record and checked the daily hazards
protection and more. In 2019, the employees’
occupational health examination rate was 100%, with

zero incidence of occupational diseases.

Through on-site occupational hazard monitoring,
and continuous improvement of the automation and
intelligence level of the devices on such basis, the
Group adopted strict confined isolation measures to
reduce the exposure of personnel to occupational
hazards.

The Group is equipped with professional safety
management personnel, among which, all of the
special operation staff must be licence-holders.
Regulations for the Management of Special
Equipment have been formulated to ensure the
safety production of special equipment during
operating activities.

It organized special trainings on occupational disease
prevention and treatment, provided comprehensive
occupational health protection equipment and
emergency equipment, and improved the awareness
and level of labor protection of employees.
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Building a safety culture, building up employees 'safety
awareness and improving related skills are particularly
important in the process of implementing safety
management. Over the years, the Company provided safety
education to employees through three levels of training,
promotion, and incentives.

The Group established and improved its training system to
fully meet the safety training needs of employees. In 2019,
based on the actual demand for safety training, the Group
added special courses on micro-course development and
teaching skills for internal trainers. The Group issued the
Guidelines For Standardizing Internal Trainer Management
in particular to standardize the training, deployment and
management of internal trainers. The safety training rate of
the Company’s employees reached 100% in 2019, with 96
internal trainers being trained.

The Group attaches great importance to safety promotion.
It took various measures to create a safety culture
atmosphere in the Group and promoted the establishment
of safety risk awareness among employees at all levels.
In 2019, the Group organized safety activities, such as
the second quarter safety and environmental protection
competition, the second session of risk management and
hidden danger screening knowledge competition, the
safety and environmental protection speech competition,
and the safety culture quiz. Through the continuous safety
activities in various forms, it created the strong safety
atmosphere.

The Group adopted various incentive mechanisms to motivate
the progress of safety management. It set up the special
incentive fund of “Benchmarking DuPont” to reward the front-
line employees for safety experience sharing, risk management
and hidden danger screening, excellent production of
training coursework and more. The “Five Ones” incentive
activity was designed to motivate senior management and
middle management of each company to practice inductive
leadership; the Instant Safety Award and the Thumb Award
encouraged employees to standardize their operational
behaviors and develop good operational habits.
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4. Green Developments

Dongyue Group strictly complied with the Environmental
Protection Law of the People’s Republic of China and other laws
and regulations to promote the construction of standardized
management system for environmental protection, formulated
and improved the Assessment For Standardized Construction
For Environmental Protection and Standardized Construction
Plan, achieved refined and standardized environmental
protection management, clarified the environmental protection
responsibilities of all parties and improved level of environmental

protection management.

4.1 Green products

As a chemical enterprise, the Company actively promoted
the development of new environmental products, and one
of its primary products is green environmental refrigerant.
With the phase-out of R22 and other second generation
HCFCs refrigerants accelerated, the consumptions of R410A
and other HFC refrigerants have been growing year by
year. R125 (pentafluoroethane), a key product researched,
developed and manufactured by Dongyue Group, is an
alternative of Freon which has excellent thermodynamic
performance. It has multiple characteristics including
a relatively high refrigeration coefficient, zero ozone
depleting potential and a relatively low greenhouse effect
coefficient, and is a green product with an enormous
development prospect.

In 2019, Dongyue Group vigorously built the future
hydrogen energy material project to enter into the
markets of products such as hydrogen energy materials,
including high-performance fuel cell membrane, high-
performance fluoropolymers, and high-end fluorinated fine
chemicals, and made use of the independent intellectual
property rights of the Company in fields including new
environmental protection, new materials, new energy,
effectively assisting the transformation of new energy and
ensuring the strategic safety of the national hydrogen
industry.
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BERE 201845 20195
Greenhouse gases 2018 2019
SRR HERE (HE) Emissions of greenhouse gases (tons) 3,239,450.5 3,259,067.1
BELEBLAEREHNE Greenhouse gas emission per 2.28 2.51
(Mg, BILEE) RMB10,000 of output value (tons/
RMB10,000 of output value)
HeebEiE 4.2 Intelligent Management and Control
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As the first intelligent manufacturing pilot enterprise in
the fluorochemical industry, Dongyue Group has been
actively exploring and practising on the path of intelligent
management and control.

Dongyue Group actively carried out intelligent time
management and control. Targeting at the position of
“World Class, First in China, Featuring Fluorosilicone,
Dongyue Model", taking “equipment automation, intelligent
operation, informatized management, efficient integration”
as cores, it set up an intelligent management center having
the functions of “energy management and control, industry
chain scheduling, safety and environmental protection,
logistics security”. In terms of energy management and
control, based on the Baosight Energy Management
System, it incorporated the management needs of
Dongyue Energy, and managed the energy media such as
high-voltage power distribution, water and steam dispersed
in the industrial parks in a centralized manner. Through
the unified scheduling management and integrated
allocation of energy of the Group's enterprises, it promoted
the comprehensive utilization and energy conservation
of upstream and downstream enterprises. In terms of
industrial chain scheduling, the Company achieved digital
control of production business, such as equipment on-
off controlling, operation overload, unplanned stoppages,
raw material consumption and product output, effectively
achieving the business control of the Company’s industrial
chain, including production scheduling, and comprehensive
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4.3

balance of production, supply and sales. In terms of safety
and environmental protection, the intelligent management
and control mainly includes safety culture, risk and hidden
danger screening, dangerous chemicals and hazard source,
emergency rescue, and management and control of waste
water, waste gas and solid waste. In terms of logistics and
security management and control, the Company had daily
access to more than 400 dangerous chemical vehicles. By
adopting the vehicle all-in-one card management platform,
accessed vehicles are under real-name management that
only one vehicle is allowed per card, which enables the
automatic collection of vehicle information, real-time data
upload and informatization and visualized management

and control of logistics.

Enhancing Energy Efficiency

In 2019, Dongyue Group formulated and implemented
the "Energy Conservation Management System for Special
Equipment” (#FE R ERAEE B HIE )), launched
various technical improvement projects for energy
conservation and consumption reduction, and reduced
energy consumption in production. The Company actively
promoted the replacement of power equipment, improved
the comprehensive coverage of power automation and
information, and enhanced the economic and rational
operation efficiency of power grid; reduced steam and
heat consumption rate by modifying the compressed air
system and the condensing turbines sets, thereby reduced
electricity consumption; optimized the boiler combustion
system to reduce the utilization amount of ammonia water
and the power consumption of the wind turbine.

Dongyue Group continues to promote the concept of
“green office”, by using the formalization and information
technology for the changes of management system,
and realizing online office and online management of
documents to decrease paper waste. Moreover, the
Group managed vehicles’ fuel consumption according
to the Vehicle Management System, and offered full
reward or punishment to drivers who saves or exceeds oil
consumption; formulated the Dongyue Group Regulations
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on the Use of Air-conditioners in Office Buildings to control
the time of usage of air-conditioners and promptly shut
down the use of air-conditioners after work, aiming to raise
employees’ awareness on energy conservation. In 2019, the
official vehicles’ fuel consumption of Dongyue Group was
reduced by 2,120 liters, and the air conditioning units saved
2,127kWh of electricity.

REEBR=FRRERBRIOT : The energy consumption of Dongyue Group in recent three
years is shown as follows:

ERER 2017552 2018FHER 20195 HFEE
Consumption Consumption Consumption

Use type in 2017 in 2018 in 2019
QI\% (FTER&) Purchased electricity (kWh) 1,399,634,177 1,461,252,200 1,540,000,000
wIEFES (BNR) Total coal consumption (tons) 61.01 64.23 65.29
’*EEE(?EB—;) Generating capacity (kWh) 154,800,000 287,568,000 327,266,000
KEES(BAE)(ME)  Steam production volume (self- 1,279,826 1,472,565 1,468,928

used volume) (tons)

7l (F1) Gasoline (liter) 121,911 72,065 69,945
L (FH) Diesel (liter) 5,392.06 5,456.89 0
KRR (LK) Natural gas (cubic meter) 11,164.88 14,433.95 21,580,300

2 20198 - RESEBEFRMBERER
R BISOh BRI R AERTE - A
KhERERE -

Note:  Since 2019, Dongyue Group has changed the source of diesel
consumption, i.e. diesel vehicles, into electric vehicles in

previous years. Thus, there was no diesel consumption.

BEIFUR A% 20184 2019%
Energy consumption 2018 2019
e (BIIRE - BERE - Total energy consumption (tons 728,770.99 714,909.51
T RAR - UHR  5H) standard coal, including coal,
electricity, natural gas, gasoline,
diesel)
%ﬁ?fﬁ%ﬁﬁﬁﬁ(%ﬂ@ﬁ?ﬁ ' Total energy consumption per 0.51 0.55

BB -
/Bﬂ/ﬁﬁﬁ;’%ﬁ)

CRAR UM 5

i E010F REME KPR - AREDY
2018 FRES B ERRBIRETELE -

RMB10,000 of output value (tons
standard coal, including coal,
electricity, natural gas, gasoline,
diesel/RMB10,000 of operating
income)

Note: Due to the adjustment of the conversion rate of standard
coal in 2019, the calculation information of standard coal of

Dongyue Group in 2018 has been revised in this report.

Dongyue Group Limited Annual Report 2019 97



4.4 BlLHAKER

B #HERERRE
ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

ANRERBKER » HERAKER
FRAME  BRREAR  TENE
LSRR D BEKBERR -

019%F » REEEMHITEKBBRNT «

ANR)@DF709HE E#HITHKE A
HE @ P KEBERBEETE
EYER - KGR IR 8 5200018,
K BEKRREIN - EKAES
RAKER - BEBRAKEBE
BRI ADINEKET77475 ©

/Aﬂklitlﬁﬁﬁﬁ%mﬁ\éiﬁ

B BB EMKEE KK -
EJK@@&%K~@%KW%
IKARKIRE - PVCEER K ETERR
BRERBERKER  BHRS
%ﬁ%%m MR EIEISKER
HEITRE » 2019F6 AEIREKET
BERR o

REEBEMRSKEAIE 2019F
%Ei?A% LEREDBEESNIER

Y TIEARERG - KA MG
EL%%”E%%’SR%EE’EHE%E CRD
EAFBETHER - REFEHNE
RIEF - RS B EIERE - (M
K B A 22 2 38 17 AN 255 7K B TR K
N o

4.4 Optimization of water utilization management

The Company paid attention to water management,
continuously improved the utilization efficiency of water
resources, and reduced wastewater discharge through
measures such as equipment upgrades and process
modification.

In 2019, the water conserving projects launched by
Dongyue Group are as follows:

The Company promoted the reclaimed water
reutilization project in 709 Polymers Plant. Through
the optimization and expansion of reclaimed water
disposal facilities, the plant achieved a daily treatment
capacity of 2,000 tons at a water production rate of
70%, and the water produced can be used as raw
water, significantly improving the water reutilization
rate, reducing daily water discharge by 744 cubic
meters.

The Company implemented integrated sewage
treatment in the Northern Chemical District. In June
2019, zero discharge of wastewater was achieved
through the installation of deionized water device
for reused water, using Huanghe water to treat
backwashing water, using circulating water and
sewage for alkaline cleaning of water, using treated
PVC mother liquor as circulating water, implementing
measures such as rainwater and sewage shunting,
and treatments on various sewage resources.

Dongyue Group attaches great importance to the
prevention and treatment of sewage. In 2019, it carried
out the renovation project of the cyclone separators for
monomer synthesis unit, replacing the original cyclone
separators with high efficiency cyclone separators for the
dry dust removal system to reduce the solid blending
into the sludge. While lowering the emission of sludge,
it reduced the loss and consumption of copper powder,
thereby significantly reducing the cost of safe operation
and sewage treatment.
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Dongyue Group leveraged the advantages of abundant
seawater resources and salt field resources for bittern
and salt crystallization after extraction of bromine from
the seawater, which demonstrated its achievements in
comprehensive utilization of seawater resources. During the
filing period, Dongyue Group carried out safety assessment
and environmental assessment in strict accordance with
relevant requirements, aiming to ensure the compliance
with the requirements on environmental protection and
location selection for project construction. The operations
of the activities had no major impact on the environment
and natural resources.

REEER =F K EEKERIE R The discharge of waste water of Dongyue Group in recent
T three years is shown as follows:

2017%F 20185 20195

KRBk R ISR B/ RkE BRAKE Bh/ RkE

Discharge/ Discharge/ Discharge/

consumption consumption consumption

Discharge and consumption index in 2017 in 2018 in 2019

&K BEkBEaE (M) Total discharge of wastewater (tons) 4,250,393 4,346,415 4,395,965.00

Waste water CODERRE (W) COD emissions (tons) 936 587 57.90

A E (M) Ammonia nitrogen emissions (tons) 759 231 186

K ERKE (W) Total water consumption (tons) 14,600,000 11,000,000 13,905,821

Water FKkZE Water consumption intensity (tons/ 144 774 10.73

consumption (M BILEEWA) RMB10,000 of operating income)
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4.5 Reduction of pollutant emissions

The Company strictly abided by the Law of the People’s
Republic of China on the Prevention and Control of
Atmospheric Pollution ({1 #E A R £ B K RI5 26
JA7&)) and other relevant laws, actively complied with
the requirements of the state, strengthened pollution
treatment, improved the system, and carried out
technological transformations to effectively control the
dust, exhaust gas, and solid wastes generated from the
production and operation activities of the Company.

Exhaust Gas Management

The Company actively responded to the Air Pollution
Prevention and Control Action Plan ({ K5 2B 8178
5T21)) carry out emission reduction works. In 2019, the
total volume of exhaust gas pollution was reduced by 20%,
reducing a total of 10,639.3 tons of sulfur dioxide emission,
1,422.6 tons of nitrogen oxides emission, and 23,858.4 tons
of dust emission.

Dongyue Group coordinated and promoted the
transformation and networking of the incinerator exhaust
gas treatment facilities of all subsidiaries, achieving online
monitoring of emission data, such as sulfur dioxide,
nitrogen oxides and dust. The data of sulfur dioxide,
nitrogen oxides and dust emitted were connected to the
network of the local environmental protection bureau
and complied with the requirements of the Regional and
Integrated Emission Standard of Air Pollutants (DB37/2376-
2019), achieving emissions that are stable and up to
standards. In 2019, the Company carried out the fluorite
drying exhaust gas treatment project, lowered the dust and
oleic acid content in the exhaust gas through measures
including increasing the Gas-gas heaters and washing
towers, and eliminated the exhaust gas odor to meet the

lastest environmental emission requirements.
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The emissions of exhaust gases of Dongyue Group in recent
three years are shown as follows:

EmyESE 2017 HME  2018FHKE 2019 HEME

Emissions Emissions Emissions
Type of emissions in 2017 in 2018 in 2019
—E bR (ma) SO (tons) 175 157.06 118.12
BEAY(WE) NO: (tons) 316.1 542.29 416.90
[EEE WY EE (E ) Soot/Dust (tons) 114.67 78.28 73.00
EE I H Y (HE) Volatile organic compound (tons) 76.98 220 14541
BEEYEE Waste Management
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F o RAIERIEIEE «  E#EAR
EREMAEENEIIE R BER
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Dongyue Group formulated the General Solid Waste
Management System ({ —fX BB BEWIE R HE D) , General
Solid Waste Accountability System ({—#% [E 88 E& ¥ & £
[€)), Hazardous Waste Management System (/& EEY)
EI2HIE )) and Hazardous Waste Accountability System
(EBEWETHIE)) to requlate the disposal process
of solid waste, supervise the inspection method and avoid
raising environmental pollution incidents.

Dongyue Group strengthened the hazardous waste
management strictly according to the Standardized
Management Index System for Hazardous Wastes (/&
BEMIR e EIRIBIZEE R )) . Through the establishment
of a sound management account, the Company further
strengthened the supervision and assessment of solid
waste treatment of its subsidiary companies. In 2019, the
Company completed the reconstruction of hazardous
waste warehouses of Southern Chemical District and
organic silicone company to improve the storage standard
and management level of hazardous waste, and the self-
processing rate of hazardous waste rose from 47% in 2018
to 66%.

In 2019, Dongyue Group built a harmless treatment project
of the disposal of 50,000 tons/year of sulfuric acid waste.
The harmless treatment of sulfuric acid allows the re-
use of sulfuric acid waste, significantly promoting the
utilization rate of sulfur resources as well as reducing the
environmental burden. Moreover, the Company carried out
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the technical improvement and optimization project of
tetrachloroethene two-gas separation by comprehensively
optimizing and adjusting the process parameters,
changing most of the key equipment, and adding a carbon
tetrachloride recovery system to the original basis. After
the transformation, the annual recovery volume of carbon
tetrachloride of 1,265 tons, and the annual reduction of
concentrated sulfuric acid consumption of 2,992 tons
are achieved, producing 3,332 tones of sulfuric acid
less. Dongyue Group Organosilicone Company actively
improved the production processes to significantly reduce
the sludge generated by 10,000 tons/year.

The emissions of the solid wastes of Dongyue Group in

™ recent three years are as follows:
BRMER 2017 HHE 2018FHHME 20195 BEE
Emissions Emissions Emissions
Type of emissions in 2017 in 2018 in 2019
Bisn A8 (MR) Gypsum (tons) 78,286 94,142 61,370
B IRE (W) Cinder of power plant (tons) 183,038.7 172,009 166,358
AR (W) Household refuse (tons) 50 48 45
s (ME) Office waste (tons) 13 12 13
BAE(HE) Acetylene sludge (tons) 343,071 351,432 378,724
—PRREEE Y E £ 482 () Total general wastes (tons) / 266,211 227,786
—MREEYELRE Intensity of general wastes / 0.19 0.18

(W, BIT&ERA) (tons/RMB10,000 of operating

income)

g RESEERREREBITEKETH
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Note: Dongyue Group's acetylene sludge is packaged and sold for
secondary recycling, so its production volume is not included in
the general waste production volume.
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Transfer of hazardous wastes of Dongyue Group is as
follows:

BERYER 2018F HEHE 2019F HE R E
Types of hazardous wastes Emissions in 2018 Emissions in 2019
felRERYERE () HWO06 1,699.92 1,777.60
Transfer volumes of hazardous HWO08 138.29 122.62
wastes (tons)
HWO09 189.50 18.66
HW11 376.54 522.16
HW50 229.18 247.99
HW45 10,666.02 13,041.59
HW18 93.10 165.63
HW29 157.84 155.10
HW49 81.86 123.60
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All-win Harmony

Employees are the cornerstone for the normal operation of
the Company. Adhering to the talent concept of “Reflecting
values with benefits and using wealth to return intelligence”,
the Company respects the equal responsibilities and rights of
every employee, respects and protects the legitimate rights
and interests of employees, and advocates an equal and non-
discriminatory employment policy. It improves the remuneration
and welfare system, improves the democratic mechanism,
and creates a fair and harmonious working environment for

employees.

5.1 Respecting employees’ rights and interests

The Company has always insisted on the concept of
“people-oriented”, and valued and protected the legitimate
rights and interests of employees. The Group has, in strict
accordance with the Law of the People’s Republic of China,
the Labor Contract Law of the People’s Republic of China
and other laws and regulations, pursued the fair, equitable
and prejudice-free employment policy, completely
eradicated any form of inequities arising from the gender,
territory, nationality, religion, age, political affiliation and

Dongyue Group Limited Annual Report 2019 103



RE  HERERERE
ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

EAAEBEIMNAEEZD - HEREH
K G HREEEETHAHESHLIA °

other aspects in terms of the recruitment, remuneration,
training and promotion etc., and resisted any use of child
labor and forced labor, respected and guaranteed the
legitimate rights and interests of all employees. As at the

end of the reporting period, the Group had a total of 5,664
employees.

BETHAABZME S BETHRABRERESD

Total Number of Employees by Gender Total Number of Employees by Grade

88
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N\ 4689
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Male employees Female employees Directors and above Managers Ordinary employees
ETHAANBRFRED
Total Number of Employees by Age
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5.2 Promoting staff development

Dongyue Group adopted the clear management policies
to guarantee the openness and transparency of career
promotion. With the Measures for Position Promotion of
Cadres and Employees of the Group, the Administrative
Measures for Appraisal of Newly Promoted Cadres under
Probation Period of Dongyue Group, and the Administrative
Measures for Training and Appraisal of Newly Promoted
Management Cadres of Dongyue Group, the Group clarified
promotion measures for cadres.

In 2019, the innovative work of the Group's training work
was carried out through exploration, and implemented and
developed in terms of training methods, training content,

training topics and more.
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BT FIER Employee training
RUBBSNZIEEAR RESEANZIEEAR
Number of Trained Employees by Gender Total Hours of Training by Employment Type

58T ZET AR IR EE ERET
Male employees Female employees Directors and above Managers Ordinary employees
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Total Hours of Training by Gender Total Hours of Training by Employment Type
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58T ZET AR "R EE EmET
Male employees Female employees Director and above Manager Ordinary employees
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Innovation in training formats and methods

In order to enhance the playfulness and efficiency of
training, Dongyue Group conducted in-depth researches
on training methods in 2019 and continuously carried
out innovative practices in training models. In 2019, the
introduction of new methods such as interactive ways,
interactive sandbox and case sharing were discussed. The
Group explained and discussed the combined interactions
and changed from tradition lecture-based training to
seminar-based training. In addition, the Group's training
center actively introduced the online learning platform to
change the single traditional training mode and establish
the online education college of the Group. Since the official
launch of the online education college platform, there are
5,879 active accounts, with actual account login number
reaching 5,727, representing a login rate of 97.58%. The
average online time per user was about 39 hours. There
were 115 copies of data in the data center, 2,347 test
questions in the test question database, and 984 Q&As and
Weibo messages among employees. As can be seen from
the log-in rate, the employees of the Group have basically
started their accounts and logged in to the platform for
learning, achieving a high coverage rate; To have a better
grasp of the trajectory of employees’ learning, statistics
showed that there were 3,646 employees who have logged
in for more than 10 hours. Under this standard, the login
rate of effective learning is 62.11%.

The Company believes that teaching someone to fish is
better than giving him a fish. While conducting theory and
knowledge courses, it focused on carrying out employee
empowerment training in 2019 at the same time.

In 2019, the Group carried out various special training:

it sent 12 outstanding cadres to Beijing Benz
Automotive Co., Ltd. and Tianjin FAW Toyota Motor
Co. Ltd respectively to carry out a study with the
title “Being Unbreakable — Making Lean Production
Ultimate".

it completed the job-transfer training for construction
staff of the new projects.
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it continues to provide training to new employees. In
2019, 194 new employees were trained in 16 batches.

Employees were sent to Inner Mongolia to provide
centralized training to the employees of Inner
Mongolia Dongyue Peak Fluorine Chemicals Co., Ltd,
a subsidiary of Dongyue Group.

It successfully undertook the intern training of
Tsinghua University and arranged 8 specialized
training courses, such as corporate culture,
informatization development, security and products
of the company.

5.3 Caring for Employees’ Life

In order to fully balance the work and life of its employees
and improve the employee happiness index, the Company
carried out a variety of employee-caring activities. In 2019,
the Company organized a series of activities such as “2019
Chinese New Year Gathering”, the spring and autumn
sports games, the employee happiness photo collection
activities, the DIY mooncake theme activities, Dongyue
cross-country race titled “Vibrant Youth, Healthy Running”,
etc.. While enriching the employees’ spare-time life, those
activities also enhanced the cohesiveness of employees and
the sense of belonging to the Company.

In addition, the Company fully met the housing demands
of the employees, and strived to provide housing for
employees through plans to increase apartments for
workers, improve the facilities in the apartments for
workers, build new housing and purchase apartments for
workers, so as to improve their living environment and
create a better living and working environment.
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5.4

The Company was deeply concerned about the
living conditions of employees in difficulty. Since the
establishment of "Dongyue Staff-caring Fund” in 2005,
it donated the funds out of a certain percentage of the
remuneration of senior management (RMB300,000 to
RMB500,000) to support the workers in difficulty. In 2019,
Dongyue Group helped 12 employees with a total of
RMB66,000.

Building a Better Life Together

The Company has always insisted on “building hometown,
repaying the society, serving the country, repaying
the party” and vigorously supported public welfare
undertakings. As at the end of the reporting period, the
Group donated a total of RMB1,942,400 to social welfare
undertakings in the fields of education, transport, health
and disaster relief. The Group has established four public
welfare funds focusing on education, elders caring and
employees welfare.

On 16 May 2019, Dongyue Group went to the Santaishan
District, Zhangjiajie, Hunan Province to inspect the
operation of Santaishan Dongyue Nursing Home after its
completion, and initially agreed with the local government
on the implementation of poverty alleviation. At the
same time, the Group continuously provided assistance
to the society amounting up to RMB2.64 million through
“Dongyue Education Fund”, “Dongyue Elder Respecting
Fund”, “Dongyue Staff-caring Fund”, “Dongyue Scholarship
Fund”, "Dongyue Women and Children Fund’, and active
participation in activities of CHINA Foundation for Guangcai
Program (Linxia trips via three districts and three states).
On the basis of its own development, the Group fulfilled
its social responsibilities and consolidated its good social
image as a private enterprise.
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Table Four Public Welfare Funds of Dongyue Group

EEE8 B AL HERAR
Name Year of Targeted People and Purpose
Establishment
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Dongyue Education Fund 2000 To reward the local teachers with outstanding teaching performance
and students with outstanding academic achievements. “Dongyue
Studies” were established for the middle and primary schools in
Huantai County

REEZES 20074F NS F RIE LSRR A L& ABRE2007T £ VB G

Dongyue Elder Respecting 2007 To provide an allowance of RMB200 each year to elders aged over

Fund 80 in Tangshan Town

RERBES 2000%F ARBEAR  IIRBIXEEMHEBRERLNESET

Dongyue Scholarship Fund 2000 To reward the students of Tsinghua University and Shandong
University of Technology with outstanding academic
achievements

REELED 2005%F FARE N EE S T#ITRE

Dongyue Staff-caring Fund 2005 To support the Group's staff in financial difficulties
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Case: Dongyue Group providing support for Lekima disaster
relief in 2019

Super typhoon Lekima made landfall in Shandong Province
on 11 August 2019, which was the strongest typhoon
arriving China since 2019, affecting a total of 14.024 million
people in China. Affected by the typhoon, 16 cities in
Shandong Province experienced precipitation above heavy
rain level between 8 a.m., 10 August and 5 p.m, 13 August,
which the record-breaking precipitation was experienced
in various places. The places being swept by Lekima
experienced severe wind and rain, with flooding that
caused destruction of houses and trees. In particular, low-
lying areas such as Weifang and Zaozhuang in Shandong
had serious water accumulation, resulting in major disasters.
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On 11 August 2019, Dongyue Group was appointed at
this critical moment to form an emergency rescue team of
24 people at the request of Huantai County Government
to fight against Typhoon Lekima, and rushed to the site
of disaster. The rescue team loaded and blocked the
flooding using the soil bags according to the request of the
commander on-site. On 12 August, due to the expansion of
the disaster, Dongyue rescue team gathered again to carry
out emergency rescue in Jincheng river embankment in
Magiao Town by strengthening the river embankment in
the middle section of the Shengli river. After 36 consecutive
hours of work, the rescue team successfully completed the
mission of strengthening the river embankment.

In addition, after the completion of flood relief
work, Dongyue Group organized a number of fund-
raising activities on 21 to 22 August, raising a total of
RMB510,062.4, in order to help the affected people to
restore their production and order of life, and rebuild their
homes as soon as possible.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

To the shareholders of Dongyue Group Limited
(Incorporated in Cayman Islands with limited liability)

Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Dongyue
Group Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (together the
“Group”) set out on pages 125 to 253, which comprise the consolidated
statement of financial position as at 31 December 2019, and the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income, the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the
consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and
notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a summary of
significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31
December 2019 and of its consolidated financial performance and
its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance
with International Financial Reporting Standards IFRSs issued by the
International Accounting Standards Board (“IASB”) and have been
properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements of
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing ("HKSAs") issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants ("HKICPA”"). Our responsibilities under those standards
are further described in the “Auditor’'s Responsibilities for the Audit of
the Consolidated Financial Statements” section of our report. We are
independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's “Code of
Ethics for Professional Accountants” (the “Code"), together with the
ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the consolidated
financial statements, and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that the audit
evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our opinion.
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g ET I Key Audit Matters

FARETEEIEETSNEENE - RAEYE  Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment,
ZE2019F 12 A3 B L FERNGAEMEHRERAFEST  were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial
BAEENEE ZEEELSAEESEITEEL  statements for the year ended 31 December 2019. These matters were
EUBREARHEZSRBETRIERN  BET®  addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial
HZEFHEHEBENER - statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do

not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

Key audit matter

BREEE

Impairment assessment of trade receivables

B 5 BUCRERER G

As at 31 December 2019, the Group had gross trade
receivables of approximately RMB1,235 million (2018: RMB1,488
million) and provision for impairment of approximately
RMB4.23 million (2018: RMB2.85 million).

In general, the credit terms granted by the Group to the
customers ranged between 30 to 90 days (2018: 30 to 90
days). Management performed periodic assessment on the
recoverability of the trade receivables and the sufficiency of
provision for impairment based on information including credit
profile of different customers, ageing of the trade receivables,
historical settlement records, subsequent settlement status,
expected timing and amount of realisation of outstanding
balances, and on-going trading relationships with the relevant
customers. Management also considered forward looking
information that may impact the customers’ ability to repay
the outstanding balances in order to estimate the expected
credit losses for the impairment assessment.

We identified trade receivables as a key audit matter due to
the measurement of expected credit losses ("ECL") requires
significant estimates and judgements, including determination
of whether there is significant increase in credit risk, use of
models and assumptions in determination of probability of
default, incorporation of forward-looking information.

How the key audit matter was addressed in our audit

EENBFTUMEERRENSER

Our audit procedures in relation to management’s
impairment assessment of the trade receivables as at 31
December 2019 included:

- Understanding and evaluating the key controls that
the Group has implemented to manage and monitor
its credit risk, and validating the control effectiveness
on a sample basis;

- Checking, on a sample basis, the ageing profile of
the trade receivables as at 31 December 2019 to
the underlying financial records and post year-end
settlements;

- Inquiring of management for the status of each of
the material trade receivables past due as at year end
and corroborating explanations from management
with supporting evidence, such as understanding on-
going business relationship with the customers based
on trade records, checking historical and subsequent
settlement records of and other correspondence with
the customers; and

- Assessing the appropriateness of the expected credit
loss provisioning methodology, examining the key
data inputs on a sample basis to assess their accuracy
and completeness, and challenging the assumptions,
including both historical and forward-looking
information, used to determine the expected credit
losses.



Key audit matter

BEETEE

R2019F12A318  EXEERFEESRRFEARTEHAR
#1235 BT (2018%F + ARYE1488E BT ) MR EEEN
ARB4235ETT(2018F : ARMEISSHETT) ©

—mE BEEBERTFTEEFHEEHN T30E90X(2018
F 1 30290K) c BEEEERUTERSE 5 EWIER A
WEREMREREN T REETEHIE  BETEE

FRERMRR  BZRWFIAREK  ELREECH  ®E
RERR  BREARNOESROTANERNSRREFRE

FRRBMEZMAE BETERAKEFETFEERKD
FERREE RO 1L B AL - (EM BB ERH A AREER

1o

BEEKREZFREFIRMA AERESFHE  HIIHRES
FEBER(EREEER]FEAELEXRHE KA
BREERARRENEEN BEROBEREEERAR
ARRE - UERETHAREERES -

B BE RS
INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

How the key audit matter was addressed in our audit
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Key audit matter

BEETEE

Fair value of equity investments at fair value
through other comprehensive income

BEAVEFARMEZEKRE ZREARENDFE

As at 31 December 2019, the Group had equity instruments at
fair value through other comprehensive income (“FVTOCI") of
approximately RMB669 million (2018: RMB1,801 million).

The equity instruments at FVTOCI are within the scope of IFRS 9
and measured at fair value at the end of each reporting period.
The Group irrevocably elected to present subsequent changes
in fair value of the equity investments at FVTOCI in other
comprehensive income.

We identified equity investments at FVTOCI as a key audit
matter due to the measurement of fair value requires significant
estimates and judgement, including determination of model
adopted, inputs and assumptions adopted, which could give a
material impact to the fair value measured.
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How the key audit matter was addressed in our audit

EENBTNMEERREENER

Our procedures in relation to management’s valuation of the
equity instrument at fair value through other comprehensive
income included:

- Evaluating the competence, capabilities and objectivity
of the valuers;

- Evaluating the methodologies used by the valuers in
their valuation of the equity investment at FVTOCI;

- Evaluating the management’s future cash flow
forecasts and the process by which they were drawn
up and compared the inputs data used in the cash
flow forecasts against the historical figures;

- We challenged the key assumptions including
revenues growth rates in the cash flow forecasts by
comparing them to historical result, economic and
industry performance; and

- Checking, on a sample basis, the accuracy and
reasonableness of the input data provided by
management.
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Information Other than the Consolidated
Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report
Thereon

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises the information included in the annual report,
but does not include the consolidated financial statements and our
auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in
the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based
on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of the other information, we are required to report that
fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Directors and Those Charged
with Governance for the Consolidated Financial
Statements

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the consolidated
financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance
with IFRSs issued by the IASB and the disclosure requirements of
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and for such internal control
as the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors
either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no
realistic alternative but to do so.
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Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the
Group's financial reporting process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. This report is made solely to you, as
a body, in accordance with our agreed terms of engagement, and for
no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept
liability to any other person for the contents of this report. Reasonable
assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an
audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error
and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they
could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of
users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional
judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.
We also:

- Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than one resulting
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

- Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the Group's internal control.

- Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and
the reasonableness accounting estimates and related disclosures
made by the directors.
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- Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related
to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
Group's ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that
a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in
our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to
modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However,
future events or conditions may cause the Group to cease to
continue as a going concern.

—  Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

- Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities within
the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision and
performance of the group audit. We remain solely responsible for
our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding,
among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit
and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement
that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.
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From the matters communicated with those charged with governance,
we determine those matters that were of most significance in the
audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period
and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters
in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public
disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances,
we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report
because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably
be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent
auditor’s report is Mr. Yip Kai Yin with practising certificate number
PO5131.

Elite Partners CPA Limited
Certified Public Accountants

10th Floor, 8 Observatory Road,
Tsimshatsui, Kowloon,

Hong Kong

28 March 2020
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ONS LIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

BE2019F 1231 HIFFE
For the year ended 31 December 2019

20194 20184
Bt EE ARET T ARETFT
2019 2018
Notes RMB’000 RMB'000
Iz Revenue 6 12,958,692 14,218,937
BHE R A Cost of sales (9,512,770) (9,687,291)
EAH Gross profit 3,445,922 4,531,646
H A Other income 7 138,523 119,209
DN HER Distribution and selling expenses (366,263) (358,726)
THRAX Administrative expenses (665,666) (782,735)
EfHER Other expenses (2,446) _
M RFAERX Research and development expenses (329,242) (177,360)
BB A Finance costs 8 (100,528) (97,135)
B 5 A& A Profit before tax 2,120,300 3,234,899
FriEfif % Income tax expense 9 (378,019) (800,200)
G N A Profit for the year 10 1,742,281 2,434,699
Hfth 28 (2 ) Weas Other comprehensive (expense) income
B TEEH IR B A EE « Item that will not be reclassified to profit
or loss:
BAFEFAEMEEYEZ  Fair value loss on equity instruments
BATAZ AFEEE at fair value through other
comprehensive income (1,119,292) (52,902)
AEEEHNRELREE Total comprehensive income
for the year 622,989 2,381,797
T R RT Profit attributable to:
. YNCIEZZE PN - Owners of the Company 1,462,974 2,129,008
— JEFE RS IS R R 2 ~ Non-controlling interests 279,307 305,601
1,742,281 2,434,699
TE\JRFFEEZ]KEEJQZ_-EE Total comprehensive income for the
Was 4% year attributable to:
— AR T%ﬁ/\ - Owners of the Company 343,682 2,076,196
— FEIE AR AR R M = - Non-controlling interests 279,307 305,601
622,989 2,381,797
FRREA Earnings per share 13
—EAR(ARE) — Basic (RMB) 0.70 1.00
— B (ARYE) - Diluted (RMB) 0.70 1.00
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

20199124318
As at 31 December 2019

20195 20184
BaE ARET T ARETIT
2019 2018
Notes RMB’000 RMB'000
FRBEE Non-current Assets
L Y Property, plant and equipment 15 4,608,674 3,860,200
PREEE Right-of-use assets 16 690,518 -
BEWME  HWENEEZ Prepayments for purchase of
TR IR property, plant and equipment 172,027 89,160
EfES Prepaid lease payments 17 - 535,564
| EE Intangible assets 18 70,202 82,237
BAFEFAEMEEYEZ Equity instruments at fair value
BATEA through other comprehensive
income 20 668,708 1,801,394
BRI E E Deferred tax assets 21 53,984 213,741
S Goodwill 22 123,420 123,420
6,387,533 6,705,716
REEE Current Assets
rE Inventories 23 981,472 1,106,721
EHERBZWE Properties for sale 24 2,605,832 3,033,638
EfES Prepaid lease payments 17 - 15,766
H 5 Rk H A e GRIE Trade and other receivables 25 1,703,469 1,967,730
EHEIRRITER Pledged bank deposits 26 309,241 363,133
RITHEBRER S Bank balances and cash 26 2,943,792 3,331,147
8,543,806 9,818,135
REBEE Current Liabilities
B 5 REAEAFIE Trade and other payables 27(a) 2,733,247 2,701,711
aHaE Contract liabilities 27(b) 826,555 1,632,556
B8 Borrowings 28 510,600 873,150
MIEEE Tax liabilities 87,395 296,488
HEAE Lease liabilities 29 4,795 1
RAEA Deferred income 30 23,444 21,636
4,186,036 5,525,541
REBEEEE Net Current Assets 4,357,770 4,292,594
BEERTHERS Total Assets less Current Liabilities 10,745,303 10,998,310




mEMBRRE
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

H2019%F12H31H
As at 31 December 2019

20194 20184F
BaE ARETT ARETT
2019 2018
Notes RMB’000 RMB'000
BEARK #E Capital and Reserves
[N Share capital 31 200,397 200,397
i Reserves 7,679,622 8,136,209
RNAREE AEIGER Equity attributable to the owners of
the Company 7,880,019 8,336,606
FEIERR AR R M Non-controlling interests 1,075,604 1,055,593
R Total Equity 8,955,623 9,392,199
kREBEE Non-current Liabilities
PRIEW A Deferred income 30 265,391 285,782
RERIBAG Deferred tax liabilities 21 58,929 111,029
BE Borrowings 28 1,420,550 1,209,300
HEaE Lease liabilities 29 44,810 =
1,789,680 1,606,111
10,745,303 10,998,310

F1D RSB VA ERERRKCEEZT 2N 20205E The consolidated financial statements on pages 125 to 253 were
SHSE L ARIEHETRZE  WHTHATRES approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 28
= . March 2020 and are signed on its behalf by:

RER RE g
Zhang Jianhong Zhang Zhefeng
EF EF
Director Director
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

EFE2019F12A31 HIFFE
For the year ended 31 December 2019

ROTHEARE

Attributable to owners of the Company

Bx  Rftef ‘#)\EIR‘ iR RARE E&%%% E?@% REEN 44 ﬁ%ﬁ; a8

i b
AR ARETR  ARRIn ARETL ARBTR ARMTR ARBTn ARRTR ARRTR ARMIT ARETZ

Share  Share  Fairvalue  Merger  Capital Statutory Share  Retained Total Non- Total
capital  premium though  reserve  reserve  surplus  heldfor  earnings controlling
other reserve  employee interests
comprehensive share
income oKnon
reserve scheme

RMBOOO  RMB000 RMBOOO  RMB000 RMBOOO RMB’QOO RMB'(JOO RMBOOO  RMBOOO  RMBO00  RMBO00
(W) (ko) (W) (ko)
[Notea  (Noteb)  (Note (Note30)

}}42018@ A1 AtlJanuary 2018 00397 12494 (19809 (200 113076 812982 - 4300563 668993 602679 729260
oft for the year - - - - - - - Q1909 2129098 305601 2434699

E&g%f ﬁg"@mz e Fa\ va\ue loss on equiy instruments at fair value
g ﬁifé through other comprehensive income = - (52900 - - - - - 52900 - (52000

TEERTNGEE Total comprehensive income for the year = = (52902 = = = - 908 20761% 305601 2381797

gz Transfer - - - - 1109 149034 - (1903 1,109 100 1209

EFARBRERNE-THBAA Acquisifon of furher interestin a subsidary fiom

Z}Eﬂ i;ga non-coniroling nteress - - - - (3903) - = - (59037 (622600 (121.297)

FERRRER A Captal controution from non-controling

Interests - - - - 188 - - -8 wee A01%

B2 ) Dividends paic - - - - - - - (15168 (515168) - ([515169)

ASENELTRRRNRE Dividends paid bg subsidares of the group = = = = = = = = - 968 G9e)

grnEhEny Partal disposal o 3 subsidiay - - - - - - - . S 14 I 1)

H018E1231R At3'| December 2018 200397 1204924 (;am) (32,2100 198731 962,016 - 5855459 8336606 1055593 9,392,199

%Mﬂ Proft for the year - - - - - - - 1462974 1462974 219307 174281

Ay EET;L)\EE ENE R Fa\rva\ue losson equity nstruments at fir value

20 HERR thiough other compiefienshe incore - - (111929 - - - - - (1119292 - (1119292

REEREbGEE Total compehensie ncome for heyea - - (111929 - - - - AL MBER 13T 62989
ﬁﬂ”fﬁég)\ﬁ{ﬂ’\@”&‘\z Transfer of de-vecognition of equity instruments
& Imﬁi/ﬁém}% atfair valug through other comprehensive

income - - 31,008 - - - - (31008 - - -

E% Transfer - - - - 1,046 258,853 - (2588%3) 1,046 60 1,106
FEBREHATEORG Repurchase of shares under employee share

option scheme - - - - - - (168897) - (168897) - (168897)

FERRRERTE Capte cortibution fiom non-controling nteests - - - - - - - - -0 39,200

Bilks Dividends paid - - - - - - - (632418 (632419) - (632419)

RESNBAIRRENMRS  Dividends paid by subsiciares of the Group - - - - - - - - - (298556) (298,556)

Ra19E12A31A At 31 December 2019 200397 120494 (1,160,995)  (32.210) 199777 1220869  (168897) 6396154 7880019 1075604 8955623

FaE - Notes:

(@ APHHEBERE R 20065 TR 2 EEEAE - (@) Merger reserve arose in group reorganisation completed in 2006.

()  R2007F11A168 » RAREEMERIEETERE (b)  On 16 November 2007, the Company repurchased all of the 275,000,000 previously
f80.1 th %Hx275 000,000% 1M 5% % & [o] & @ AR B issued ordinary shares of US$0.1 each and these repurchased ordinary shares were
Ekj:ux H Hﬁ B R AARBETRA— ity - FA cancelled with all of the authorised but unissued share capital as of that date. On
#&12754,000,000,00008 FRREE0N AT 2 T EBAR - KX the same date, the authorised share capital was increased to HK$400,000,000 by
7E AR 7R 45 22 400,000,00015 7T, E’\2007¢ 18158 - miRA the creation of 4,000,000,000 new ordinary shares of HK$0.1 each. 275,000,000 new
AR 2 % 77275,000,0008% 5 AR 1 H0.1 %5 TR o B ordinary shares of HK$0.1 each were then issued to the shareholders existing on 15
[l & FRBBE BT 3TN B2 S B s ARG November 2007. The excess of the repurchased amount over the nominal amount of

new shares issued was credited directly to the capital reserve.
1) B B X B FE 1R AR R 3R U B BB M o SR A B JE P AR AR The acquisitions of additional interest from non-controlling shareholders of
HiEm o5 AWESZBEITE wEEERRA subsidiaries were recognised as transactions with non-controlling interests and the
fE5IAR X8 - corresponding discount/premium were credited/debited directly against capital
reserve.

(© WBEFEARAMBE([PEDATERIEBLGERE (©  In accordance with the Company Law of People’s Republic of China (“PRC") and the
2R AR AP EMNE AR ESEENEETBE S relevant Articles of Association, the PRC subsidiaries of the Company are required
ERIETE ZBRBEREF10%2 @ BEAETERBRERE to appropriate amount equal to 10% of their profit after taxation as determined in

accordance with the PRC accounting standards to the statutory surplus reserve.
EERBEBARREG 2 — D BHAMRERIEE Statutory surplus reserve is part of shareholders’ equity and when its balance reaches
R EAR0% &3 - BIBEE—F DA - RIBFFE L an amount equal to 50% of the registered capital, further appropriation is not
BV AERBHEERREEMBATER  BNEER required. According to the Company Law of the PRC, statutory surplus reserve may
FE e @ S I iR R be used to make up past losses, to increase production and business operations or to

increase capital by means of conversion.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

EFE2019F 1231 AILFE

For the year ended 31 December 2019

20195 20184F
ARET T ARETTT
2019 2018
RMB’'000 RMB'000
RETED OPERATING ACTIVITIES
R A& A Profit before tax 2,120,300 3,234,899
FEIFH Adjustments for:
BEAIHLE Interest paid 100,528 97,135
RITFRH B Bank deposits interest income (37,349) (21,376)
KERATAEZERBEWA Dividend received from equity instruments (10,800) -
REUR AR Realisation of deferred income (23,734) (34,110)
W,/ (BR)E SEWFIEME  Recognition/(reversal) of impairment on
trade receivables 1,379 (275)
Y% MR REBITE Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 552,653 651,812
I EEE Amortisation of intangible assets 14,692 14,576
FHREEENE Depreciation of right-of-use assets 22,768 =
ERENES Release of prepaid lease payments - 15,311
WREFE Write-down of inventories 10,577 6,821
HEYE -« SRR EBE Loss on disposals of property, plant
and equipment 17,594 88,531
RIEERIE A EFAEMEE  Loss upon de-recognition of equity
Was 2 AT B/ EE instruments at fair value through other
comprehensive income 2,446 -
HE—ENB AR AR Gain on disposal of a subsidiary = (44)
HEEFEEENNRE Gain on disposal of intangible assets (948) =
E|EERE Impairment of intangible assets 5,630 =
(Bem) TERWE RS (Reversal)/recognition of impairment of property,
B plant and equipment (3,128) 3,128
LEELEHAZELINEIRE  Operating cash flows before movements in
working capital 2,772,608 4,056,408
FERL,/(38m) Decrease/(increase) in inventories 114,672 (136,490)
B NEMERTIER L (3E1) Decrease/(increase) in trade and other receivables 262,882 (31,167)
ERERG 2 EEZMER D/ (3L IN)Decrease/(increase) in properties under
development for sale 427,806 (1,227,694)
B 5 N H b e R IEE 1 Increase in trade and other payables 32,638 401,395
RAEEME RS ORD), IEH  (Decrease)/increase in deposits from
pre-sale of properties (806,001) 1,272,638
EEYAIE 0 Increase in deferred income 5,151 88,448
LEFERE Cash generated from operations 2,809,756 4,423,538
BT E T RIENF Income taxes and withholding tax paid (479,455) (550,156)
RETHBREFHE NET CASH FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES 2,330,301 3,873,382
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20195 20184F
ARET T ARETTT
2019 2018
RMB’'000 RMB'000
REED INVESTING ACTIVITIES
EEYE  HWRERE Purchase of property, plant and equipment (1,486,819) (876,595)
SAHEREAE BN +#FH4E  Payment for right-of-use assets/prepaid land lease (109,892) (85,221)
BEETEE Purchase of intangible assets (12,841) (15,166)
EHFIE Interest received 37,349 21,376
2w EH§$IEZH“ A Dividend received from equity instruments 10,800 -
DIIRITIFRAEEIE/(F3X)  Proceeds from/(payment for) pledged bank deposits 53,892 (330,273)
HEME  HENREEZHIE  Proceeds from disposals of property, plant and
equipment 88,359 37,849
HeEmPEENSRIE Proceeds from disposal of intangible assets 5,502 _
HERNFEFAEMEEWZZ  Proceeds from disposal of equity instruments at fair
AT BB FT1S5KIE value through other comprehensive income 13,949 =
HE—FEBARIMESAHESE  Net cash outflow from disposal of a subsidiary = (1,561)
EEIRA TP EFAEMEEWEZ  Purchase of equity instruments at fair value through
AT R other comprehensive income (3,000) (652,813)
B 2R R E — B AR Acquisition of interest in subsidiary from minority
gy shareholders = (121,298)
RETEFTAREFE NET CASH USED IN INVESTING ACTIVITIES (1,402,701) (2,023,702)
BMEES FINANCING ACTIVITIES
£5E8E Borrowings raised 1,182,600 1,576,000
BEEE Repayments of borrowings (1,333,897) (1,314,373)
EEREIREZIETELRSD Payment on repurchase of shares under employee
S ATRIE share option scheme (168,897) =
BEASHE Interest paid (100,528) (97,135)
YHBEEAE Repayments of lease liabilities (2,459) _
B E Dividends paid (930,974) (574,336)
FEIE AR AR R A Capital contribution from non-controlling interests 39,200 420,195
METFE(FA), FiBREFH  NET CASH (USED IN) FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
(1,314,955) 10,351
BeRERRELER L)/ NET (DECREASE)/INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH
BhnFEEE EQUIVALENTS (387,355) 1,860,031
FYRERZERASELER CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT BEGINNING
OF THE YEAR 3,331,147 1471116
FRESRERREHER CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END OF THE
YEAR
B - represented by:
IRITHEHR MRS Bank balances and cash 2,943,792 3,331,147
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1.

EHF2019%F12A31 B IFHFE
For the year ended 31 December 2019

General

Dongyue Group Limited (the “Company”) was incorporated in
the Cayman Islands on 24 July 2006 as an exempted company
with limited liability. The address of its registered office is P.O. Box

119, Grand Pavilion, Hibiscus Way, 802 West Bay Road, Grand
Cayman, KY1-1205, Cayman Islands. The shares of the Company
have been listed on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of

Hong Kong Limited since 10 December 2007.

The Company is an investment holding company. The principal
activities of its subsidiaries are set out in note 37.

The Company is an investment holding company. The Company
and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”) are
principally engaged in the manufacture, distribution and sale
of refrigerants, polymers, organic silicone and dichloromethane,
polyvinyl chloride ("PVC") and liquid alkali and others. In addition,
the Group is also engaged in property development in the
People’s Republic of China (the “PRC").

The addresses of principal place of business of the Company are
disclosed in the “Corporate Information” section to the annual
report.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Renminbi

("RMB"), which is also the functional currency of the Company and
its subsidiaries.
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2. Application of new and amendments to

International Financial Report Standards
(“IFRSs”)

New and amendments to IFRSs that are
mandatorily effective for the current year

In the current year, the Group has applied the following new and
amendments to IFRSs issued by the International Accounting
Standards Board (“IASB”) for the first time:

IFRS 16 Leases

IFRIC 23 Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments

Amendments to IFRS9  Prepayment Features with Negative
Compensation

Amendments to IAS 19 Plan Amendment, Curtailment or
Settlement

Amendments to IAS 28  Long-term Interests in Associates and
Joint Ventures

Amendments to IFRSs Annual Improvements to IFRSs 2015-

2017 Cycle

Except as described below, the application of the new and
amendments to HKFRSs in the current year has had no material
impact on the Group's financial positions and performance for the
current and prior years and/or on the disclosures set out in these
consolidated financial statements.

IFRS 16 Leases
The Group has applied IFRS 16 for the first time in the current
year. IFRS 16 superseded IAS 17 Leases (“IAS 17"), and the related

interpretations.

>
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BE2019F 1231 HIFFE
For the year ended 31 December 2019

Application of new and amendments to
International Financial Report Standards
(“IFRSs”) (Continued)

New and amendments to IFRSs that are
mandatorily effective for the current year
(Continued)

IFRS 16 Leases (Continued)

Definition of a lease

The Group has elected the practical expedient to apply IFRS 16
to contracts that were previously identified as leases applying IAS
17 and IFRIC-Int 4 Determining whether an Arrangement contains
a Lease and not apply this standard to contracts that were not
previously identified as containing a lease. Therefore, the Group
has not reassessed contracts which already existed prior to the
date of initial application.

For contracts entered into or modified on or after 1 January 2019,
the Group applies the definition of a lease in accordance with the
requirements set out in IFRS 16 in assessing whether a contract
contains a lease.
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2.

Application of new and amendments to
International Financial Report Standards
(“IFRSs”) (Continued)

New and amendments to IFRSs that are
mandatorily effective for the current year
(Continued)

IFRS 16 Leases (Continued)

As a lessee

According to IFRS 16, the Group is required to capitalise all leases
when it is the lessee, including leases previously classified as
operating leases under IAS 17, other than those short-term leases
and leases of low-value assets which are exempt. As far as the
Group is concerned, these newly capitalised leases are primarily in
relation to property, plant and equipment and land use right.

At the date of transition to IFRS 16 (i.e. 1 January 2019), the
Group determined the length of the remaining lease terms and
measured the lease liabilities for the leases previously classified
as operating leases at the present value of the remaining lease
payments, discounted using the relevant incremental borrowing
rates at 1 January 2019. The incremental borrowing rates used
for determination of the present value of the remaining lease
payments ranged from 4.75% to 5.125%.

2019%1H1H
AR¥T
1 January 2019
RMB’000
Operating lease commitments disclosed as

WER2018F 12831 B 2 & &R EFIE at 31 December 2018 67,107
B R B 2R Less: total future interest expenses (14,412)
R2019F 1 AV HIERZTHEGE Lease liabilities recognised as at 1 January 2019 52,695

DT Analysed as
pinEdl Current 3,907
FERED Non-current 48,788
52,695
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For the year ended 31 December 2019

Application of new and amendments to
International Financial Report Standards
(“IFRSs”) (Continued)

New and amendments to IFRSs that are
mandatorily effective for the current year
(Continued)

IFRS 16 Leases (Continued)

As a lessee (Continued)

The right-of-use assets in relation to leases previously classified as
operating leases have been recognised at an amount equal to the
amount recognised for the remaining lease liabilities, adjusted by
the amount of any prepaid or accrued lease payments relating to
that lease recognised in the statement of financial position at 31
December 2018.

R2019F 1 A1 HEBENEEESERT The carrying amount of right-of-use assets for own use as at 1

EEETY|&IE : January 2019 comprises the following:
ERAEEE
B EE ARET T
Right-of-use assets
Note RMB’000

RER 4 BB B 75 3 5 YE BI| 28 165R 18 Right-of-use assets relating to operating leases

R ETHERMER#EEE  recognised upon application of IFRS 16 52,695
BFENESEFH A Reclassified from prepaid lease payments @) 551,330
604,025
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R REET RSS2
S EES (I T & T
811) ()

T2 4F 38 1 A S R RT IR AR B ET
B iR Bt %5 3 o 22 R (7))

B MR B SR E B 165 HE (ME)
TEREFAA (B)
R2019F 1 A1 AHEEER(BE)NFE

Application of new and amendments to
International Financial Report Standards
(“IFRSs”) (Continued)

New and amendments to IFRSs that are

mandatorily effective for the current year
(Continued)

IFRS 16 Leases (Continued)
As a lessee (Continued)
Impacts on asset and (liabilities) as at 1 January 2019

A20196
SRR 1818
20184 & BEEREREK

128318 BEIBBHHRE RE2EA
2F]H  ERE16%5 E165EH

FREE VB IREE
BitEE ARETT ARBTRT ARBTET
Carrying
amount Carrying
previously amount
reported at Impact of under IFRS 16
31 December adopting  at 1 January
2018 IFRS 16 2019
Notes RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
TREEE Right-of-use assets = 604,025 604,025
Prepaid lease payments —
Fafti& — FERNEA non-current @) 535,564 (535,564) -
Prepaid lease payments —
A iEE — BHE current @) 15,766 (15,766) -
HEBE-RD Lease liabilities — current = (3,907) (3,907)
HEBE-IERD Lease liabilities — non-current = (48,788) (48,788)
g3 Notes

(@ 20185 12A310 - ERYENHEE T HTE
NHRESBEABNES - REMWERI RS
R F165%1% © 9 Bl A A R¥ES35,564,0007T &
AR %15,776,0007T K FERNHR K BN EA B0 9 A 15 78
SEFDBAFEREELE -

(@)  Upfront payments for leasehold lands for own used properties were
classified as prepaid lease payments as at 31 December 2018. Upon
application of IFRS 16, the non-current and current portion of prepaid
lease payments amounting to RMB535,564,000 and RMB15,776,000
respectively were reclassified to right-of-use assets.



2. BERFE REBE 2 BB

HEA(T BRI R E %
a1 1) (%)
© 9875 18 14 K 4 R H R R R AR AE AT
B iR Bt 75 3 o 22 R

REEIEIRFRAIATEB/MERARER
ZHR] R ERT BIFR B 53R 5 22 R

B PR B 745 s 5 42 REBEL
FE75%

B B B T w42 Al EBHER’
EELACCHIRY)

30 B B 7 s A 22 R
FI0R N EREE

REEBRABEN
A AERELZ

REMBRRME
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BE2019F 1231 HIFFE
For the year ended 31 December 2019

2. Application of new and amendments to

International Financial Report Standards
(“IFRSs”) (Continued)

New and amendments to IFRSs in issue but not yet
effective

The Group has not early applied the following new and
amendments to IFRSs that have been issued but are not yet
effective:

IFRS 17 Insurance Contracts'
Amendments to IFRS 3 Definition of a Business?

Amendments to IFRS 10 Sale or Contribution of Assets between

and IAS 28 an Investor and its Associate or Joint

AR 2858 (185]
)
BB RrAERI S 158

BHEEREX
&>
BEAMEE

Amendments to IAS 1

Venture®

Definition of Material*

KB EFT4ERIZES
UACCHEAN)

Il % B 745 e 25 42
FoIR - BIREEE
B 395% K EUFR Bt
B E R E 7R
CHEN)

ESSES

! M2021F1 A1 B ARG < FEEARAERK -

: B BB 2020 1 A1 B s 2 R FIA ) E 1
FREMMMNE AR RNOEBEHREER
BB

: IR EARTEE 2 B HIsk AR FsR 2 F I AR AR -

g 202051 A1 Bk AR IR 2 FEEARAER -

B _ElUE AT RAE 7] B BR B s o o5 ZE RN -
S ST S RS B AEZE PR 2018 F 781 - H
& BB ] BIRN AT T 4R & 2 Rl o 21 B2 HE SR 1Y
FEUEATIE AT HE PR 202091 A1 B sk A& AR 2
FEHARAER

and IAS 8

Amendments to IFRS 9,  Interest Rate Benchmark Reform?*
IAS 39 and IFRS 7

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2021.

e Effective for business combinations and asset acquisitions for
which the acquisition date is on or after the beginning of the
first annual period beginning on or after 1 January 2020.

= Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a date to
be determined.

4 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2020.

In addition to the above new and amendments to IFRSs, a revised
Conceptual Framework for Financial Reporting was issued in 2018.
Its consequential amendments, the Amendments to References to
the Conceptual Framework in IFRS Standards, will be effective for
annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2020.
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2.

Application of new and amendments to
International Financial Report Standards
(“IFRSs”) (Continued)

New and amendments to IFRSs in issue but not yet
effective (Continued)

Except for the new and amendments to IFRSs mentioned below,

the directors of the Company anticipate that the application of all
other new and amendments to IFRSs will have no material impact
on the consolidated financial statements in the foreseeable future.

Amendments to IAS 1 and IAS 8 Definition of Material

The amendments provide refinements to the definition of material
by including additional guidance and explanations in making
materiality judgments. In particular, the amendments:

include the concept of “obscuring” material information
in which the effect is similar to omitting or misstating the
information;

replace threshold for materiality influencing users from “could
influence” to “could reasonably be expected to influence";
and

include the use of the phrase “primary users” rather than
simply referring to “users” which was considered too broad
when deciding what information to disclose in the financial
statements.

The amendments also align the definition across all IFRSs and will
be mandatorily effective for the Group'’s annual period beginning
on 1 January 2020. The application of the amendments is not
expected to have significant impact on the financial position and
performance of the Group but may affect the presentation and
disclosures in the consolidated financial statements.



3. TESHHE

BREH

RAEMBRRIIREER S ENEEER
e B BR B 75 5 R A AR ﬁﬁl\ : *Aﬁﬁ
BRABEEEMERSMERARES L
MR REA(R ﬂﬂ;ﬂﬁﬂ)ﬁﬁmz;@ﬁﬁ ﬁﬂﬁ 2

]Em RS

RAMBRRIDVABELRA LR - EET
ERTARERSMRRAFEFE  F15
BN TN XFAECEH -

BEERA—RieXHmEmzREZAFER

=
e

AFEERTEBEMS2EERERFR
SHPLE—BHEENRRSEE—HEAEA
I ZER  TwZEBEREEEREITEE
A AEMEES AL AET - WTHE2 R
ENFTERHEENEBETEREERE
ERAENEY  AIASERNEEESE
BENATERSEEZSHE - ZSHE8H
BHREPIETER B ERENAFETD
R EEET  ERREMISREELSE
2SR L AR 17 35 1 30 E &6 B ) LARR 15 1 SR A 22
5 - BB k& RIS 165%( H2019
F1IATER)SEBE e ERE 175 (RER

BB B A5 3R 5 B 65k AT BIE A E

RS URBEQATEASSAEHITELIE

AFENFE  EMEESTEREIRE

ERMT IR FEREE S ERFE365HRE
EJREREREBER -

REMBRRME
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BE2019F 1231 HIFFE
For the year ended 31 December 2019

3. Significant accounting policies

Statement of compliance

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards
issued by IASB. In addition, the consolidated financial statements
include applicable disclosures required by The Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited and by the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on the
historical cost basis except for certain financial instruments that
are measured at fair values at the end of each reporting period, as
explained in the accent policies set out below.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the
consideration given in exchange for goods.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or
paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market
participants at the measurement date, regardless of whether that
price is directly observable or estimated using another valuation
technique. In estimating the fair value of an asset or a liability,
the Group takes into account the characteristics of the asset or
liability if market participants would take those characteristics into
account when pricing the asset or liability at the measurement
date. Fair value for measurement and/or disclosure purposes in
these consolidated financial statements is determined on such a
basis, except for share-based payment transactions that are within
the scope of IFRS 2 Share-based Payment, leasing transactions that
are accounted for in accordance with IFRS 16 (since 1 January
2019) or IAS 17 (before application of IFRS 16), and measurements
that have some similarities to fair value but are not fair value, such
as net realisable value in IAS 2 Inventories or value in use in IAS 36

Impairment of Assets.
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Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Basis of preparation (Continued)

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value
measurements are categorised into Level 1, 2 or 3 based on the
degree to which the inputs to the fair value measurements are
observable and the significance of the inputs to the fair value
measurement in its entirety, which are described as follows:

Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets
for identical assets or liabilities that the entity can access at the
measurement date; Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted
prices included within Level 1, that are observable for the asset
or liability, either directly or indirectly; and Level 3 inputs are
unobservable inputs for the asset or liability.

The principal accounting policies are set out below.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial
statements of the Company and entities controlled by the
Company and its subsidiaries. Control is achieved when the
Company:

has power over the investee;

is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the investee; and

has the ability to use its power to affect its returns.
The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if

facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes to one or
more of the three elements of control listed above.
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REMBRRME
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BE2019F 1231 HIFFE
For the year ended 31 December 2019

3. Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Basis of consolidation (Continued)

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group obtains
control over the subsidiary and ceases when the Group loses
control of the subsidiary. Specifically, income and expenses
of a subsidiary acquired or disposed of during the year are
included in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income from the date the Group gains control
until the date when the Group ceases to control the subsidiary.

Profit or loss and each item of other comprehensive income
are attributed to the owners of the Company and to the non-
controlling interests. Total comprehensive income of subsidiaries
is attributed to the owners of the Company and to the non-
controlling interests even if this results in the non-controlling
interests having a deficit balance.

When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial statements
of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies into line with the
Group's accounting policies.

All intragroup assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses

and cash flows relating to transactions between members of the
Group are eliminated in full on consolidation.

Dongyue Group Limited Annual Report 2019 141



mAEMBRRME

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

EFE2019F12A31 HIFFE
For the year ended 31 December 2019

TEETEEE)
FEERERAHBLRNERSE

A AR E R B A B B E) W BB
SEKELME QR MIEHIE - RIARKRSIE
ARG - NEE AR NIRRT R
SAKE D REECFHAR  ARBREK
ERHBARIMNAHERES - BEREAN
SEEIMERRRERNLL HIESRE N RE
SR B B A A R M 2 2 RV AE R R

FEEERERHBRSREDSNHCKRE
A EZ BN EMEZREREE ST R
R XFRENARBEABA o

EARKEKEY B ARG
ZMB AT IR R ER () WEE
KB BB ILHER - BERBRAER
¥z (IBRREAFEREARERER
FEABEMARAERSARGHBATZ
BE(BERR) RARKREECEEAE
FTA RN E b 2 W et W77 2 B A X T /B
REIZFIE - BRENAEEEERLEZ
MEARZHEBEEXBBEARBIZER
BRI SR 2 R E /R AHIEXXE#T D
BEBaRBRES D)  NKREE
HEEARAIMBARREZEAREZR
FESREERYERSERNFS - NE
‘AR BRIV SR 2 AFE - (i
BRIR T ERFRINERBE QR 2

3. Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Changes in the Group’s interests in existing
subsidiaries

Changes in the Group’s interests in subsidiaries that do not result
in the Group losing control over the subsidiaries are accounted
for as equity transactions. The carrying amounts of the Group's
relevant components of equity and the non-controlling interests
are adjusted to reflect the changes in their relative interests in the
subsidiaries including re-attribuction of relevant reserves between
the Group and the non-controlling interests according to the
Group's and the non-controlling interests’ proportionate interests.

Any difference between the amounts by which of the non-
controlling interests are adjusted and the fair value of the
consideration paid or received is recognised directly in equity and
attributed to owners of the Company.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, the assets and
liabilities of that subsidiary and non-controlling interests (if any)
are derecognised. A gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss
and is calculated as the difference between (i) the aggregate of
the fair value of the consideration received and the fair value of
any retained interest and (i) the carrying amount of the assets
(including goodwill), and liabilities of the subsidiary attributable to
the owners of the Company. All amounts previously recognised
in other comprehensive income in relation to that subsidiary are
accounted for as if the Group had directly disposed of the related
assets or liabilities of the subsidiary (i.e. reclassified to profit or loss
or transferred to another category of equity as specified/permitted
by applicable IFRSs). The fair value of any investment retained in
the former subsidiary at the date when control is lost is regarded
as the fair value on initial recognition for subsequent accounting
under IFRS 9 or, when applicable, the cost on initial recognition of
an investment in an associate.
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For the year ended 31 December 2019

Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Goodwill

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a business is carried at cost
as established at the date of acquisition of the business (see the
accounting policy above) less accumulated impairment losses, if
any.

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill is allocated to
each of the Group’s cash-generating units (or groups of cash-
generating units) that is expected to benefit from the synergies of
the combination.

A cash-generating unit (or group of cash-generating units) to
which goodwill has been allocated is tested for impairment
annually or more frequently when there is indication that the
unit may be impaired. For goodwill arising on an acquisition
in a reporting period, the cash-generating unit (or group of
cash-generating units) to which goodwill has been allocated is
tested for impairment before the end of that reporting period.
If the recoverable amount is less than its carrying amount, the
impairment loss is allocated first to reduce the carrying amount
of any goodwill and then to the other assets of the unit on a
pro-rata basis based on the carrying amount of each asset in the
unit (or group of cash-generating units). Any impairment loss for
goodwill is recognised directly in profit or loss. An impairment loss
recognised for goodwill is not reversed in subsequent periods.

On disposal of the relevant cash-generating unit, the attributable
amount of goodwill is included in the determination of the
amount of profit or loss on disposal.

The Group's policy for goodwill arising on the acquisition of an
associate is described below.
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3. Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers

The Group recognises revenue when (or as) a performance
obligation is satisfied, i.e. when “control” of the goods or services
underlying the particular performance obligation is transferred to
the customer.

A performance obligation represents a good or service (or a
bundle of goods or services) that is distinct or a series of distinct
goods or services that are substantially the same.

Control is transferred over time and revenue is recognised over
time by reference to the progress towards complete satisfaction of
the relevant performance obligation if one of the following criteria
is met:

the customer simultaneously receives and consumes the
benefits provided by the Group’s performance as the Group
performs;

the Group's performance creates or enhances an asset that
the customer controls as the Group performs; or

the Group's performance does not create an asset with
an alternative use to the Group and the Group has an
enforceable right to payment for performance completed to
date.

Otherwise, revenue is recognised at a point in time when the

customer obtains control of the distinct good or service.

A contract liability represents the Group's obligation to transfer
goods or services to a customer for which the Group has received
consideration (or an amount of consideration is due) from the
customer.

A contract liability relating to the same contract are accounted for
and presented on a net basis.
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Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Leases

Definition of a lease (upon application of IFRS 16 in
accordance with transitions in note 2)

A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right
to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in
exchange for consideration.

For contracts entered into or modified or arising from business
combinations on or after the date of initial application, the
Group assesses whether a contract is or contains a lease based
on the definition under IFRS 16 at inception, modification date
or acquisition date, as appropriate. Such contract will not be
reassessed unless the terms and conditions of the contract are
subsequently changed.

The Group as a lessee (upon application of IFRS 16 in
accordance with transitions in note 2)

As a practical expedient, leases with similar characteristics are
accounted on a portfolio basis when the Group reasonably
expects that the effects on the consolidated financial statements
would not differ materially from individual leases within the
portfolio.
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Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Leases (Continued)

The Group as a lessee (upon application of IFRS 16 in
accordance with transitions in note 2) (Continued)

Right-of-use assets

The cost of right-of-use asset includes:

the amount of the initial measurement of the lease liability;

any lease payments made at or before the commencement
date, less any lease incentives received;

any initial direct costs incurred by the Group; and

an estimate of costs to be incurred by the Group in
dismantling and removing the underlying assets, restoring
the site on which it is located or restoring the underlying
asset to the condition required by the terms and conditions
of the lease.

Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less any accumulated
depreciation and impairment losses, and adjusted for any

remeasurement of lease liabilities.

Right-of-use assets in which the Group is reasonably certain to
obtain ownership of the underlying leased assets at the end of the
lease term are depreciated from commencement date to the end
of the useful life. Otherwise, right-of-use assets are depreciated on
a straight-line basis over the shorter of its estimated useful life and
the lease term.
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Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Leases (Continued)

The Group as a lessee (upon application of IFRS 16 in
accordance with transitions in note 2) (Continued)

Lease liabilities

At the commencement date of a lease, the Group recognises and
measures the lease liability at the present value of lease payments
that are unpaid at that date. In calculating the present value of
lease payments, the Group uses the incremental borrowing rate at
the lease commencement date if the interest rate implicit in the
lease is not readily determinable.

The lease payments include:

fixed payments (including in-substance fixed payments) less
any lease incentives receivable;

variable lease payments that depend on an index or a
rate, initially measured using the index or rate as at the
commencement date;

amounts expected to be payable by the Group under
residual value guarantees;

the exercise price of a purchase option if the Group is
reasonably certain to exercise the option; and

payments of penalties for terminating a lease, if the lease

term reflects the Group exercising an option to terminate the
lease.
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Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Leases (Continued)

The Group as a lessee (upon application of IFRS 16 in
accordance with transitions in note 2) (Continued)

Lease liabilities (Continued)

Variable lease payments that reflect changes in market rental
rates are initially measured using the market rental rates as at the
commencement date. Variable lease payments that do not depend
on an index or a rate are not included in the measurement of
lease liabilities and right-of-use assets, and are recognised as
expense in the period in which the event or condition that
triggers the payment occurs.

After the commencement date, lease liabilities are adjusted by

interest accretion and lease payments.

The Group remeasures lease liabilities (and makes a corresponding
adjustment to the related right-of-use assets) whenever:

the lease term has changed or there is a change in the
assessment of exercise of a purchase option, in which case
the related lease liability is remeasured by discounting the
revised lease payments using a revised discount rate at the
date of reassessment.

the lease payments change due to changes in market
rental rates following a market rent review in which cases
the related lease liability is remeasured by discounting the
revised lease payments using the initial discount rate.

The Group presents lease liabilities as a separate line item on the
consolidated statement of financial position.
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3. Significant accounting policies (Continued)

The Group as lessee (prior to 1 January 2019)

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of the
lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership
to the lessee. All other leases are classified as operating leases.

Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense on a
straight-line basis over the lease term, except where another
systematic basis is more representative of the time pattern in
which economic benefits from the leased asset are consumed.
Contingent rentals arising under operating leases are recognised
as an expense in the period in which they are incurred.

Leasehold land for own use (prior to 1 January
2019)

When a lease includes both land and building elements, the
Group assesses the classification of each element as a finance
or an operating lease separately based on the assessment as
to whether substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to
ownership of each element have been transferred to the Group,
unless it is clear that both elements are operating leases in which
case the entire lease is classified as an operating lease. Specifically,
the minimum lease payments (including any lump-sum upfront
payments) are allocated between the land and the building
elements in proportion to the relative fair values of the leasehold
interests in the land element and building element of the lease at
the inception of the lease.

To the extent the allocation of these payments can be made
reliably, interest in leasehold land that is accounted for as an
operating lease is presented as “prepaid lease payments” in the
consolidated statement of financial position and is amortised over
the lease term on a straight-line basis. When the lease payments
cannot be allocated reliably between the land and building
elements, the entire lease is generally classified as a finance lease
and accounted for as property, plant and equipment.
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3. Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual group
entity, transactions in currencies other than the functional
currency of that entity (foreign currencies) are recognised at the
rates of exchanges prevailing on the dates of the transactions. At
the end of the reporting period, monetary items denominated in
foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing at that
date.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary items,
and on the retranslation of monetary items, are recognised in
profit or loss in the period in which they arise.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, which are assets
that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for
their intended use or sale, are added to the cost of those assets
until such time as the assets are substantially ready for their
intended use or sale.

Any specific borrowing that remain outstanding after the related
asset is ready for its intended use or sale is included in the
general borrowing pool for calculation of capitalisation rate on
general borrowings. Investment income earned on the temporary
investment of specific borrowings pending their expenditure on
qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for
capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the
period in which they are incurred.
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3. Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Government grants

Government grants are not recognised until there is reasonable
assurance that the Group will comply with the conditions
attaching to them and that the grants will be received.

Government grants are recognised in profit or loss on a systematic
basis over the periods in which the Group recognises as expenses
the related costs for which the grants are intended to compensate.
Specifically, government grants of which the primary condition is
that the Group should purchase, construct or otherwise acquire
non-current assets are recognised as deferred income in the
consolidated statement of financial position and transferred to
profit or loss on a systematic and rational basis over the useful
lives of the related assets.

Government grants that are receivable as compensation for
expenses or losses already incurred or for the purpose of giving
immediate financial support to the Group with no future related
costs are recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they
become receivable.

Retirement benefit costs

Payments to state-managed retirement benefit schemes and the
Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme are recognised as expenses
when employees have rendered service entitling them to the
contributions.
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3. Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently
payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year.
Taxable profit differs from profit before tax as reported in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income because income or expense that are taxable or deductible
in other years and items that are never taxable or deductible. The
Group's liability for current tax is calculated using tax rates that
have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the
reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the consolidated
financial statements and the corresponding tax base used in the
computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally
recognised for all taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax
assets are generally recognised for all deductible temporary
difference to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits will
be available against which those deductible temporary differences
can be utilised. Such assets and liabilities are not recognised if
the temporary difference arises from goodwill or from the initial
recognition (other than in a business combination) of other assets
and liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the taxable profit
nor the accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences associated with investments in subsidiaries and
associates, except where the Group is able to control the reversal
of the temporary difference and it is probable that the temporary
difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future. Deferred tax
assets arising from deductible temporary differences associated
with such investments and interests are only recognised to the
extent that it is probable that there will be sufficient taxable profits
against which to utilise the benefits of the temporary differences
and they are expected to reverse in the foreseeable future.
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3. Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Taxation (Continued)

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end
of the reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no
longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to
allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates
that are expected to apply in the period in which the liability is
settled or the asset is realised, based on tax rate (and tax laws)
that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of
the reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects the
tax consequences that would follow from the manner in which
the Group expects, at the end of the reporting period, to recover
or settle the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.

Current and deferred tax is recognised in profit or loss,
except when it relates to items that are recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case, the
current and deferred tax is also recognised in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity respectively. Where the current tax
or deferred tax arises from the initial accounting for a business
combination, the tax effect is included in the accounting for
business combination.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are tangible assets that are held
for use in the production or supply of goods or services, or for
administrative purposes (other than construction in progress
as described below). Property, plant and equipment are stated
in the consolidated statement of financial position at cost
less subsequent accumulated depreciation and subsequent
accumulated impairment losses, if any.
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3. Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

Buildings in the course of construction in progress for production,
supply or administrative purposes are carried at cost, less any
recognised impairment loss. Costs include any costs directly
attributable to bringing the asset to the location and condition
necessary for it to be capable of operating in the manner intended
by management and, for qualifying assets, borrowing costs
capitalised in accordance with the Group’s accounting policy.
Depreciation of these assets, on the same basis as other property
assets, commences when the assets are ready for their intended
use.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of assets
other than construction in progress less their residual values over
their estimated useful lives, using the straight-line method. The
estimated useful lives, residual values and depreciation method
are reviewed at the end of each reporting period, with the effect
of any changes in estimate accounted for on a prospective basis.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected to
arise from the continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising
on the disposal or retirement of an item of property, plant and
equipment is determined as the difference between the sales
proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and is recognised
in profit or loss.

Intangible assets

Intangible assets acquired separately

Intangible assets with finite useful lives that are acquired
separately are carried at costs less accumulated amortisation and
any accumulated impairment losses. Amortisation for intangible
assets with finite useful lives is provided on a straight-line basis
over their estimated useful lives. The estimated useful life and
amortisation method are reviewed at the end of each reporting
period, with the effective of any changes in estimate being
accounted for on a prospective basis.
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3. Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Intangible assets (Continued)

Research and development expenditure
Expenditure on research activities is recognised as an expense in
the period in which it is incurred.

Intangible assets acquired in a business combination
Intangible assets acquired in a business combination are
recognised separately from goodwill and are initially recognised at
their fair value at the acquisition date (which is regarded as their
cost).

Subsequent to initial recognition, intangible assets acquired in a
business combination with finite useful lives are reported at costs
less accumulated amortisation and any accumulated impairment
losses, on the same basis as intangible assets that are acquired
separately.

Derecognition of intangible assets

An intangible asset is derecognised on disposal, or when no future
economic benefits are expected from use or disposal. Gains or
losses arising from derecognition of an intangible asset, measured
as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the
carrying amount of the asset, are recognised in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income when
the asset is derecognised.

Exploration rights

Exploration rights are recognised at cost on initial recognition.
Subsequent to initial recognition, Exploration rights are stated at
cost less any accumulated impairment losses.

Exploration rights include the cost of exploration rights and the
expenditures incurred in the search for natural resources as well
as the determination of the technical feasibility and commercial
viability of extracting those resources.
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Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Intangible assets (Continued)

Exploration rights (Continued)

When the technical feasibility and commercial viability of
extracting natural resources become demonstrable, previously
recognised exploration rights are reclassified as either intangible
or tangible assets. These assets are assessed for impairment before
reclassification.

Impairment of exploration rights

The carrying amount of the exploration rights is reviewed annually.
When one of the following events or changes in circumstances,
which is not exhaustive, indicate that the carrying amount may
not be recoverable has occurred, impairment test is performed in

accordance with IAS 36 “Impairment of assets”.

the period for which the Group has the right to explore in
the specific area has expire during the period or will expire in

the near future, and is not expected to be renewed.

substantive expenditure on further exploration for and
evaluation of natural resources in the specific area is neither
budgeted nor planned.

exploration for and evaluation of natural resources in the
specific area have not led to discovery of commercially viable
quantities of natural resources and the Group has decided to
discontinue such activities in the specific area.

sufficient data exist to indicate that, although a development
in the specific area is likely to proceed, the carrying amount
of the exploration and evaluation asset is unlikely to be
recovered in full from successful development or by sale.

An impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss whenever the
carrying amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount.
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3. Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Impairment on property, plant and equipment,
right-of-use assets, and intangible assets other
than goodwill

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews the carrying
amounts of its property, plant and equipment, right-of-use
assets and intangible assets with finite useful lives to determine
whether there is any indication that these assets have suffered
an impairment loss. If any such indication exists, the recoverable
amount of the relevant asset is estimated in order to determine
the extent of the impairment loss (if any).

The recoverable amount of property, plant and equipment, right-
of-use assets, and intangible assets are estimated individually.
When it is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount
individually, the Group estimates the recoverable amount of the
cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs.

In addition, the Group assesses whether there is indication that
corporate assets may be impaired. If such indication exists,
corporate assets are also allocated to individual cash-generating
units, when a reasonable and consistent basis of allocation can be
identified, or otherwise they are allocated to the smallest group
of cash-generating units for which a reasonable and consistent
allocation basis can be identified.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs of
disposal and value in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated
future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a
pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of
the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset (or a
cash-generating unit) for which the estimates of future cash flows
have not been adjusted.
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3. Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Impairment on property, plant and equipment,
right-of-use assets, and intangible assets other
than goodwill (Continued)

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a cash-generating unit)
is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying
amount of the asset (or a cash-generating unit) is reduced to its
recoverable amount. For corporate assets or portion of corporate
assets which cannot be allocated on a reasonable and consistent
basis to a cash-generating unit, the Group compares the carrying
amount of a group of cash-generating units, including the
carrying amounts of the corporate assets or portion of corporate
assets allocated to that group of cash-generating units, with the
recoverable amount of the group of cash-generating units. In
allocating the impairment loss, the impairment loss is allocated
first to reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill (if applicable)
and then to the other assets on a pro-rata basis based on
the carrying amount of each asset in the unit or the group of
cash-generating units. The carrying amount of an asset is not
reduced below the highest of its fair value less costs of disposal
(if measurable), its value in use (if determinable) and zero. The
amount of the impairment loss that would otherwise have been
allocated to the asset is allocated pro rata to the other assets of
the unit or the group of cash-generating units. An impairment loss
is recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying
amount of the asset (or cash-generating unit or a group of cash-
generating units) is increased to the revised estimate of its
recoverable amount, but so that the increased carrying amount
does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been
determined had no impairment loss been recognised for the
asset (or a cash-generating unit or a group of cash-generating
units) in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised
immediately in profit or loss.
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Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value
at the end of each reporting date. Cost is calculated using the
weighted average method. Net realisable value represents the
estimated selling price for inventories less all estimated costs of
completion and costs necessary to make the sale.

Properties for sale

Completed properties for sale and properties under development
for sale are classified as current assets and carried at the lower of
cost and net realisable value. Cost comprises both the prepaid
lease payments for land and development costs for the properties.
Development costs of properties comprise construction
costs, borrowing costs capitalised according to the Group’s
accounting policy and directly attributable costs incurred during
the development period. Cost of each unit in each phase of
development is determined using the weighted average method.

Net realisable value takes into account the price ultimately
expected to be realised, less applicable selling expenses and the
anticipated costs to completion.

Properties for/under development for sale are transferred to
properties for sale upon completion.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when a
group entity becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the
instrument. All regular way purchases or sales of financial assets
are recognised and derecognised on a trade date basis. Regular
way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of financial assets
that require delivery of assets within the time frame established by
regulation or convention in the market place.
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Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at
fair value except for trade receivables which are initially measured
in accordance with IFRS 15. Transaction costs that are directly
attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and
financial liabilities (other than financial assets or financial liabilities
at fair value through profit or loss (“FVTPL") are added to or
deducted from the fair value of the financial assets or financial
liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction costs
directly attributable to the acquisition of financial assets or
financial liabilities at FVTPL are recognised immediately in profit or
loss.

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial asset or financial liability and of
allocating interest income and interest expense over the relevant
period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts
estimated future cash receipts and payments (including all fees
and points paid or received that form an integral part of the
effective interest rate, transaction costs and other premiums or
discounts) through the expected life of the financial asset or
financial liability, or, where appropriate, a shorter period, to the
net carrying amount on initial recognition.
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3. Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Financial assets

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial
assets

Financial assets that meet the following conditions are
subsequently measured at amortised cost:

the financial asset is held within a business model whose
objective is to collect contractual cash flows; and

the contractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash
flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on
the principal amount outstanding.

Financial assets that meet the following conditions are
subsequently measured at fair value through other comprehensive
income ("FVTOCI"):

the financial asset is held within a business model whose
objective is achieved by both selling and collecting
contractual cash flows; and

the contractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash
flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on
the principal amount outstanding.

All other financial assets are subsequently measured at FVTPL,
except that at the date of initial recognition of a financial asset the
Group may irrevocably elect to present subsequent changes in fair
value of an equity investment in other comprehensive income if
that equity investment is neither held for trading nor contingent
consideration recognised by an acquirer in a business combination
to which IFRS 3 “Business Combinations” applies.
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3. Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial

assets (Continued)
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Amortised cost and interest income

Interest income is recognised using the effective interest
method for financial assets measured subsequently at
amortised cost and calculated by applying the effective
interest rate to the gross carrying amount of a financial asset
except for financial assets that have subsequently become
credit-impaired (see below) invest income are included in
the “other gains and losses” line item.

For financial assets that have subsequently become credit-
impaired, interest income is recognised by applying the
effective interest rate to the amortised cost of the financial
asset from the next reporting period.

If the credit risk on the credit-impaired financial instrument
improves so that the financial asset is no longer credit-
impaired, interest income is recognised by applying the
effective interest rate to the gross carrying amount of the
financial asset from the beginning of the reporting period
following the determination that the asset is no longer credit
impaired.

Equity instruments designated as at FVTOCI

Investments in equity instruments at FVTOCI are subsequently
measured at fair value with gains and losses arising from
changes in fair value recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated in the FVTOCI reserve; and are not
subject to impairment assessment. The cumulative gain or
loss will not be reclassified to profit or loss on disposal of
the equity investments, and will continue to be held in the
FVTOCI reserve.

Dividends from these investments in equity instruments are
recognised in profit or loss when the Group's right to receive
the dividends is established, unless the dividends clearly
represent a recovery of part of the cost of the investment.
Dividends are included in the “other income” line item in
profit or loss.



3. FESFBER(E)

THMEE (&)

SRAEAE

AR EIRBERY B RS LA FORET R
BMSREAE(DERSREMERKE
BERRTERARRITEBERS)NE
A B I (TR B 12 B ) i T 5
o HAERBANSEN SRS A HE
B ARBREE AR S5 R
&) o

HEDRBEAEEBEEEBRERED
WHEBARER R - BN KL
RS B 82 B RO SR RO TR R RO FF
T IAFEEE

AEBEZEAFREEBEFESBRR
o BRIFEERR A MG RERAREE L
Tt AR ERAEHEREEEE o T
ELEAZHRBEEER - RIS
ERARBELEZONA LS RRE SRS
EFTE

REMBRRME
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BE2019F 1231 HIFFE
For the year ended 31 December 2019

Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets

The Group performs impairment assessment under expected
credit loss (“ECL") model on financial assets (including trade and
other receivables, pledged bank deposits, and bank balances and
cash which are subject to impairment under IFRS 9. The amount of
ECL is updated at each reporting date to reflect changes in credit
risk since initial recognition.

Assessment are done based on the Group's historical credit loss
experience, adjusted for factors that are specific to the debtors,
general economic conditions and an assessment of both the
current conditions at the reporting date as well as the forecast of
future conditions.

The Group measures the loss allowance equal to 12m ECL,
unless when there has been a significant increase in credit risk
since initial recognition, the Group recognises lifetime ECL. The
assessment of whether lifetime EGL should be recognised is
based on significant increases in the likelihood or risk of a default
occurring since initial recognition.
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3. Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

Significant increase in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk has increased significantly
since initial recognition, the Group compares the risk of a
default occurring on the financial instrument as at each
reporting date with the risk of a default occurring on the
financial instrument as at the date of initial recognition.
In making this assessment, the Group considers both
quantitative and qualitative information that is reasonable
and supportable, including historical experience and forward-
looking information that is available without undue cost or
effort.

In particular, the following information is taken into account
when assessing whether credit risk has increased significantly:

an actual or expected significant deterioration in the
financial instrument’s external (if available) or internal
credit rating;

significant deterioration in external market indicators of
credit risk, e.g. a significant increase in the credit spread;

existing or forecast adverse changes in business,
financial or economic conditions that are expected to
cause a significant decrease in the debtor’s ability to
meet its debt obligations;

an actual or expected significant deterioration in the
operating results of the debtor; and

an actual or expected significant adverse change in the
regulatory, economic, or technological environment of
the debtor that results in a significant decrease in the
debtor’s ability to meet its debt obligations.
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3. Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

(i)

Significant increase in credit risk (Continued)

Irrespective of the outcome of the above assessment, the
Group presumes that the credit risk has increased significantly
since initial recognition when contractual payments are more
than 30 days past due, unless the Group has reasonable and
supportable information that demonstrates otherwise.

Despite the aforegoing, the Group assumes that the credit
risk on a debt instrument has not increased significantly since
initial recognition if the debt instrument is determined to
have low credit risk at the reporting date. A debt instrument
is determined to have low credit risk if (i) it has a low risk of
default, (i) the borrower has a strong capacity to meet its
contractual cash flow obligations in the near term and (iii)
adverse changes in economic and business conditions in the
longer term may, but will not necessarily, reduce the ability
of the borrower to fulfil its contractual cash flow obligations.
The Group considers a debt instrument to have low credit
risk when it has an internal or external credit rating of
“investment grade” as per globally understood definitions.

The Group regularly monitors the effectiveness of the criteria
used to identify whether there has been a significant increase
in credit risk and revises them as appropriate to ensure that
the criteria are capable of identifying significant increase in
credit risk before the amount becomes past due.
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Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

Definition of default

For internal credit risk management, the Group considers
an event of default occurs when information developed
internally or obtained from external sources indicates that
the debtor is unlikely to pay its creditors, including the
Group, in full (without taking into account any collaterals
held by the Group).

Irrespective of the above, the Group considers that default
has occurred when a financial asset is more than 1 year
past due unless the Group has reasonable and supportable
information to demonstrate that a more lagging default
criterion is more appropriate.

Credit-impaired financial assets

A financial asset is credit-impaired when one or more events
that have a detrimental impact on the estimated future cash
flows of that financial asset have occurred. Evidence that a
financial asset is credit-impaired includes observable data
about the following events:

significant financial difficulty of the issuer or the
borrower;

a breach of contract, such as a default or past due

event;

the lender(s) of the borrower, for economic or
contractual reasons relating to the borrower’s
financial difficulty, having granted to the borrower a
concession(s) that the lender(s) would not otherwise
consider;

it is becoming probable that the borrower will enter
bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation; or

the disappearance of an active market for that financial
asset because of financial difficulties.

>
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Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

(iv)

(v)

Werite-off policy

The Group writes off a financial asset when there is
information indicating that the counterparty is in severe
financial difficulty and there is no realistic prospect of
recovery, for example, when the counterparty has been
placed under liquidation or has entered into bankruptcy
proceedings, whichever occurs sooner.

Financial assets written off may still be subject to
enforcement activities under the Group’ s recovery
procedures, taking into account legal advice where
appropriate. A write-off constitutes a derecognition event.
Any subsequent recoveries are recognised in profit or loss.

Measurement and recognition of ECL

The measurement of ECL is a function of the probability
of default, loss given default (i.e. the magnitude of the
loss if there is a default) and the exposure at default. The
assessment of the probability of default and loss given
default is based on historical data adjusted by forward-
looking information. Estimation of ECL reflects an unbiased
and probability-weighted amount that is determined with
the respective risks of default occurring as the weights.

Generally, the ECL is the difference between all contractual
cash flows that are due to the Group in accordance with
the contract and the cash flows that the Group expects to
receive, discounted at the effective interest rate determined

at initial recognition.
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3. Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

Measurement and recognition of ECL (Continued)

Where ECL is measured on a collective basis or cater for
cases where evidence at the individual instrument level may
not yet be available, the financial instruments are grouped
on the following basis:

Past-due status;

Nature, size and industry of debtors; and

External credit ratings where available.

The grouping is regularly reviewed by management to
ensure the constituents of each group continue to share
similar credit risk characteristics.

Interest income is calculated based on the gross carrying
amount of the financial asset unless the financial asset is
credit impaired, in which case interest income is calculated
based on amortized cost of the financial asset.

The Group recognises an impairment gain or loss in profit or
loss for all financial instruments by adjusting their carrying
amount, with the exception of trade and other receivables
and other financial assets measured at amortised cost, where
the corresponding adjustment is recognised through a loss
allowance account.

Derecognition of financial assets

Group derecognises a financial asset only when the

contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire, or when
it transfers the financial asset and substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership of the asset to another entity.

On derecognition of a financial asset measured at amortised cost,
the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the sum
of the consideration received and receivable is recognised in profit

or loss.
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Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Derecognition of financial assets (Continued)

On derecognition of an investment in equity instrument which the
Group has elected on initial recognition to measure at FVTOCI, the
cumulative gain or loss previously accumulated in the investments
revaluation reserve is not reclassified to profit or loss, but is
transferred to retained profits.

Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Classification as debt or equity

Debt and equity instruments are classified as either financial
liabilities or as equity in accordance with the substance of the
contractual arrangements and the definition of a financial liability
and an equity instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual
interest in the assets of the Group after deducting all of its
liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the Group are recognised
at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

Financial liabilities at amortised cost

All financial liabilities (including trade and other payables and
borrowings) are subsequently measured at amortised cost, using
the effective interest method.

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial liability and of allocating interest
expense over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is
the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments
through the expected life of the financial liability, or where
appropriate, a shorter period, to the net carrying amount on initial
recognition.

Derecognition of financial liabilities

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and only when,
the Group'’s obligations are discharged, cancelled or have expired.
The difference between the carrying amount of the financial
liability derecognised and the consideration paid and payable, is
recognised in profit or loss.
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3. Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Share based payment transactions

Equity-settled share-based payment transactions

Share options

For grants of share options that are conditional upon satisfying
specified vesting conditions, the fair value of services received is
determined by reference to the fair value of share options granted at
the grant date and is expensed on a straight-line basis over the vesting
period, with a corresponding increase in equity (share option reserve).

At the end of reporting period, the Group revises its estimates
of the number of options that are expected to ultimately vest.
The impact of the revision of the original estimates, if any, is
recognised in profit or loss such that the cumulative expense
reflects the revised estimate, with a corresponding adjustment to
share option reserve.

When share options are exercised, the amount previously
recognised in share options reserve will be transferred to share
premium. When the share options are forfeited after the vesting
date or are still not exercised at the expiry date, the amount
previously recognised in share option reserve will continue to be
held in share option reserve.

Employee Share Option Scheme

Shares purchased under the Employee Share Option Scheme
are initially recognised in equity (share held for Employee Share
Option Scheme) at fair value of consideration paid including the
transaction costs at the date of purchase.

The fair value of services received from employees determined by
reference to the fair value of shares granted at the grant date is
expenses on a straight-line basis over the vesting period, with a
corresponding increase in employee share-based compensation
reserve.

At the time when the shares vested, the difference on the
amounts previously recognised in shares held for Employee Share
Option Scheme and the amount recognised in employee share-
based compensation reserve is transferred to retained profits.
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4. Key sources of estimation uncertainty

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies, which are
described in note 3, the directors of the Company are required
to make estimates and assumptions about the carrying amounts
of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other
sources. The estimates and associated assumptions are based on
historical experience and other factors that are considered to be
relevant. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an
ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised
in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects
only that period, or in the period of the revision and future periods
if the revision affects both current and future periods.

The following are the key assumptions concurring the future,
and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the
reporting period, that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within
the next financial year.

Provision of ECL of trade and other receivables

The Group’ s management determines the provision for
impairment of trade receivables based on the expected credit
losses which uses a related loss allowance for all trade and other
receivables. The loss allowances for financial assets are based on
assumptions about risk of default and expected loss rates. The
Group uses judgement in making these assumptions and selecting
the inputs to the impairment calculation, based on the Group's
past history, existing market conditions as well as forward looking
estimates at the end of each reporting period. Management
reassesses the provision at each balance sheet date.
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4. Key sources of estimation uncertainty

(Continued)
Useful lives of property, plant and equipment

The Group's management determines the estimated useful
lives and related depreciation charges for its property, plant
and equipment. This estimate is based on projected product
lifecycles and economic life of property, plant and equipment.
It could change significantly as a result of technical innovations
and competitor actions in response to severe industry cycles.
Management will increase the depreciation charge where useful
lives are less than previously estimated lives, or it will write off or
write down technically obsolete or non-strategic assets that have
been abandoned or sold. The aggregate carrying value of property,
plant and equipment at 31 December 2019 is RMB4,608,674,000
(2018: RMB3,860,200,000).

Fair value measurement of financial instruments

As at 31 December 2019, certain of the Group’s financial assets,
unquoted equity instruments, amounting to RMB668,708,000
(2018: RMB1,801,394,000) are measured at fair value with fair value
being determined based on significant unobservable inputs using
valuation techniques. Judgment and estimation are required in
establishing the relevant valuation techniques and the relevant
inputs thereof. Changes in assumptions relating to these factors
could result in material adjustments to the fair value of these
instruments.
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4. Key sources of estimation uncertainty

(Continued)
Deferred tax assets

As at 31 December 2019, a deferred tax asset of RMB53,984,000
(2018: RMB213,741,000) in relation to certain deductible temporary
differences and unused tax losses has been recognised in
the Group's consolidated statement of financial position. The
realisability of the deferred tax asset mainly depends on whether
sufficient future profits or taxable temporary differences will be
available in the future. In cases where the actual future taxable
profits generated are less or more than expected, or change in
facts and circumstances which result in revision of future taxable
profits estimation, a material reversal or further recognition of
deferred tax assets may arise, which would be recognised in
profit or loss for the period in which such a reversal or further
recognition takes place.

Exploration rights

The Group's exploration rights have a finite validity period, after
which the Group will need to apply for renewal. The Group's
exploration rights were renewed in October 2017 for a period
of two years till October 2019 and further renewed for a period
of two years till October 2021. Having checked the applicable
laws and regulations in the PRC, the directors of the Company
anticipate that there is no material legal impediments would
prevent the Group from renewing its exploration rights provided
that the Group submits the relevant application documents in
compliance with the applicable PRC laws and regulations to the
relevant PRC government authority. Accordingly, the directors
of the Company believe the Group will be able to renew the
exploration rights with the relevant government authority
upon the expiry of the exploration rights in October 2021 at
insignificant cost. In addition, the directors of the Company
assess the impairment of the exploration rights by estimating
the recoverable amount of the assets. The carrying amount of
exploration rights at 31 December 2019 is RMB16,885,000 (2018:
RMB22,515,000) and impairment of RMB5,630,000 was recognised
during the year ended 31 December 2019 (2018: RMBnil). Further
details are disclosed in note 18 to the consolidated financial
statements.
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4. Key sources of estimation uncertainty

(Continued)
Impairment assessment of goodwill

Determining whether goodwill is impaired requires an estimation
of the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit (or group
of cash-generating units) to which goodwill has been allocated,
which is the higher of the value in use or fair value less costs
of disposal. The value in use calculation requires the Group to
estimate the future cash flows expected to arise from the cash-
generating unit (or a group of cash-generating units) and a
suitable discount rate in order to calculate the present value.
Where the actual future cash flows are less than expected, or
change in facts and circumstances which results in downward
revision of future cash flows, a material impairment loss/further
impairment loss may arise.

As at 31 December 2019, the carrying amount of goodwill is
RMB123,420,000 (2018: RMB123,420,000). Details of the recoverable
amount calculation are disclosed in note 22.
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5. Capital risk and financial risk management

objectives and policies

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in the Group
will be able to continue as a going concern while maximising the
return to stakeholders through the optimisation of the debt and
equity balance. The Group's overall strategy remains unchanged
from prior year.

The capital structure of the Group consists of borrowings disclosed
in note 28, pledged bank deposits, bank balances and cash and
equity attributable to owners of the Company, comprising share
capital, share premium, reserves and retained earnings.

The directors review the capital structure on a semi-annual
basis. As a part of this review, the directors consider the cost of
capital and the risks associated with each class of capital. Based
on recommendations of the directors, the Group will balance its
overall capital structure through the payment of dividends, new
share issues as well as the issue of new debt or the redemption of
existing debt.

(a) Categories of financial instruments

20194 20184
AR¥T T ARETIT
2019 2018
RMB’000 RMB’'000
TREE Financial assets
REESEK AT RS BEE  Financial assets at amortised cost 4,778,844 5,425,891
BAFEFARMEAEWEE  Equity investments at fair value through
ZRAEKEE other comprehensive income 668,708 1,801,394
5,447,552 7,227,285
TRIBE Financial liabilities
AR Amortised cost 3,592,297 3,702,493
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5. Capital risk and financial risk management
objectives and policies (Continued)

Financial risk management objectives and
Policies

The Group's major financial instruments include trade and
other receivables, equity instruments at fair value through
other comprehensive income, pledged bank deposits, bank
balances and cash, trade and other payables and borrowings.
Details of these financial instruments are disclosed in
respective notes. The risks associated with these financial
instruments include market risk (currency risk and interest
rate risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. The policies on how
to mitigate these risks are set out below. The Group's
management manages and monitors these exposures to
ensure appropriate measures are implemented on a timely
and effective manner.

Market risks
(i) Currency risk

The functional currencies of the PRC subsidiaries are
RMB with most of the transactions settled in RMB.
However, foreign currency (mainly the United States
dollar “USS") were received when the Group earned
revenue from overseas customers and when settling
payables for purchases of machinery and equipment

from the overseas suppliers.

The Group does not have any hedging policy to
manage the risk arising from foreign currency
transactions. In order to reduce the risk of holding
foreign currencies, the Group normally converts the
foreign currencies into RMB upon receipt while taking
into account its foreign currencies payment schedule in
the near future.
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5. EXEREBMERMEEBIE 5. Capital risk and financial risk management

RBER(E) objectives and policies (Continued)
(b) BiEREEEERBE(E) (b) Financial risk management objectives and
Policies (Continued)
TS E b (&) Market risks (Continued)
) EEEE(E) (i) Currency risk (Continued)

RiEBRH - REENIINEETE
BE¥EEREEAENREEN
-

The carrying amounts of the Group’s foreign currency
denominated monetary assets and monetary liabilities
at the reporting date are as follows:

BE aE
Assets Liabilities
20195 20184 20195 20184
ARETRE AREFTT AR¥TRT AR®ETRT
2019 2018 2019 2018
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000
ETT uss 512,144 514,874 5,589 25,362

2019128318 WA R X
ETTEBEEI0% mABE
MEEAE LA/ THRARE
50,660,0007C (20184 : T F&,/ EFt
AR ®48950,0007T) + FERE AR
BLETHENEBITAKRLERS
ARE 5 R HAth FEURFRIE o

EEERR FHEANRARTE
REFERRER - WBREDTT
BERKRBEASMNERR

At 31 December 2019, if RMB had strengthened/
weakened by 10% against US$ with all other variables
held constant, post-tax profit for the year would have
been RMB50,660,000 higher/lower (2018: RMB48,950,000
lower/higher), mainly as a result of foreign exchange
gains/losses on translation of US$ denominated bank
balances and cash and trade and other receivables.

In management’s opinion, the sensitivity analysis is
unrepresentative of the inherent foreign exchange risk
as the year end exposure does not reflect the exposure
during the year.
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5. EXAEREMBEREREB R
RBUR (&)
(b) MBEBRERBEREEE)

™5 kR ()
(i) FIFELR
AEEHRRESRITEE(ERH

AT

ZEBEMNFERME2)EEN
NEEFERER - R2019F12H
318+ REBEZ (20186 : 27%) Y
BEATEEE -

AEETEERERITERLTR
EEERANESRENXER -

FEBMRSREMNERREE
EFRREREEARKEEBEN
MSEEFRFNEURFEE TER
FE - REBBEENTBHR
BE  REERBEMNEKERE
2 R EAMNEERSAEED
BEZE UEEHENXREAR -
EEESRTEEMNENZEF
KREEMLE - WHERREER
AEBERA -

B
5 /%

ol

T RRE DT TR IEIRIT 4 4
K% BAE B FTE R M R R & ke EE
TE o DT I E R RS B R B S
BEMRE - EEEYHANERLE
AR EMmTE  DER LA
T Bk10Kk 2518 £ B (20184F : 10K
25{EEEZ) o

5. Capital risk and financial risk management

objectives and policies (Continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and
Policies (Continued)

Market risks (Continued)

(ii)

Interest rate risk

The Group is exposed to fair value interest rate risk in
relation to fixed-rate bank borrowings (see note 28 for
details of these borrowings). At 31 December 2019,
none (2018: 27%) of the Group’s borrowings bear fixed
interest rates.

The Group is also exposed to cash flow interest rate
risk in relation to bank deposits, and variable-rate
borrowings.

The Group's cash flow interest rate risk is mainly
concentrated on the fluctuation of the market deposit
rate and the PRC official lending rate arising from the
Group's RMB borrowings. The Group aims at keeping
borrowings at variable rates. The Group manages its
interest rate exposures by assessing the potential
impact arising from any interest rate movements based
on interest rate level and outlook. The management
will review the proportion of borrowings in fixed and
floating rates and ensure they are within reasonable
range.

The sensitivity analyses below have been determined
based on the exposure to interest rates for bank
balances and variable-rate borrowings. The analysis
is prepared on the financial balance at the end of
reporting period. 10 and 25 basis points (2018: 10 and
25 basis points) increase or decrease is used which
represents management'’s assessment of the reasonably
possible change in interest rate.
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RBUR (&)
(b) MBEBRERBEREEE)

™5 kR ()
(i) FIEm@E (&)

HAEEEBRORITERMER
ems - WHERE EFTEIO
EEZE (20184 : 101EEEE) « MAT
EEMAERZH#FIAE  BIX
EBRE E2019F 128318 LF
JE B BR Bt 18 5 F G 38 0 m 2 A
R #1,4480007C(2018%F « AR ¥
1,145,0007T) ©

gEoh - AR EEERNZ EEER
RS ﬁu%ﬂ%ai%/TEﬁ%
25(ME 25 (2018%F « 25fEESZ) -
FTEHEMAEERERTE J
AEBREZE2019F12A318 1HF
[E B BR B 18 0% FI#G R A 1 0 A
R #3621,00070(2018%F © A R #
2,861,00070) * JhE B HKFE)F

KIEEMNF S FEM WD
B o

ERERS  FEEOERTE
REENER - S E DT
R REAFIERR -

REMBRRME
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BE2019F 1231 HIFFE
For the year ended 31 December 2019

5. Capital risk and financial risk management
objectives and policies (Continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and
Policies (Continued)

Market risks (Continued)

(i) Interest rate risk (Continued)
In relation to the Group's exposure to interest rates risk
on bank deposits, if interest rates had been 10 basis
points (2018: 10 basis points) higher/lower and all other
variables were held constant, the Group's post-tax profit
for the year ended 31 December 2019 would increase/
decrease by RMB1,448,000 (2018: RMB1,145,000).

Furthermore, in relation to the Group’s exposure to
interest rates risk on variable-rate borrowings, if interest
rates had been 25 basis points (2018: 25 basis points)
higher/lower and all other variables held constant, the
Group's post-tax profit for the year ended 31 December
2019 would decrease/increase by RMB3,621,000 (2018:
RMB2,861,000), mainly as a result of higher/lower
interest expenses on floating rate borrowings.

In management’s opinion, the sensitivity analysis is
unrepresentative of the inherent interest rate risk as the
year end exposure does not reflect the exposure during
the year.
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RBUR (&)

(b) B EREEEFERBE(E) (b)

FEERR
AEBWEEAEFHEERR - 1877
HEkRe  BDERBROTERRESE
Wﬂﬁm%ﬁﬁﬁ&%milﬁﬂﬁi
B & % o FR20194F 22018412
Hwa'ﬁﬁﬁﬂm%ﬁfklﬁﬁﬂ
REERINSBRE WEEXNEE
Ek -  EEEEHTEEAZEHFAT
BAOMBEAERIEL - FEHEERHE
TEECHRINETES - A&EE
BIRT R RER MR B R EENE S E

=&
I:l/\

WHE - B 5 RIKKIRARBERES
BEERER - AEBRABRMHHREE

RISt Eb T AT BB EEEE
RIS HERES - BFTA L 5 e UE B
BEETEHANTELRER - A28
HEEEE  B2RRFCECRIEEN
EERREFIE RBHRRENIE - THHE
BERENEENELARERRLIRG
HEBAEERE - BEBEXIELA
BARMFZER P &SRR DD
EZ=E R RATEMER -

HaU B (TREENRE)NEER
E%E%%;ﬁﬁsﬁa_@%s@@ﬂiéﬁﬂ
REFHHMBEEREITIE - EFR
A Bt EREIENEERBRE - R
E2EKFEM KRB R LT - E5E
% C B E2019%12 8318 K2018%F12 A

18 AEBEHAMBRGIBENRERLS
%IEWEEk =ER

I:l/\

uuo

5. Capital risk and financial risk management
objectives and policies (Continued)

Financial risk management objectives and
Policies (Continued)

Credit risk

The Group has no significant concentrations of credit risk.
The carrying amounts of bank balances and cash, pledged
bank deposits and trade receivables represent the Group's
maximum exposure to credit risk in relation to financial
assets. As at 31 December 2019 and 2018, all bank balances
were deposited in reputable financial institutions and were
hence without significant credit risk. Management does
not expect any losses from non-performance by these
counterparties. Credit sales are made to selected customers
with good credit history. The Group has policies in place to
ensure that outstanding trade receivables are collected on
a timely basis. Trade receivables are subject to the expected
credit loss model. The Group applies IFRS 9 simplified
approach to measuring expected credit losses which uses a
lifetime expected loss allowance for all trade receivables from
initial recognition. To measure the expected credit losses,
trade receivables have been grouped based on shared credit
risk characteristics and the days past due. The expected loss
rates are based on the historical payment profiles of sales
and the corresponding historical credit losses experienced.
The historical loss rates are adjusted to reflect current and
forward-looking information on factors affecting the ability of
the customers to settle the receivables.

The credit quality of the other receivables excluding
prepayments has been assessed with reference to historical
information about the counterparties default rates and
financial position of the counterparties. The directors are of
the opinion that the credit risk of other receivables is low
due to the sound collection history of the receivables due
from them. The directors believe that there is no material
credit risk inherent in the Group's outstanding balance of
other receivables as of 31 December 2019 and 31 December
2018.
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5. EXEMEMBEKREEEE 5. Capital risk and financial risk management
RBER (&)
(b) BIIEEEREBERBK(E)

objectives and policies (Continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and

REBE SRR

EEERPDECARE  AEEEEY
HEEEERARNAEBNASEEZEMNR
FLRERSRENDTENRELTF
FI3R &I B KF -

EEEETRITEENERIBR - A&
EXBIRITEEERRBDESHEER
TR o 72019128318 » AEERBA
BERTT R E B E A AR 2205450000
Jo(2018%F + A R #2,042,750,0007T ) °
SFIEEFI M 28 o

REBE D RFERRZ
TRIJIAEEIFTESRB BRI
BRZIHFES o JIRTIRIBEANEE AT 8L
WERNRORF BN BAERRS
BReRERR - AERAERERE
BBRIINEA °

Policies (Continued)

Liquidity risk

In the management of the liquidity risk, the Group monitors
and maintains a level of cash and cash equivalents deemed
adequate by management to finance the Group’s operations
and mitigate the effects of fluctuations in cash flows.

Management monitors the utilisation of bank borrowings.
The Group relies on bank borrowings as a significant source
of liquidity. As at 31 December 2019, the Group had available
undrawn borrowing facilities of RMB2,205,450,000 (2018:
RMB2,042,750,000). Details of which are set out in note 28.

Liquidity and interest risk tables

The following tables detail the Group’s remaining contractual
maturity for its non-derivative financial liabilities. The tables
have been drawn up based on the undiscounted cash flows
of financial liabilities based on the earliest date on which
the Group can be required to pay. The table includes both
interest and principal cash flows.
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5. EXEMEMBEKREEEE 5. Capital risk and financial risk management

REE (&) objectives and policies (Continued)
(b) MERREEEZERBER(E) (b) Financial risk management objectives and
Policies (Continued)
REBESER(E) Liquidity risk (Continued)
HEEw RFRE R (E) Liquidity and interest risk tables (Continued)

20195

RER 124318

ET R 8RR 1238F  3fAREIE 15258 BERENE MEEEE
ARETT  ARETn AR¥Tn ARETn AR%Tr  ARETR

Carrying

Weighted Total amount at
average Less than 13 3 months Tyearto undiscounted 31 December
interest rate 1 month months to 1 year 5 years cash flows 2019

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

20195128318 31 December 2019
BHRAMERNFE Trade and other payables - 1468939 810,653 405,475 48179 273346 2733246
A8 Borrowings
-%8 - variable rates 4.15% 7778 17,545 681,102 1,339,091 2,045,516 1,931,156
1476717 828198 1086577 1387270 4778762 4,664,402
R218E
REER 128318
ETHHE @AM 12 MERZIE 15555 ReiEed MEETE
AREFT  ARETT  ARETRT  ARETT  ARETR  ARETR
Carrying
Weighted Total amount at
Average Less than 13 3 months lyearto  undiscounted 31 December
interest rate 1 month months to 1 year 5 years cash flows 218
RMB000 RMBO0D RMBI000 RMBI000 RMB000 RMB000
20185128318 31 December 2018
BHRAMERNFE Trade and other payables i 1193140 665,711 337778 77697 2094326 229432
&8 Borrowings
-EE - fixed rates 434% = = 314083 261,142 575,185 556450
=%8 - variable rates 5.33% 6929 78629 559812 1,008,305 1653675 1526000

1,200,069 764,340 1211633 1347144 4523186 4376776
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5. EXEMEMBEKREEEE 5. Capital risk and financial risk management

REE (&) objectives and policies (Continued)
(c) EMIBENAFEE (c) Fair value measurements of financial
instruments

HRFEREEHN  AEESS ST Some of the Group's financial instruments are measured at
BRAFERE - fair value for financial reporting purposes.
AT ER - NEFEFERETE In estimating the fair value, the Group uses market-
AERYSE - MEARAE B AR observable data to the extent it is available. Where Level
B BIAREBEEE= A ERAER 1 inputs are not available, the Group engages third party
EITHE - TRIBREBANNETZE qualified valuers to perform the valuation. The following
TREEMNAFENEER - table gives information about how the fair values of these

financial assets are determined.
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5. EXxEMBEMBEKREEBRE 5. Capital risk and financial risk management

R (&) objectives and policies (Continued)
(c) EMITEMAFEFTE(E) (c) Fair value measurements of financial
instruments (Continued)
FAEEGAY
BYUATEZH
SHEE RTHAHHLTLE AFE HERMREEGAZE EXTTEEGAHE BE/BE%
Sensitivity/

relationship of
unobservable

Fair value as at Valuation technique(s) inputs to fair
Financial assets 31/12/2019 31/12/2018  Fair value and key inputs(s) Significant unobservable inputs(s) value
AR¥TR AR®ETT
RMB’000 RMB'000

HAFEIFARMY FEmBA FETRE  E=R WAFZE-BREEREE MRE  KEFRMEANBETEE IMEFHELK

2EKENLE BE- BE- BRI SIRERME R E R R A IS AR 2
RiERE 668,708 1,801,394 ERBRHIREE CEE BAREA > NF97%E148%(2018  MEITMER
RREEWEMBE o F N TF108%E163%) © WK - ATE

HE - R2ZN

BRZ S REEMETHE - & R
ZEBIERE M HEMETHR
FIMERER R E L IEAEHRE
E N TF15%E20.6% (20184 -
15%7E20%) ©

Private equity Unlisted equity Unlisted equity ~ Level 3 Income approach - Discount rate, taking into account the cost The lower the
investments at instruments - instruments - discounted cash flow of equity (COE)/weighted average cost of WACC or
FVTOC 668,708 1,801,394 method was used to capital (WACC) determined using a Capital discount for

capture the present Asset Pricing Model, ranging from 9.7% to lack of control,
value of the expected 14.8% (2018: 10.8% to 16.3%). the higher the
future economic benefits fair value, and
to be derived from the Discount for lack of marketability, determined vice versa
ownership of this investee, by a number of research studies including
based on an appropriate restricted stock studies by independent
discount rate. valuer, ranging from 15% to 20.6% (2018:

15% to 20%).
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5. Capital risk and financial risk management

objectives and policies (Continued)

(c) Fair value measurements of financial
instruments (Continued)

Reconciliation of Level 3 fair value measurements

BROFET AR
2HKENREIA
ARBFIT

Equity instruments at
fair value through OCI

RMB 000
20178128318 At 31 December 2017 1,221,292
PR AN B R B s e MR RSB 955 Adoption of IFRS 9 (19,809)
20181 A1 8 (KE7) At 1 January 2018 (restated) 1,201,483
U (B8 ) Total gains (losses):

—REMmEERE — in other comprehensive income (52,902)
BE Purchases 680,000
=N Capital refund (27,187)
72018512 H31H At 31 December 2018 1,801,394
M (E518) - Total gains (losses):

—REMEEWE — in other comprehensive income (1,119,292)
EBE Purchases 3,000
HeE Disposals (16,394)
2019512 A31H At 31 December 2019 668,708
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6. Wk oEHER 6. Revenue and segment information
WESEREERAEEEEHIRE - Revenue represents revenue arising on sales of goods and
properties.
6.1 Wz 6.1 Revenue
FEREFEAHANEDIF Disaggregation of revenue from contracts with

customers for the year

BZE2019F12A31BILEE For the year ended 31 December 2019
ftIER Eak & 7/ES
Chemical Property
product development
ARYET T AR%TT
RMB'000 RMB'000
EmSREES Types of goods or service
HEE T Em Sales of chemical product
U2 B Refrigerants 2,677,890 =
maFME Polymers 3,432,978 =
B Organic silicone 2,686,292 =
ZERE - PVC R Dichloromethane PVC and liquid alkali 1,505,076 =
10,302,236 -
ptrE Other operations 804,156 _
/e Property development - 1,852,300
s Total 11,106,392 1,852,300
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6.1 Wk (%)
FEEFANRESDF (H)
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6. Revenue and segment information
(Continued)

6.1 Revenue (Continued)

Disaggregation of revenue from contracts with
customers for the year (Continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2018

{ETESR kg
Chemical Property
product development
ARETT AREBTT
RMB'000 RMB'000

ERsiREESE Types of goods or service

HEE T Em Sales of chemical product

LB Refrigerants 3,260,154 =
= TR Polymers 3,879,793 -
B Organic silicone 3,380,373 =
ZE R - PVCRER Dichloromethane PVC and liquid alkali 1,723,746 =
12,244,066 -
B ERF Other operations 1,735,232 =
ki /ES Property development - 239,639
ko] Total 13,979,298 239,639

HELIEM

HEEY 2 Wat (BIRBER S EM
HEMB) DEEPRAREMERE
HIEE R ER R ER - —RAEY
EXNEFMEFCEMEMHEHE -

Sale of chemical products

Revenue (net of value added tax or other sales taxes) from
the sale of goods is recognised at a particular point in time
when customers have control of the promised goods, which
is generally the time when goods are delivered to customers
and customers have accepted the goods.
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6. WmkoEBER(E)

6.1

6.2

W5 (48)

EE/ES

HEDRTEEYE 2 e IR ER
BIEAFERR - UL YR AR TR -
BIEPAENETRYENERLEREY
EHRAED D RIS ZR A5 o E%W
SR Z TP WEE RS Moy B
MR AREMBRARTF A
afEl-

REDE

AR BT TR A fn M D R B e R
gln o MARREFTS(AAZERRK
NIBREMEE IR D B R 8B R I FHA
MEMTRERRMERENRLZE
I o BETIARSRE 2 BIEENRE o

AR
ZE R - PVCRIER

MERBE-EPBEILREZERE
EWE -

HMEF -4 ERBEERRB D
B S THRoE - BRED
R SRR - PVCRER D I
BlEM -

6. Revenue and segment information
(Continued)

6.1

6.2

Revenue (Continued)

Property development

Revenue from sale of completed residential properties is
recognised at a particular point in time. This is the time
when legal assignment is completed which is the time when
the customer has ability to direct the use of the property
and obtain substantial all of the remaining benefits of the
property. Deposits and instalments received from customers
prior to this revenue recognition point are included in
“Contract liabilities” in the consolidated statement of financial
position.

Operating Segments

The Group's operations are organised based on the different
types of products and property development. Information
reported to the board of directors of the Company, being the
chief operating decision maker, for the purposes of resource
allocation and assessment of segment performance focuses
on types of products and property development. This is the
basis upon which the Group is organised.

The Group’s operating and reportable segments are as
follows:

Refrigerants;

Polymers;

Organic silicone;

Dichloromethane, PVC and liquid alkali;

Property development — development of residential
properties at Shandong Province, the PRC.

Other operations — manufacturing and sales of side-
products of refrigerants segment, polymers segment,
organic silicone segment and dichloromethane, PVC
and liquid alkali segment.
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6. Revenue and segment information
(Continued)

6.2 Operating Segments (Continued)

The following is an analysis of the Group’s revenue and

results by reportable and operating segment.

20194 2019

- B E2 v
HE RATM L NCRER  RENE 8% AR b3 2
ARETR  ARBTR  ARMTR  ARBTZ  ARMTR  ARMTR  ARBTR  ARMTR  ARETR

Dichloromethane Reportable

Organic PVCand Property  segments’ Other

Refrigerants ~ Polymers Silicone liquid alkali ~ development totl  operations  Eliminations Total
RVMBO00  RMB'O0  RMBI000 RMBOOO  RMB'OOO  RMB000  RMB'O0  RMB000  RMB'00
e Extemdl siles 2677890 34978 268629 1505076 1852300 12154536 804156 - 1295869
ABRNEE Interseqment sales 1,708,956 - - 7,648 - 1716604 818046 (2534650) -
rE-nils Total revenue - segment revenue 4306846 34329718 2,686,292 1512724 1852300 13,871,140 1622200 (2534650 12,958,692
higk SEGMENT RESULTS 355,368 460,282 507,410 256,788 357,867 1937,115 331,634 - 69349
FORGERY Undllocated corporate expenses (4g,521)
BENS Finance costs (100528)
IBAER Proftbefore tax 2120300
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6.

Wz K 72 B E R ()

6.2 &N (1)

6. Revenue and segment information
(Continued)

6.2 Operating Segments (Continued)

20184 2018

&R 2853
BRE  BATHH BlE NCRER  RRhE B8 EfER i et
ARETT  ARBTT  ARETT  ARETR ARETR ARETR ARETR ARETR ARETR

Dichloromethane Reportable

Organic P/Cand Property  seqments’ Other

Refrigerants Polymers Silicone liquid alkali ~ development total  operations  Eliminations Total
RVBOD  AMBOO  RVBOW RVBOD  RMBOOD  RMBOD  RMAODO  RWBOD  RMBOO
e xtemal sales 301 389I% 33031 173374 WG MBS 1B - 89y
ABEhEE Interseqment seles 3000864 7368 s 193578 S VSNl WO (4387721) s
Bhg-H50E Totalrevenue - seqment revenue 601018 4098061 338037 1917304 BG4S S [@ITI) 14218937
Mgk SEGMENT RESLLLTS 805467 915014 984040 466059 6554 33610 105,745 I EThF
RORPERY Undllocatec corporate expenses (9815)
HERK Finance cost (97139
il Profitbefore tax 3034899

DESEBIRAELED AR E MK
A BRI R RITHAA - EEFH
EMBERAZBERT  FoEBE %
4 o W DMAEERRAZRIAMEERR
DRERBFENFTEERE - HRERH
BERABEN D BEMALIFMAEER
RAZWMAEEIRD B MR B ENIA
B BMYEZINZFER -

BRI EE TR RITHE & -

Segment results represent the results of each segment
without allocation of unallocated other income, other
expenses and central administration costs, directors’
salaries, and finance costs. This is the measure reported
to the chief operating decision maker for the purposes
of resource allocation and performance assessment. No
segment information on assets and liabilities is presented
as such information is not reported to the chief operating
decision maker for the purposes of resource allocation and
performance assessment.

Inter-segment sales are charged at prevailing market rates.
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Revenue and segment information
(Continued)

Entity-wide disclosures

Information about revenue from refrigerants segment by

ol = products from external customers
20194F 20184F
ARET T AREBTT
2019 2018
RMB’'000 RMB'000
—@A— &R LLHCFC-22) Monochlorodifluoromethane (HCFC-22) 934,746 864,491
PU% 2 B (R134a) Tetrafluoroethane (R134a) 236,828 326,057
AELE(R125) Pentafluoroethane (R125) 39,606 129,121
R439A R439A - 14,767
R410a R410a 256,699 353,113
R142b R142b 222,892 249,409
R152a R152a 144,259 175,065
R22 R22 169,562 451,147
R32 R32 312,312 252,018
R507A R507A 2,416 116,740
R407C R407C 14,301 113,534
HAth Others 344,269 214,692
2,677,890 3,260,154

FREERIBZED FHRDBRAINRK

Information about revenue from polymers segment by

EFHNBmER products from external customers
20194 2018%F
AR¥T ARETT
2019 2018
RMB’000 RMB'000
B L% (PTFE) Polytetrafluoroethylene (PTFE) 1,760,017 2,055,189
TNER NG (HFP) Hexafluoropropylene (HFP) 306,684 397,881
NBIRT kT Perfluorocyclobutane 61,842 102,076
2 BB RG(FEP) Fluorinated ethylene propylene (FEP) 471,189 471,449
BRI (PVDF) Polyvinylidene fluoride (PVDF) 554,170 415177
FIZR B (FKM) Fluorine rubber (FKM) 152,364 193,454
1R %81 2 )% (VDF) Vinylidene fluoride (VDF) 15,709 88,031
H Others 111,003 156,536
3,432,978 3,879,793
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6. Wk oEBER (&) 6. Revenue and segment information
(Continued)

ERERENE(E) Entity-wide disclosures (Continued)

FRRERIEZERESBRBIRER Information about revenue from organic silicone segment by
B FEER products from external customers

20194 20184
ARET T ARETT
2019 2018
RMB’'000 RMB'000
DMC(=FERERLESIREE) DMC (Dimethylcyclosiloxane) 131,543 117,009
107588 107 Silicone Rubber 1,196,166 1,534,455
£ Raw Vulcanizate 387,499 484,710
SRIRE Gross Rubber 191,890 230,753
RIEE KA Gaseous Silica 118,196 164,903
DMCIKERY) DMC Hydrolysate 82,982 49,369
—HRESMER Trimethylchlorosilane 173,562 244,429
RES AR Methyldichlorosilane 22,023 41,183
M EEREDMC DMC Lineament 81,098 127,409
DZAGANGEE-S:-Jusk Sy o)) D4 (Octamethyl Cyclotetrasiloxane) 19 2,187
Z R AR Dimethy! silicone ol 120,923 187,440
HAh Others 180,391 196,526
2,686,292 3,380,373




Wz K 2 EBER ()

ERERREHE)

FHRRERIBZ-SFK - PVCRERS

6. Revenue and segment information

REMBRRME
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

EFE2019F 1231 AILFE

For the year ended 31 December 2019

(Continued)

Entity-wide disclosures (Continued)

Information about revenue from Dichloromethane, PVC and

HREIREEHN R ZER liquid alkali by products segment from external customers
20194 20184F
ARBTR ARETFT
2019 2018
RMB’000 RMB'000
PVC PVC 646,794 692,042
—8RkR Dichloromethane 275,788 281,294
R Liqui alkali 582,494 750,410
1,505,076 1,723,746

TRRERT B HMEE D BRAIIRE

Information about revenue from other operations segment by

FHRWHEER products from external customers
20194 20184
AR¥T R ARETFT
2019 2018
RMB’000 RMB'000
iz Methanol 305,495 =
HFCs(Eatix{ba ™) HFCs (hydro fluorocarbons) 166,700 -
AHF (KB R) AHF (Anhydrous Fluoride) 7,800 21,431
FLE® Ammonium Bifluoride 54,478 69,511
T Hydrofluoric Acid 27,125 65,321
BRE Bromine 56,359 75,467
R B Neutral glue 20,263 -
BAE Fluorgypsum 12,925 10,036
fizkd Aluminium ingot - 516,988
T Zinc ingot = 43,048
E:5 Copper cathode - 430,025
ERRR Nickel cathode - 337,515
Hit Others 153,011 165,890
804,156 1,735,232
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6. Wk oEBER (&) 6. Revenue and segment information
(Continued)
EBEXEEFER Information about major customers
B ZE2019F KX2018F12A31 B IEMAFES There was no revenue from a single customer that contributed
FEREE TP 2RFLHAEBRBHEE over 10% of the total sales of the Group during each of the two
BEMI10% A ko years ended 31 December 2019 and 2018,
hEER Geographical information
REERGINKEBEEZINEIRE LIRS The Group's revenue from external customers by geographical
ORI location of customers is detailed below:
20194 20184
ARET T AREBTT
2019 2018
RMB’'000 RMB'000
=8 PRC 10,986,136 11,834,428
M (BRAAEIGN) Asia (except PRC)
— AR ~ Japan 440,049 444,774
— % ~ South Korea 267,186 318,734
—ENE — India 46,013 57,116
— ¥ - Singapore 39,473 69,620
—Z=E ~ Thailand 37,390 37,972
— PR {REE S B R — United Arab Emirates 63,070 118,799
—BEEHA — Pakistan 33,522 26,428
—BRED - Malaysia 35,182 40,974
— Rl - Kuwait 20,041 24,663
DAL SICEA ! ~ Saudi Arabia 3,190 3,244
—HEfEmE - Indonesia 9,417 23,453
— A5 — Israel 3,015 2,220
—JERE ~ Philippines 8,033 15,922
— i ~ Viet Nam 29,183 29,365
—tTHH — Turkey 45,741 49,514
—HMER — Other countries 12,640 17,964
INeF Subtotal 1,093,145 1,280,762




6. WmkoEBER(E)

REMBRRME
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EFE2019F 1231 AILFE

For the year ended 31 December 2019

6. Revenue and segment information

(Continued)
HWEER(E) Geographical information (Continued)
20194 20184
AR¥ET T AREETIT
2019 2018
RMB’000 RMB'000
=M America
—%H — United States of America 347,799 455,916
i — Brazil 182,030 113,177
il — Chile 1,993 2,370
—HA B - Other countries 49,667 40,320
/NEF Subtotal 581,489 611,783
20194 20184
AR¥ET T ARETIT
2019 2018
RMB’000 RMB'000
M Europe
—BKF ~ Italy 126,022 211,678
— T - England 6,419 4,925
— g AT — Russia 16,912 39,169
— 12 - Germany 20,682 36,142
— £ - France 15,318 8,635
— PRt oF - Spain 5,405 4294
— EbFI 5 — Belgium 5,782 42,262
— K — Poland 9,009 34,403
—HiER — Other countries 2,009 4152
INEF Subtotal 207,558 385,660
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6. Wk HER(E) 6. Revenue and segment information
(Continued)
WEER(EF) Geographical information (Continued)
2018%F
ARETTT
2018
RMB'000
FEM Africa
—Fa3kE - South Africa 34,131
—%& & — Egypt 21,192
—E B — Nigeria 27,681
—HiER — Other countries 9,323
NEt Subtotal 92,327
HMBER, e Other countries/regions 13,977
14,218,937
FIERER ZIERBEEHNFE - All of the non-current assets of the Group are located in the PRC.
|
| | !
|
|
ey e et e S (el i P '-I1I - g e
. 1 - . & wal be Lot~ 0w
T o T AR e NAWYY TR L
PRSP SR TR AR B NS VRSN 1. 'Y Crelld PV 3 P8 Ry Al (‘.; : 4




6. WmkoEBER(E)

REMBRRME
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BE2019F 1231 HIFFE
For the year ended 31 December 2019

6. Revenue and segment information

(Continued)
HiboHE R Other segment information
~ R SHREE
A L ik PCRGE  BENE  OBEE  EpER £5
ARETT  ARETT ARETR ARETT  ARETT ARBTT ARETT ARETR
Dichloromethane Reportable
Organic PVCand Property and operating Other
Refrigerants ~ Polymers Silicone liquidalkali ~ development ~segmenttotal  operations Total
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
0198 2019
0% BERREE Depvecitoncfpogery olntandequiomen: 13188 168021 111602 B0 35 MG S SR
AR AERH Amoisaionof anghle st 19 16w 41 1 T R BT
(BE)/BA8ARNERE (Reversal) recogniion of mpaiment on
trade receivables (236) m 1,285 (32 2% 1,365 14 1379
BERBA  RARERRA Research and development costs ecognised
3 an expense 17116 11213 84120 7450 - 319,899 9,343 39,242
L Wi down o mvenoes 6668 - ) 213 - W0
LENE - BEREESR/ Loss/lgan) on disposals of property,

(=) plant and equipment 8,199 1774 (1) 2134 13 7851 9743 17,5
RAiERErE Depeconof gt of e st M s 4w 1531 - om0 e
HER é@kﬁ (ain on disposal ofintangiole assts = = = (948) - (949) - (%48)
(BE)/BI0%  BERSE (Reversal) recogriton of impairent on

HE property,plant and equipment B3 - - - - B3 (3,125) (3128)

R
EVAERE Impairment on intangole assets - = = = = - 5,630 5630

o 5 25RiE
BRE RATIR BRE PCRER  REDR  SWER AHER £5
ARETT  ARETT  ARETR MRET  ARETT  ARETR  ARETR  ARETz
Dichloromethane Reportable
Organic PVCand Property ~ and operating Other
Refrigerants Polymers Silicone liquidalkali  development ~ seqment total ~ operations Total
RVB000 RMB000 RAB000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB'000 RMB000 RMB'000
i3 018
0% BERRENE Depreciaton o poperty plantandequipment. 2867 163316 10884 %45 W 64 I 618
ERAER: Amortisaion ofntangible assts 1,966 10261 1 1697 131 14172 104 14576
(BE)/ B8 ARYGERR (Reversalecognion of mpaiment on
trade receivables 9 ) 41 11 - 30 (649) (279)
BED A A RARRA Research and development coss recogrised
3 an expense 9141 13131 29314 4315 e 174061 3299 177360
Hizs Wite-down of nventoris 49 - 5985 164 - 6758 & 6821
LENE  BERAEEE/ Loss/gain) on dsposels ofproperty,

(&) plant and equipment 5% 260 2595 17033 (179) 85954 2577 8531
BRAMRS Release o prepaid ease payments 3510 5210 3397 1345 . 13462 1849 15311
(BE)/Ban% BERRE (Revisalrecogrition of mpaiment on progerty,

A plant and equipment 3 - ; : - 3 315 318

Dongyue Group Limited Annual Report 2019 197



e MBRRME
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

EFE2019F12A31 HIFFE
For the year ended 31 December 2019

7. HflgA 7. Other income
20194 20184
AR¥T AREFT
2019 2018
RMB’000 RMB'000
BT Bh (P 7Ea) Government grants (Note a) 59,248 57,541
SRITERFBULA Bank deposits interest income 37,349 21,376
REZRAFEFAHMEEWEZE  Dividend income received from equity
(MEAFEFAHEMEEWES])  instruments at fair value through other
Z ARG E 2 BB A comprehensive income (“FVTOCI”) 10,800 -
H A F B A Other interest income 581 723
b 5 Uz Exchange gain 17,441 20,309
B UE R E Compensation received = 7,667
HAth Others 13,104 11,593
138,523 119,209
ik - Notes:
@ BNHEEZEREMREDMAY  CELHME (@)  The government grants are mainly for the expenditures on research
NFER AR ST o 7% % BT B 3 M R AR 16 activities which are recognised as expenses in the period in which they
e AEIE - are incurred. There were no unfulfilled conditions or contingencies
relating to those government grants.
8. AERA 8. Finance costs
2019 20184
AR¥T T ARETIT
2019 2018
RMB’'000 RMB'000
FE Interests on:
ARRAFAEEMEZE ZIRTTEFR  Bank loans wholly repayable within five years 98,074 94,358
ARAFAEBEZEMEE Other borrowings repayable within five years = 2,777
HEaE Lease liabilities 2,454 =
EEmR A 4258 Total borrowings costs 100,528 97,135




9. FIEHiRAx

REMBRRME
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BE2019F 1231 HIFFE
For the year ended 31 December 2019

9. Income tax expense

20194 20184
AR¥T T ARETIT
2019 2018
RMB’000 RMB'000
FREDEMER(DEBTR])  PRC enterprise income tax (“EIT”)
—BHFE — Current year 294,207 714,858
—BETEHBERE — Qver provision in prior years (97,340) (1,776)
— IR ER ([ IR EF ) — Land Appreciation Tax (“LAT") 18,798 (12,799)
215,665 700,283
RIEFRIA S H Deferred tax charge

— BB AR 5 K= — Withholding tax for distributable profits
ZTEH0H of PRC subsidiaries 45,282 65,082
—HAh - Others 117,072 34,835
162,354 99,917
FiSRiA X 1858 Total income tax expense 378,019 800,200

HRARENBALIFRAEREHKEE
B B ER BB HIRIEL B

RIELZ HEZREAR AR B LA B
AR ERT & ARG P REATEE - BiEF
Bl EREA(DEMSRED R{EHE
TS B AEIEN - PENBRRNFEA
25% (2018%F : 25%) + B TEBE S
MEENPEMBAG - A ZHHE2B%HE
159%8H) 1 2R 2 BRI o

S R AR A Y RN AR
FTREHH -

No provision for taxation in Hong Kong has been made as the
Group's income neither arises in, nor is derived from, Hong Kong.

Tax charge mainly consists of income tax in the PRC attributable
to the assessable profits of the Company’s subsidiaries established
in the PRC. Under the law of the PRC on Enterprise Income Tax
(the “EIT Law”) and Implementation Regulation of the EIT Law,
the tax rate of the PRC subsidiaries is 25% (2018: 25%), except for
certain PRC subsidiaries being awarded the Advanced-Technology
Enterprise Certificate and entitled for a tax reduction from 25% to
15%.

Taxation arising in other jurisdictions is calculated at the rates
prevailing in the relevant jurisdictions.
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EFE2019F12A31 HIFFE
For the year ended 31 December 2019

Fri8®ip = (&) 9. Income tax expense (Continued)
REEFHBERS EEGABFREMEEEA The tax expense for the year can be reconciled to the profit before

BRI MEHRRIAT

tax per the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income as follows:

201945 20184
AR¥ET T ARETT
2019 2018
RMB’'000 RMB'000
BR A5 A1 A Profit before tax 2,120,300 3,234,899
PA(25%) D ¥EFTEFBIRETER)  Tax charge at enterprise income tax rate of
BIEST H (M 5Ea) (25%) (Note a) 530,075 808,725
LEEREAEMATSHATE  Effect of income taxed on concessionary rate (86,438) (26,502)
PR RBUW AR TR IR R 2 Tax effect of income not taxable for tax
purpose (1,620) 451)
N HB A OB EE 2 Tax effect of expenses not deductible for tax
purpose 2,395 1,934
RERTIBEENTELE Tax effect of tax losses not recognised 3,759 679
FIF L AT AR FER B I E 1B /Y Tax effect of utilization of tax losses previously
HEgE not recognised (297) (11,578)
BEFEBETR,(FBEEREME)  Under/(over) provision in respect of
prior years (97,340) (1,776)
FENE AT D IREFKELEFTE Deferred tax on distribution earnings of PRC
(PfizEDb) subsidiaries (Note b) 45,282 65,082
T+ 3BE R (i EC) LAT (Note ¢) 18,798 (12,799)
THIRERNTIATE Tax effect of LAT (4,700) 3,200
H Others (31,895) (26,314)
REEHIARF X Tax expense for the year 378,019 800,200




9. FriEHiRAs ()

BiaE

(a)

25%EAEMEHBERBEARRAETEHBEA
AILRRECIGRARTERELT] - IUE
REEAEMBARAR(TRERME]D RILUER
FHMBEXERAR([HMBEX DOPED
ERBHEE - UREEWATMEERAA
([EZEHADBREHBERIS%  DEAEE
MESFBEMEEER - WRRESD FME
ERAB(RESD T RURREB#EEM
FEHBRAR(REERE]) FEREBSH
R EER  AEZ2018F12A3BLLEFE
RBETS IR IR A 15% ©

TRAR B R 2B & B R B A6 48 /B A 38 B i [2008]
B9 PEEEBE2008F1 A1 ARATEL
SEMR RS - BARBCONIZE DRI
B ¥ PTISRUE)E IR 27 A RINE IR E ¥
SNBSS FAE M AR S O1IEH IR B4
MRS - MHBATRD KBMAELER
HEE,/B&fEARM45282,0007 (201845 © A
R #65,082,00070) BT AFRIBE o

1 R E R R ph £ B E A FHEZ30%E)60% )
SRR - BIY 2SS & TS SRIER A F00R
T BETERAEORARITE MEME
S -

EETHIRF BN 21

Notes:

(a)

REMBHRERME

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BE2019F 1231 HIFFE
For the year ended 31 December 2019

9. Income tax expense (Continued)

Applicable enterprise income tax rate of 25% represents the PRC
Enterprise Income Tax rate of Shandong Dongyue Chemicals Co., Ltd.
("Dongyue Chemicals”), Shandong Dongyue Fluo-Silicon Materials Co.,
Ltd. ("Dongyue Fluo-Silicon”) and Shandong Dongyue Union Property Co.,
Ltd (“Union Property”) which are the major subsidiaries of the Company.
The income tax rate of Shandong Huaxia Shenzhou New Co,, Ltd. ("Huaxia
Shenzhou") is 15% as it obtained the qualification as a high and new
technology enterprise. Shandong Dongyue Polymers Co., Ltd. (‘Dongyue
Polymers”) and Shandong Dongyue Organosilicon Materials Co., Ltd.
("Dongyue Organosilicon”) also obtained the qualification as a high new
technology enterprise and the income tax rate was also 15% since the
year ended 31 December 2018.

According to a joint circular of Ministry of Finance and State
Administration of Taxation, Cai Shui [2008] No.1, dividend distributed out
of the profits generated since 1 January 2008 held by the PRC entity shall
be subject to EIT pursuant to Articles 3 and 27 of the Income Tax Law
Concerning Foreign Investment Enterprises and Foreign Enterprises and
Article 91 of the Detailed Rules for the Implementation of the Income
Tax Law for Enterprises with Foreign Investment and Foreign Enterprises.
Deferred tax asset/liability of RMB45,282,000 (2018: RMB65,082,000) on
the undistributed earnings of subsidiaries has been charged to profit or
loss for the year.

LAT is levied at progressive rates ranging from 30% to 60% on the
appreciation of land value, being the proceeds of sales of properties less
deductible expenditures including cost of land use rights and all property
development expenditures.

Details of deferred taxation are set out in note 21.
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For the year ended 31 December 2019

10. Profit for the year

FERBEFNEMG (A ) TH&HE : Profit for the year has been arrived at after charging/(crediting)
the following items:
2019% 20184
AR®T AREFT
2019 2018
RMB’000 RMB'000
EEREER Short-term employee benefits 683,527 813,520
IRUKAEF Post-employment benefits 79,776 97,253
B8 TEH Other staff welfare 40,030 60,633
@8 TR Total staff costs 803,333 971,406
EHERABFRY 2 FEKA Cost of investories recognised as an expense 9,376,076 9,236,077
ME - KR REBEITE Depreciation of property, plant and
equipment 552,653 651,812
B AEEHEGIABEERR) Amortisation of intangible assets (included in
cost of sales) 14,692 14,576
ZEEN & Auditor’s remuneration 2,467 2,910
e H a5 58 Net foreign exchange gains (15,408) (20,309)
R (B )E SEWFIERE ~ Recognition/(reversal) of impairment on trade
receivables 1,379 (275)
BHERAMYT 2T MR  Research and development costs recognised
as an expense 329,242 177,360
WORFE (G ASBENA) Write-down of inventories (included in cost of
sales) 10,577 6,821
fERRTEN S Release of prepaid lease payments - 15,311
FREEERE Depreciation of right-of-use assets 22,768 _
MEME - MR RREEIE Loss on disposals of property, plant and
equipment 17,594 88,532
HEER A EWE Gain on disposal of intangible assets (948) L
(R, TERWE - HEX (Reversal)/recognition of impairment of
HERE property, plant and equipment (3,128) 3,128
EAERE Impairment of intangible assets 5,630 =

Mz AEBTIRABFEEEMS -

EREMMEIBIEL A AR KI185150007T
(20184 : AR#E17424,0007T) °

Notes:

Directors’ emoluments are included in the above staff costs.

The actual discretionary bonus paid was RMB18,515,000 (2018:
RMB17,424,000).
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11. Directors’ and chief executive’s

RMEERTETRABCNRENZB

emoluments

The emoluments paid or payable to the directors and the chief

T executive were as follows:
20194 2019
REEE
RERA &1 LR
ik e (Hrt) st BB X% EftER 2
ARSI AR¥TR ARBTRT ARETR ARETR ARETR AR%T:x
Equity-settled
Discretionary Pension  share-based
bonus scheme payment Other
Fees Salary (Note)  contributions expense benefits Total
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
BTEE Executive Directors
RELLE Mr. Zhang Jianhong 144 6,000 12,593 - - - 18,737
BERE Mr. Fu Kwan 144 - - - - - 144
Emts Mr. Liu Chuangj - - - - = = =
RELE Mr. Zhang Jian 144 - - - - - 144
REESE Mr. Zhang Zhefeng 144 1,200 5,922 - = = 7,266
RUELE Mr. Zhang Bishu 144 - - - - = 144
BUFHTES Independent Non-executive
Directors
TRIELE Mr. Ting Leung Huel, Stephen 430 - - - - - 430
ERREE Mr. Yue Run Dong 204 - - - - - 204
RRELE Mr. Yang Xiaoyong 204 - - - - - 204
1,558 7,200 18,515 - - - 27,273
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MNEBEERFETHAEHFM(E) 11.Directors’ and chief executive’s
emoluments (Continued)

20184 2018

Gl

KB i B
e e (FEE) HE7E XHR% At ne
ARETL ARBTL ARERTR AREBTL  ARETT ARETRL ARETR

Equity-settled
Discretionary Pension share-based
bonus scheme payment Other
Fees Salary (Note)  contributions expense benefits Total
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
HTES Executive Directors
RERLE Mr. Zhang Jianhong 144 6,000 11,602 = 5 = 17,746
BERE Mr. Fu Kwan 144 - - = = = 144
flEmtt Mr. Liu Chuangi - = 5 = S = =
RESE Mr. Zhang Jian 144 = = = 5 e 144
RAELE Mr. Zhang Zhefeng 144 1,200 5822 = 5 g 7166
RNERE Mr. Zhang Bishu 144 = = = 5 L 144
BIFHTES Independent Non-executive
Directors

TRERE Mr. Ting Leung Huel, Stephen 378 = = - z 3 378
EEREE Mr. Yue Run Dong 195 = s = = A 195
ERELE Mr. Yang Xiaoyong 195 = = = = - 195

1488 7200 17424 — = = 26112
REREANARNANTTHAS X Mr. Zhang Jianhong is also the Chief Executive of the Company
BRI IEEEATRETIZHREREH and his emoluments disclosed above include those for services
B o rendered by him as the Chief Executive.
FER AEBVEREERALEESF AT During the year, no remuneration was paid by the Group to the
TAENS BB E B AREE S {EAINAK directors or the five highest paid individuals as an inducement
EEMIES BB EE  BMETETHAE to join or upon joining the Group or as compensation for loss of
ST M EERESE2019%F128318 IFRE office. Neither the Chief Executive nor any of the directors waived
FEEHETAEBE - any emoluments for the two years ended 31 December 2019.
Wiz BYBIEATIBIEEENEARBREMEE Note: Discretionary bonus is determined based on the individual performance

of the directors.
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R.AEBESHEES

FA AEBREGESF EEREMEBES
(20185 : MEBESR)  HMSFHBER LEX
BisE1l o KFEH TN =R (2018F : ZH)IF
AAREEHFBTRABZESHEEN

12. Five highest paid employees

The five highest paid employees of the Group during the year
included two directors (2018: two directors), details of whose
remuneration are set out in note 11 above. Details of the
remuneration for the year of the remaining three (2018: three)

MBI highest paid employees who are neither a director nor chief
executive of the Company are as follows:

20194 2018%F

AR¥TF T AREFT

2019 2018

RMB’'000 RMB'000

e Salaries 31,138 27,115

RIRET B Pension scheme contributions = =

AetEsEE 2 LARRD ST RIS Equity-settled share-based payment expense - =

31,138 27,115

RN EENTESEHEB ATBMEN F The number of the highest paid employees who are not the

AT #E :

directors of the Company whose remuneration fell within the

following bands is as follows:

2019 2018

EEAH EEAH

No. of employees No. of employees

4,500,001 7L 25,000,000/ 7T HK$4,500,001 to HK$5,000,000 1 =
5,000,001% 7T £ 5,500,000/ 7T HK$5,000,001 to HK$5,500,000 - 1
10,500,001 7C2 11,000,000 7T HK$10,500,001 to HK$11,000,000 1 1
15,500,001 7L 216,000,000/ 7C  HK$15,500,001 to HK$16,000,000 - 1
20,000,001 7CE20,500,000/7C  HK$20,000,001 to HK$20,500,000 1 =
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13.5RER

RRBHEE ANEEERERN TR TR
THBIEAE -

13. Earnings per share

The calculation of basic and diluted earnings per share attributable

to the owners of the Company is based on the following data:

2019 2018%F
TR TR
2019 2018
‘000 ‘000
HERERREERRM S/ Earnings for the year attributable to
REERRNTFEB A owners of the Company for the
ERBF(ARE) purposes of basic and diluted earnings
per share (RMB) 1,462,974 2,129,098
RIHEE : Number of shares:
HERERREHRFM S/ Weighted average number of ordinary
I IR hn R 5 21 shares for the purposes of basic and
diluted earnings per share 2,092,196 2,111,689

HE2019F1N2A3BIEEE  CHEER
% #E 5T &1 18 T LA A R #168,897,0007T B [B]
42,579,000 A% - B F AL E T TR

{/‘\ o

cancelled during the year.

During the year ended 31 December 2019, 42,579,000 ordinary
shares with amount of RMB168,897,000 were repurchased
under employee share option scheme and no shares have been
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14. R E 14. Dividends
20194 20184
AR¥T T ARETIT
2019 2018
RMB’000 RMB'000
FADIRNEIARE : 20195 : Dividends paid during the year: 2019: 2018
2018F RAARRE. ¢ final dividend: HK$0.35

FR%0.3578 7T (20184F : 20174F (2018: 2017 final dividend: HK$0.3)

RERE B : AR0.357T) per share 632,418 515,168

WMEHRE - HZE2019F 128310 ILFEE
FE D EE T K481,205,08078 JT(20184F ¢
739,091,000 7T ) ( & #x0.237% 7T(20184F :
FRR035BTT)) 2 REIRE - HERARK
424,268,0007T,(20184F : A K 632,418,000
7o) AR EE R R A E FERER B -

Subsequent to the end of the reporting period, a final dividend
HKS$0.23 per share (2018: HK$0.35 per share), amounting to
HK$481,205,080 (2018: HK$739,091,000) in respect of the year
ended 31 December 2019, equivalent to RMB424,268,000 (2018:
RMB632,418,000) has been proposed by the directors and is
subject to approval by the shareholders in the forthcoming
general meeting.
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15. 9% ~ SRR 1E 15. Property, plant and equipment

BF HERRB nE BAREKE EEIR an

ARBTT AR%TL ARETT ARETT ARETR AR%TR
Plant and Motor Furniture Construction

Buildings ~ machinery vehicles  and fittings i progress Total

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

A CosT
B2018E1 818 At 1 January 2018 1939145 6215646 58516 575,703 119372 8,908,382
NE Additions 45,299 323434 4331 174372 310,648 858,084
23 Transfer 55437 116,849 = 9,023 (181,309) =
HERE Eliminated on disposals (53,122) (501,207) (6:420) (17,105) (4,126) (581,980)
B2018E12A31H At 31 December 2018 1986759 6154722 56427 741,993 244585 9184486
NE Additions 90,080 369811 5570 111,245 827,246 1,403,952
EEb Transfer 36616 202,181 390 33,945 (273,132) =
HERE Eliminated on disposals (25,247) (163,198) (1,407) (11,115) (3249) (204,216)
12019128318 At 31 December 2019 2088208 6563516 60,980 876,068 795450 10384222
RIHERAE ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION

AND IMPAIRMENT
#2018F1 518 At 1 January 2018 653947 4023003 38,760 388,517 - 5104227
TEERY Charge for the year 95916 428444 4,894 122,558 2 651,812
BRERRESE Impairment loss recognised = = = - 3,128 3,128
HERE Eliminated on disposals (31,278) (385,029) (8,003) (10571) z (434881)
R018E12A31H At 31 December 2018 718585 4066418 35,651 500,504 318 5324286
TEERY Charge for the year 98,823 364,336 3744 85,750 = 552,653
BHERREERE Impairment loss recognised = = = = (3,128) (3,128)
HERE 8 Eliminated on disposals (6613) (83,852) (826) (6972) = (98,263)
B2019E128318 At 31 December 2019 810795 4346902 38,569 579,282 - 5775548
EHE CARRYING VALUES
B2019E 128318 At 31 December 2019 1277413 2216614 2411 296,786 795450 4608674
R2018E12431H At 31 December 2018 1,268,174 2,088,304 20,776 241,489 241457 3,860,200
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BE2019F 1231 HIFFE
For the year ended 31 December 2019

15. Y% - BB RRE(E) 15. Property, plant and equipment (Continued)
MR2019F12831H AEBEMNE TEF As at 31 December 2019, the Group had not obtained the building
HMAREBEEERIS HEEEAARE ownership certificates for certain buildings with carrying values of
192,809,8507T(20184F : AER#179,180,0007T) © RMB192,809,850 (2018: RMB179,180,000).

MIEE - MR N ETEBEAER TNHEETTT Depreciation of property, plant and equipment is calculated using
FRFIHRNZERANRFIGEERTETE the straight-line method to allocate their cost less their residual

values over their estimated useful lives as follows:

BF 20F S HHEA (ARG AB%E) Buildings Shorter of 20 years or the terms of lease

MeERERE 5104 Plant and machinery ~ 5-10 years

_E 5% Motor vehicles 5 years

BILRERE 5% Furniture and fittings 5 years

AEFDEHETE A A K 4363,0007T The Group has pledged buildings and plant and machinery with

(201845 : AR¥4,829,0007T) BB F R #28 carrying amount of RMB4,363,000 (2018: RMB4,829,000) to secure
B AANEBIRITEEEER - bank loans of the Group.

BREAaPRPE A RREREEERS - The buildings are situated on land in the PRC and held under

medium-term lease.

Dongyue Group Limited Annual Report 2019 209



e MBRRME
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

EFE2019F12A31 HIFFE
For the year ended 31 December 2019

16. EFAEEE 16. Right-of-use assets
BEre  ERMR
AREFT ARETT AREFT
Leasehold Leased
lands property Total
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
720191810 As at 1 January 2019
REE Carrying amount 604,025 = 604,025
NE Additions 108,281 980 109,261
WEEZR Depreciation charge (22,500) (268) (22,768)
2019512831 H &8k Balance at 31 December 2019 689,806 712 690,518
REEDEIPRE LB ARES782,0007T 8 The Group has pledged right of use assets with the aggregate
FAEEE  AASBMIRITERERR carrying amount of RMB5,782,000 to secure bank loans of the
Group.
17.7838 % 17. Prepaid lease payments
AREERMFEMES ARS BRTERNS T The Group's prepaid lease payments are analysed for reporting
N purpose as follows:
20184
ARETT
2018
RMB'000
BWEBWTENDTIT ¢ Analysed for reporting purpose as:
—BNEAE o — Current portion 15,766
— SERNERER - Non-current portion 535,564
551,330
ZeBEENTEAE20E50F AR B L The amounts represent the medium-term land use rights situated
FARE - in the PRC for a period of 20 to 50 years.
M20185F12A318 - A& B HIFREAE As at 31 December 2018, the Group has pledged prepaid lease
ARES5913,000tTEMNFES » AXNEER payments with the aggregate carrying amount of RMB5,913,000 to
IRITEEEIR - secure bank borrowings of the Group.
2019128318 @ FTEHE SR BRI 1F As at 31 December 2019, all lease payments were accounted in
WMELAE1FRAR - REFHEEFEAE accordance with IFRS 16 and reclassified to right-of-use assets.
BE -
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18. B & E 18. Intangible assets
EEHEMN B IR #az
ARETTT AREFT ARBTT AR®TRT
Proprietary Exploration
technologies Software rights Total
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
A CcosT
720181 A1H At 1 January 2018 128,512 5618 80,000 214,130
NE Additions - 15,166 = 15,166
i S B A 8 Eliminated on disposals (336) - - (336)
2018512 H31H At 31 December 2018 128,176 20,784 80,000 228,960
NE Additions 10,120 2,721 - 12,841
HE R 8 Eliminated on disposals (5,634) - - (5,634)
PR2019F12H31H At 31 December 2019 132,662 23,505 80,000 236,167
#eE OB E AMORTISATION AND
IMPAIRMENT
7201851 A1H At 1 January 2018 73,097 1,901 57,485 132,483
AEERY Charge for the year 12,559 2,017 = 14,576
o 65 BRI 8 Eliminated on disposals (336) = = (336)
2018 12H31H At 31 December 2018 85,320 3918 57,485 146,723
REEFEREZ Charge for the year 10,640 4,052 = 14,692
S R R B Eliminated on disposals (1,080) = = (1,080)
FAERRIEREIE Impairment loss recognised in
the year - - 5,630 5,630
MR2019%F12H31H At 31 December 2019 94,880 7,970 63,115 165,965
BREE CARRYING VALUES
72019512 A31H At 31 December 2019 37,782 15,535 16,885 70,202
2018512 H4318 At 31 December 2018 42,856 16,866 22,515 82,237

AEBERERTEENAE=TEE °

All of the Group's intangible assets were acquired from third

parties.
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18

EREEGR)

EERT R BB EERMAIFE A
FH - WRERED HRSEE10F RIFE
SHBEH o

PoF AEEBEBUNBEREBEARE
80,0000007LME = FKBEFBE AT H B
& 7R E 8 % ) IR A - AR B E FTRRES
MNEABRYE(BOARNEER LB ER
WEZERME) - WIERESHEREEEH
NEEMRARSEBENSEE4 A& RH
ﬁg °

BEPEERERFKBEENEBRRT - REZH
FINEETAEBMNRGEE - ANEEARTE
REEEA R - 20175108 » REEK
NS IREEEEMELE2019F107 » Wik
—FSEEMFE2021F108 - AREEFR
BEZMERSHFERRRE ] AREE
ERE REE2019F12831HEFEEHE
RREAREES63000070(2018%F : ARKER
JT) °

18.Intangible assets (Continued)

Proprietary technologies and computer software licences have
finite useful lives and are amortised on a straight-line basis over 5
to 10 years and 3 to 5 years respectively.

During 2012, the Group acquired exploration rights of two mines
from third parties in Inner Mongolia Autonomous Region in the
PRC for a total consideration of RMB80 million. The directors of the
Company expected that the mines are abundant with fluorspar
resources, which is a major raw material for the refrigerant
business of the Group. The acquisition of the mines will enable
the Group to secure a reliable supply of high quality fluorspar
resources at a reasonable cost.

According to the regulations on exploration and mining rights
in the PRC, the Group can extend the exploration rights as long
as the survey is in process and the application fee is submitted.
In October 2017, the Group extended the exploration rights for a
period of two years till October 2019 and further extended for a
period of two years till October 2021. Due to decrease in mining
areas of the two mines upon renewal of the exploration rights,
the directors of the Company considered that impairment of
RMBS5,630,000 million was recognised during the year ended 31
December 2019 (2018: RMBnil).



19. EEHRA

RBEMKR - AEEFATEERM

WIS R - AEBSEAAR
#4,363,00070(20184F + AR #54,829,000
TER AR B - SR BREDE
R EABRTASBETRITEED
ER o

BT I6ATHE - AEESEAAR
#5,782,000 LR BIRFEREEEDS
B - (EARTAEBRE TRITEER
BIPELR -

W17 SR - AEBSEAAR
#5,913,0007C TS EEIRIF - 1E
RB2018F 12 A3 AR TAREESE TRT
HEMER -

WM 26T H R - AKBEBEAA
R #50,000,0007T + A R #11,618,0007T
M AR¥247,623,00070 (20185 : AR
82,700,0007C + T & A K #280,433,000
TLOMBEMRITFREERF - 55
ERENZRE REREEHEERKRE
BEME RS HIER -
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19. PLEDGE OF ASSETS

At the end of the reporting period, the Group has the following

pledge of assets:

(a

As described in note 15, the Group’s property, plant and
equipment situated in the PRC amounting to RMB4,363,000
(2018: RMB4,829,000) was pledged to secure for certain bank
borrowings granted to the Group.

As described in note 16, the Group's right-of-use assets
situated in the PRC amounting to RMB5,782,000 was
pledged to secure for certain bank borrowings granted to
the Group.

As described in note 17, the Group's prepaid lease payments
amounting to RMB5,913,000 was pledged to secure for
certain bank borrowings granted to the Group as at 31
December 2018.

As described in notes 26, the Group's pledged bank
deposits amounting to RMB50,000,000, RMB11,618,000,
RMB247,623,000 (2018: RMB82,700,000, nil, RMB280,433,000)
were pledged to secure the bills payable, undrawn
borrowing facilities and deposits from presale of properties,
respectively.
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BRATFESFAHMEZEREZ
BRATH

20. Equity instruments at fair value through
other comprehensive income

20194 2018%F
ARYET T AREFT
2019 2018
RMB’'000 RMB'000
JEEMRAFES - HZAFEHIER  Unlisted equity securities, at fair value
—HERERERGBERAT — China MinSheng Investment Co.,, Ltd.

(T R&% ) (Fifita) ("CMIC") (Note a) 455,297 1,567,000
—REBEEETEARAT(MIFED) - Taihe Asset Management Co. Ltd. (Note b) 110,411 108,240
—EERHEEEREZEEEABMR - Zibo Fluorosilicone Industrial Park Operation

ARFIPL) (B 5EC) Management Co., Ltd. (“FIP”) (Note c) 100,000 100,000
— LB EEREERAH - Shanghai Yiging Technology. Co,, Ltd.

(MsEd) (T EBESE ) (Note d) ("Shanghai Yiging") 3,000 =
— LR BECLERERES - Shandong Peninsula Ocean Blue Economic

BR AR ([SPOBEL) (KizEe) Investment Co,, Ltd. (“SPOBE") (Note e) - 16,394
—EIERIEER/NEERBER QA - Zibo ZhangDian Huitong Microfinance

([RIEER]) (IR Co., Ltd. (" ZhangDian Huitong”) (Note f) - 9,760

668,708 1,801,394

B ERERARE RAKERE TR E
LASHERIINLAEROBE - AQ7]
EFEERRSREREREATEFAR
i EERENERATR  DARZERER
ROREREMESR -

REEFEMRARE RN TFER - AEEZ
BBYEXGHEMETERMGE - Z28)D
REBEEFREREREMRREALRENRS
MEEREE UFTEEMRIBRRK BRE
BEREK . RRBRE - HEWESENENE
WZEEHETRERAANNEEERE T
LRRNHEMIENMHEES

The above unlisted equity investments represent the Group's
equity interest in several private entities established in the PRC
and the Cayman Islands. The directors of the Company have
elected to designate these investments in equity instruments as at
FVTOCI as they are held for long-term strategic purposes.

In determining the fair value of unlisted equity investments, the
Group engages an independent professional valuer to perform
such valuation. The amount is determined based on the cash flow
projection for the estimated future cash flow discounted to its
present value and requires the use of key assumptions, including
the discount rate, terminal growth rate, budgeted revenue
and gross margin taking into account the relevant industry
growth forecasts and financial budgets approved management’s
expectation for the market development.



20 BAFEFAHMBEZEKEZ
BT A (&)

MiaE

(a)

PREAZBEIEEERE  EERILENRE
¥ FENERERENEEETRE - A%
E #75  R181,400,000,0000% - REAARE
1,580,000,0007T * 7N £ B FA2019F12831H K%
PRI IE A28% ° RIEF RIEHZE2019
FNRANBLEFEMBRE  LERINELRE
KETITRE  RERBEXEFNCESA
BEEEHT  FRE019FHNES KRNI
ERTHER  WBEHRSEE/L - At - &
RAIEERE  UWRAEEZEMB I EHG
BRREE  NEBRPRENHIZER2019F12
A3BMRFEL B AR455297,0007T(2018
F: AR¥1,567,0000007T) © Bt AREBEE
E019FNANALFEEMBEERAIHNAF
EEEH A ARM1111,703,0007T (20184 = A
R #13,000,0007T) °

HFEA HEFEKINLATE - TEATE
REEHPBE)EEEEULTEHILEEE
RNERMECETREEMEERER - KEH
HEMAEBHERLRE  HEMEEXRAEA
R #10,000,000,0007T * EAFRAEEHE K
B AR B AR600,0000007T * 15FA HGFME
TN 4E Fe% > B £2019F12A831H - AEBE
4+ AR %120,000,0007C e NARIEERE -
FZERER2019F12A3 BN AFELNBARE
110,411,0007T(2018%F :+ AR #108,240,0007T) -
EEAREBEE2019F12831AIFFEE
HEEREN R FEKEL A ARE2171,000
TL(2018F « R FEEEELN B ARM1,760,000
TL) o REE2019F 12A31HIEFE - AARE
Wk B AR E AR 10,800,0007T ©

FIPA — R 720185F12 5108 £ & Bl Ak 37 89 7l
ANBEBE -FPEENEEXEREIRMES
IPoFIPRASBE R —ZBBIE=ZHAKL - R
2018F12A3AIEFE - AEEEXTARKE
100,000,0007T * {HFIP4R & 72 B& 2K 2 46.15% ° H
RASETEEWEEENESTSRRSRE
PR ZIRRE - WES2HEBUREBE -
BEFREERIRIMEEALS  MAKET
WRABHWREEBERTE - ZIZER2019
F12A31HEM 2 FEA A R %100,000,0007T
(20185 : AR¥100,000,0007T) °
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20. Equity investments at fair value through

other comprehensive income (Continued)

Notes:

(a)

CMIC, a private enterprise initiated by the All-China Federation of
Industry and Commerce and approved by the State Council of the PRC,
is principally engaged in equity investment and assets management.
The Group held 1,400,000,000 shares in CMIC at a consideration of
RMB1,580,000,000, and the equity interest in CMIC held by the Group
was 2.8% as at 31 December 2019. Based on CMIC's financial statements
for the year ended 31 December 2019, and having considered the
macroeconomic downturn, and the continuous deleveraging by the
State as well as the dual pressure on high level of corporate debts, the
funding situation and cash flow of CMIC in 2019 were very tight, and the
financial position has deteriorated sharply. As a result, the directors of the
Company considered, and as agreed by the independent professional
valuer engaged by the Group, the fair value of the Group’s investment in
CMIC was approximately RMB455,297,000 as at 31 December 2019 (2018:
RMB1,567,000,000), fair value loss of approximately RMB1,111,703,000
(2018: RMB13,000,000)which had been included in other comprehensive
expenses of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2019.

Taihe is a private entity and was established in the PRC. Taihe was
principally engaged in inter alia, asset management and bulk transfer
of non-performing assets of financial enterprises in Shandong Province,
the PRC. The Group and other partners established Taihe and the
registered capital amount of Taihe was RMB10,000 million, of which
the register capital amount contributable by the Group was RMB600
million, representing 6% of the total registered capital of Taihe. Up to 31
December 2019, the Group has paid RMB120 million. The directors of the
Company considered the fair value of the investment was approximately
RMB110,411,000 as at 31 December 2019 (2018: RMB108,240,000),
fair value gain of approximately RMB2,171,000 (2018: fair value loss
of approximately RMB11,760,000) which had been included in other
comprehensive income of the Group for the year ended 31 December
2019. The Company received dividend of RMB10,800,000 from Taihe
during the year ended 31 December 2019.

FIP is a private equity and was established in the PRC on 10 December
2018. FIP was principally engaged in garden construction and property
management. The Group and an independent third party established
FIP. The Group paid RMB100 million during the year ended 31 December
2018 and contribute 46.15% of the total registered share capital of FIP.
As the Group did not have any representative on the board of directors
or equivalent governing body of the investment, did not participate
in policy-making processes, and did not interchange any managerial
personnel with the investment, it does not consider as having significant
influence on the investment. The fair value of the investment was
RMB100,000,000 as at 31 December 2019 (2018: RMB100,000,000).
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RAFEFARMEEREZ
RARE (&)
Hise < ()

d) BEEEA—RR2019%6 821 BIERBIRK M ()
AT - EEESFEHR BRI - 37
MR AT R AT EE R - AEBEHEEME EBH
Ky BBES - BASEERAF LEFEE15%0
AR - RAREERE - ZILEN2019F

12A31 B A FEL A ARE3,000,0007T ©

SPOBEA— MR EHSEMKYMALAE
BE o SPOBEE BN FREER - REIZE2014F
12A318 It & F © AR 7] E2SPOBER] M R B8
1 &% ¢ %2 F820,000,0000%SPOBERZ 17+ &K B
/20,000,000% JT( 18 & 1 A R #126,256,000
7))+ #M#4820,000,0000 8% 1% © HEE FASPOBE
18.18%H) P HE » #E =2019F 128318 ILFE -
REBED HEHNSPOBEWIRE - IR ZIRE
THBEAAESENRERE DHERORE
ERNATEAREAREK16394,0007T @ MANEE
REBZE2019F 128318 ILFEHBEFARE
EEZ2019F 12838 L EEBEINEEBAA
R#2,446,0007T - AEBEBTFEREMS
HE = ER A T EE B A AR31,008000
T B EMEERERENAFEEAR
SEREEHBNRERF(R2018F12A31
A : SPOBERY A F{EA A A K %16,394,0007T -
UEBFAREBEZ2018F12A318BIEFEE
Et2mEAYMmAFEEERBARK27,902,000
JT) °

REEBAEPEAINAAETE - RIEES
FEEFHILRELAREEEEE - AEER
REEBFB ISR AET  ARAESER
B ZERER019F12A3BNATEAAR
MZ (20185 + ARM9,760,00070) © B FF A
AREBEHE2019F12A3BEFEEMEEHA
WA TFEEIEDN AR AR760,0007T(2018
F: AR¥240,0007T) °

20. Equity investments at fair value through
other comprehensive income (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

Shanghai Yiging is a private entity and was established in the PRC on
21 June 2019. Shanghai Yiging was principally engaged in new energy
technology, new materials technology and technology consulting. The
Group and other parties established Shanghai Yiging, and the Group held
15% of the total equity interest of Shanghai Yiging. The directors of the
Company considered the fair value of the investment was approximately
RMB3,000,000 as at 31 December 2019.

SPOBE is a private entity that was incorporated in the Cayman Islands.
SPOBE is principally engaged in investment activities. During the year
ended 31 December 2011, the Company entered into a subscription
agreement with SPOBE to subscribe for 20,000,000 shares in SPOBE at
a total contribution of US$20,000,000 (equivalent to RMB126,256,000)
and held 20,000,000 shares which represented 18.18% equity interest
in SPOBE. During the year ended 31 December 2019, the Group sold its
investment in SPOBE, as this investment no longer suited the Group's
investment strategy. The shares sold had a fair value of RMB16,394,000
at the time of the sale and the Group realised a loss of RMB2,446,000
during the year ended 31 December 2019 which had been included in
profit or loss of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2019. The
Group recognised fair value loss through other comprehensive income of
RMB31,008,000 in prior years which have been transferred from fair value
through other comprehensive income reserve to retained earnings of the
Group at the date of sale. (As at 31 December 2018: fair value of SPOBE
was approximately RMB16,394,000 and fair value loss of RMB27,902,000
and had been included in other comprehensive expenses of the Group
for the year ended 31 December 2018).

Zhangdian Huitong is a private entity and was established in the PRC.
Zhangdian Huitong is principally engaged in the money lending business
in Shandong Province, the PRC. The Group holds 15% of the equity
interest in Zhangdian Huitong, the directors of the Company considered
the fair value of the investment was RMBnil as at 31 December 2019
(2018: RMB9,760,000), fair value loss of approximately RMB9,760,000 (2018:
RMB240,000) which had been included in other comprehensive expenses
of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2019.
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21, EERIE 21. Deferred taxation
AR ETER R IBLE SO T ¢ The following is an analysis of the deferred tax balances for

financial reporting purpose:

20194 20184
ARBT R ARETT
2019 2018
RMB’000 RMB'000
EERIRE B Deferred tax assets 53,984 213,741
EERIEBE Deferred tax liabilities (58,929) (111,029)
(4,945) 102,712
FRNEHANTEREENBEE(BE)RE The following are the major deferred tax assets (liabilities)
SEHINT recognised and movements thereon for the year:
e i)
hENELE EEEi  EAEEN ¥ BERR B S
THAKEN  FERE  EHER  NFEY RORGER  BAMEE REER  QTESR it 85
Tax credit on
acquisition
Government  of qualified Fair value
Distributable Accrual for grants on property adjustment
Profits of PRC  Depreciation employee ~ prepaidlease  plant.and  Capitalised on business
Subsidiaries  allowance benefits payments  equipment interest ~~ Taxlosses  combination Others Total
ARETL  ARETT  ARETR  ARETR  ARETn  ARETR  ARMTR  ARETR  ARETR ARETH
RB00 RMB000 RiB000 RVB 00 RB00 RVB000 RB000 RB 00 RB000 RNB000
RoisEIAIR At 1 January 2018 (70637) 15085 54433 4600 17500 (1025) 93487 (24130 27,004 154317
ERRERIH Dividend withholdng ta paid 4999 = = = = . . s . 49993
PERREAMBIA  (Charge) Credit recogrised n prof
orloss (65,082) (5414 34430 (39%) - 48 (93487) - 76,59 (101,59)
R0I8E12A31A At 31 December 2018 (85,726) (39038) 83,863 404 17500 (583) - (24130 103602 102712
ERRERH Dividend withholdng ta paid 7200 = . . . = : i . 72000
PERRAMBEIA  (Chargd) Credit recogrised n prof
orloss (45.280) (92946) @320 (248) - 140 - - (15877) (179657)
R09E1A3IA At 31 December 2019 (59,008) (132,004 65653 3970 17500 (403) & (24130 8775 (4949)
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21 EERE (F) 21. Deferred taxation (Continued)

R2019%F12831H » NEBE ] AEEKE AR At 31 December 2019, the Group had unused tax losses of
i A B R B) AR IR B 18 8 A R 672,000,000 RMB72,000,000 (2018: RMB49,963,000) available for offset against
TC(20184F + AR¥49,963,0007T) * EFLEF future profits of which a deferred tax asset has been recognised in
BHARBZIL(2018F : AREZIT)NE respect of RMB nil (2018: RMB Nil) of such losses. No deferred tax
BERAELEHEEE - AN TEEEBEASE asset has been recognised in the remaining unused tax losses of
EEEMERFENEE A BAREBHRIEE RMB49,963,000 (2018: RMB49,963,000) as it is uncertain whether
B - FTAERER N RE AT IEEEA taxable profit of the corresponding group entities will be available
R #49,963,00070 (20184 : AR #49,963,000 against which the unused tax losses can be utilised. Included in
TO)FRERELEHRIBEEE - RERHIAEE unrecognised tax losses are losses of RMB49,963,000 will expire
B 15 B 18 A R #49,963,0007T i 7820224 2022 (2018: RMB49,963,000 will expire 2022).

fE m (20185 © A R #49,963,0007T © # 7
2022 fE ) °

22. HE 22. Goodwill
20195 2018%F
AR®T ARETT
2019 2018
‘000 ‘000
AR CoST
M ATERI12A318 At 1 January and 31 December 123,420 123,420
BETRERR - ARK37,5260007T(2018 For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill of RMB37,526,000
F . ARHE375260007T) AR HE84,540,000 (2018: RMB37,526,000), RMB84,540,000 (2018: RMB84,540,000) and
TL(20184F © A R ¥84,540,0007T ) & A R RMB1,354,000 (2018: RMB1,354,000) have been allocated to three
1,354,0007C(20184F : A R #1354,0007C ) 2 cash generating units (CGUs) representing four PRC subsidiaries,
HERESRSEF=ARSELEMN(IRSE Zhangjiajie Xinye Real Estate Development Co, Ltd. (“Zhangjiajie”)
EABEAM) IEEPEENB AR - WEH and Shandong Boda Real Estate Development Co,, Ltd. (“Boda”)
BOMNERASELEHMERZEAR AT in the property development segment, Huaxia Shenzhou in the
([RBRADRLEFEAEHERZEAER AT polymers segment and Dongying Dongyue Salt Co,, Ltd ("Dongyue
([HEKX]) SDFMED M EE S R Salt") in the refrigerants segment. During the year ended 31
AHlS I ELEREE AR AT ([ EEE December 2019, management of the Group determines that there
2 ) o REE2019F12831HILEE A& was no impairment of goodwill (2018: nil).
B E 32 B R E MR R E R R BB E (2018
FrE)e
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22. Goodwill (Continued)

Property development segment

The recoverable amounts of Zhangjiajie and Boda have been
determined based on a value in use calculation. That calculation
uses cash flow projections based on financial budgets approved
by management covering a five-year period and a discount
rate of 10.9% (2018: 11.3%). Cash flows beyond the five-year
period are extrapolated using a steady 3% growth rate. This
growth rate is based on the relevant industry growth forecasts
and does not exceed the average long-term growth rate for the
relevant industry. Other key assumptions for the value in use
calculations relate to the estimation of cash flows which include
budgeted sales and gross margins. Such estimation is based on
past performance of Zhangjiajie and Boda and management’s
expectations for the market development. Management believes
that any reasonably possible change in any of these assumptions
would not cause the aggregate carrying amount of related
subsidiaries to exceed the aggregate recoverable amount.

Polymers segment

The recoverable amount of Huaxia Shenzhou has been determined
based on value in use calculation. This calculation uses cash flow
projections based on financial budgets approved by management
covering a five-year period and a discount rate of 16.7% (2018:
16%). Cash flows beyond the five-year period are extrapolated
using a steady 3% growth rate. This growth rate is based on
the relevant industry growth forecasts and does not exceed the
average long-term growth rate for the relevant industry. Other
key assumptions for the value in use calculations relate to the
estimation of cash flows which include budgeted sales and
gross margins. Such estimation is based on past performance
of Huaxia Shenzhou and management’s expectations for the
market development. Management believes that any reasonably
possible change in any of these assumptions would not cause the
aggregate carrying amount of Huaxia Shenzhou to exceed the
aggregate recoverable amount of Huaxia Shenzhou.
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23. 78 23. Inventories
20194 2018%F
AR®T T ARETT
2019 2018
RMB’000 RMB'000

R KOE R dn Raw materials and consumables 390,461 397,986

& Work in progress 77,871 85,947

2K Finished goods 513,140 622,788

981,472 1,106,721

4. EHERBR Y 24, Properties for sale
20195 2018%F
AR¥T T ARETT
2019 2018
RMB’000 RMB'000
TERER®R 2 Property for sale 586,982 348,052
ERERG R Properties under development for sale 2,018,850 2,685,586
2,605,832 3,033,638

HERRTZMEM TSN Details of construction works of properties for sale is as follows:

WERREHITBELER QR ([ B Shandong Dongyue Union Property Co. Ltd. (Union

B ) Property)

1. REZE201NFN2ANBLEFE  ~&EH 1. During the year ended 31 December 2012, the Group's
BB R AR B LR E S &R management decided to develop residential properties on
M ERELERRZEEY two parcels of lands which are situated in Huantai Shandong,
¥ . BEFEEEIE &R E 8 P the PRC for sale and the relevant development plan had been
BofE o SZEL TIZ2EA2012FE/T o & approved by relevant authority in the PRC. The construction
BEEESATH  ME—HERER work was commenced in 2012. The whole project is divided
2014 12A31HIFEERT £ -HE into five phases and phase 1 was completed during the year
REE2015F 128318 IFFEERT - 5 end 31 December 2014 and phase 2 was completed during
—HIR EMHE RE E20165E12 831 H the year ended 31 December 2015. Phase 3 and Phase 4
IHEEBT - 8~ — a4 20204 were completed during the year ended 31 December 2016.
=T e The remaining one phase was expected to be completed in

2020.
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2.

HE2018F12A31BILFE - AEBER
BARTRILREES SN —RL
FEAELERERZEEDE - BEH
BETEID B BRI - ZFER
TERER2018F kL - BERBARE
PR ERE N TR ET N 20205F 52 L ©

WRBAFHERZERRAT((E
Vi)

1.

AR B IL R RS M — R A
EHER®RZFEYE - B BEBRAE:
EIE R BB E - ZERT
RER2012FHI - EEEBARSE
fE - BEBEBESAME - E—HERE
E2017F12A3BLEFERT - M T
—HATERT SR 2023 F =L -

MARFEILREEMNN— R iR
TEHERZ 2T =W - BARBEREET
SR B BB EPIRAE - ZERTIE
BT - HERBARSHE —PR
ANEE - BEIE B BRI R2021F T T -
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24, Properties for sale (Continued)

2.

During the year ended 31 December 2018, the Group
acquired a parcel of land which is situated in Huantai
Shandong, the PRC to develop residential properties for
sale. The relevant development plan had been approved
by relevant authority in the PRC. The construction work was
commenced in 2018. The project was named Dongyue Guoji
Xiyuan, and was expected to be completed in 2020.

Shandong Boda Real Estate Development Co., Ltd.
(Boda)

1.

Residential properties on a parcel of land which are situated
in Zhangdian Shandong, the PRC for sale and the relevant
development plan had been approved by relevant authority
in the PRC. The construction work was commenced in 2012.
The project was named Sheng Jing Lan Ting and the whole
project is divided into two phases, phase 1 was completed as
at the year ended 31 December 2017 and the remaining one
phase was expected to be completed on 2023.

Residential properties on a parcel of land which are situated
in Dezhou Shangdong, the PRC for sale and the relevant
development plan had been approved by relevant authority
in the PRC. The construction work was under projection. The
project was named Shengjing Yuyuan-Zhongyang Gongguan
and the whole project was expected to be completed in
2021.
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24

AFHERR 2R (E)

WRBAFHERZRRAT(E
KD (&)

3. fIRFEILEREEMN—R A
ERERB T - BEBMEE
SIE P AR EBPIRLE - SZERRIIE
BT - JHE B AT - BEE
B BT H2023F £ T -

REXRBXFHERBARLT
(MRZES )

R FEAREARRAMN — R A AE
HERGRZEEME  BEBEMAETEDE
R EIARRA B P& - BRI IEER20124
BT - HERBABMEERN  BEEEES A
WA - BE—HIE B EREREE2017F128
JIHEFERT  ME—HE_REEREEZ
HATEEH 5 B 20204 }2 202345 52 L ©

2019 12A318  (ELERBCEREYE
FIBRE{E 4 A R #950,482,0007T (20184 © A
R #51,699,437,00070 ) TE BR A5 A s &5 HA R AR 5T
+—@ARET -

24, Properties for sale (Continued)

Shandong Boda Real Estate Development Co., Ltd.
(Boda) (Continued)

3. Residential properties on a parcel of land which are situated
in Dezhou Shandong, the PRC for sale and the relevant
development plan had been approved by relevant authority
in the PRC. The construction work was under projection. The
project was named Hanlinyuan and the whole project was
expected to be completed in 2023.

Zhangjiajie Xinye Real Estate Development Co,
Ltd. (Zhangjiajie)

Residential properties on a parcel of land which are situated in
Zhangjiajie Hunan, the PRC for sale and the relevant development
plan had been approved by relevant authority in the PRC. The
construction work was commenced in 2012. The project was
named Xiaoxiang Huafu and the whole project is divided into two
phases, part 1 of phase 1 was completed as at the year ended
31 December 2017, the part 2 of phase 1 was expected to be
completed 2020 and phase 2 was expected to be completed in
2023.

At 31 December 2019, the carrying amount of properties under
development for sale of approximately RMB950,482,000 (2018:
RMB1,699,437,000) are expected to be completed within twelve
months from the end of reporting period.

>
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25. B 5 R H Mt B FIE 25.Trade and other receivables

20194 20184
ARET T ARETT
2019 2018
RMB’000 RMB'000
g Z M EIE Trade receivables 1,235,225 1,487,709
W EEBERE Less: allowance for credit losses (4,232) (2,853)
1,230,993 1,484,856
R B FIR Prepayments for raw materials 172,554 222,709
JE BB RS Value added tax receivables 105,248 76,142
FEA L b IB(E RS Prepaid land value increment tax 9,390 13,973
EfMEERES Deposit paid for property development 27,767 22,586
e RAMEWRFIA Deposits and other receivables 157,517 147 464
1,703,469 1,967,730
201912 31BN E S EIN R IB B EFEI Included in the trade receivables are bills receivable amounting to

Z & AR #951,267,0007T(2018%F : AR RMB951,267,000 at 31 December 2019 (2018: RMB1,249,734,000).

1,249,734,0007T) ©

NREBRTEP 2ESEIKGFIEEZESR RS Customers are generally granted with credit period of less than
@R - EBFEE —ARMN0H 3k180H 90 days for trade receivables. Bills receivables are generally due
BHY o HEHRAEFBHERNE 5 FENRIEAE in 90 days or 180 days. The following is an aging analysis of
(M REEEBE ) REEH (M EREER trade receivables, net of allowance for doubtful debts presented
HERRE) < RO ESAT © based on the invoice date, also approximate the date of revenue

recognition, which are recognised by the Group at the end of the
reporting period.

20194 20184

AR¥ T ARBEFIT

2019 2018

RMB’000 RMB'000

908K Within 90 days 654,902 1,145,748
91BZE180H 91-180 days 526,767 325,894
181 H &£365H 181-365 days 49,324 13,214
1,230,993 1,484,856
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EABEARFER,A - AEBEREHES
HEERTHEBEEPHNEEERNRER
PHERREE - EFPNEREEMERTR
FEEZMIR © 96% (20184 1 95%) 7 %1 HA
MARBEZE HEBGRIEREEERAENR
HERFR - AEERTEFENRE - 5
AREEREHZEER -

TEBCBESRWARBEKRBIEER AR
T4 E A R #49,5750007C(20184F « AR
9,628,0007T) * BN WS A AC B Em
AEBWEGHREBBEELRE  ~&FH
WARFE U FERES BRI AIER

25.Trade and other receivables (Continued)

Before accepting any new customer, the Group conducts research
on the creditworthiness of the new customer and assesses the
potential customer’s credit quality and defines credit limits by
customer. Limits and scoring attributed to customers are reviewed
twice a year. 96% (2018: 95%) of the trade receivables that are
neither past due nor impaired have the high ranking record
attributable under the research on the creditworthiness. The
Group offers various settlement terms which vary depending on
the size of contract, credibility and reputation of the customers.

Included in the Group’s trade receivable balance are debtors
with the aggregate carrying amount of RMB49,575,000 (2018:
RMB9,628,000) which are past due as at the reporting date for
which the Group has not provided for impairment loss. The Group
does not hold any collateral or credit enhancements over these

balances.
20194 20184
AR¥T T ARETT
2019 2018
RMB’000 RMB’000
91HZ180H 91-180 days 42,767 8,094
180H A E Over 180 days 6,808 1,534
49,575 9,628

MR EEHET RBEER( ARAEER A
SHORNAKE - ARERY RS BHR
Bl - AATEERARSHBEREZR
4 o

Allowance of the above amount has not been made by the Group
as there has not been a significant change in the credit quality
and the amounts are still considered recoverable. The directors of
the Company consider they are in good credit quality.
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5. B R EHMEWRFIE(E) 25. Trade and other receivables (Continued)

SEEBEEREEH Movement in the allowance for credit losses

20194 20184

ARET T ARETT

2019 2018

RMB’000 RMB'000

FHEER Balance at beginning of the year 2,853 3,128

FNEE (BE) Provided/(Reversed) during the year 1,379 275)

FRER Balance at end of the year 4,232 2,853

LA LB AR AT ATINE R E 5 ERGRIE The above allowance represents impairment for trade receivables

BRE o which are considered not recoverable.
LB EEE NI EE AN TS| The Group's trade receivables that are denominated in currencies
ENAREEE S EIGEIESHINNT other the functional currencies of the relevant group entities are

set out below:

EY AR
Tt Tt
uUss$ RMB
‘000 ‘000
#2019 12A31H As at 31 December 2019 28,850 201,266
72018 12A31H As at 31 December 2018 21,362 146,567
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26

BEARTER RITEHR
RE
RITERBEARITER

RENEE ARENEERERKATEEY
¥ 2R EERNEERBITERS B AA
R #50,000,0007C A K #11,618,0007T & A
R #247,623,00070 (20184F : AR %82,700,000
T ARBZEITL R ARY280433,0007T) + #5
DERRDEE -

EEBROTTFRLBRITERIRZEFIELT
B BIMFRITERRBITEHN2019F
12A31B 8 NEFEHEBRF XD R /B0.25%
(20184 : 0.35%) 520.46%(2018%F : 0.49%) °

26. Pledged bank deposits/bank balances and
Cash

Bank balances/pledged bank deposits

Pledged bank deposits amounting to RMB50,000,000,
RMB11,618,000 and RMB247,623,000 (2018: RMB82,700,000, RMB
nil, and RMB280,433,000) have been pledged to secure the bills
payable, undrawn borrowing facilities and deposits from presale
of properties, respectively, and are therefore classified as current
assets.

Pledged bank deposits and bank balances carry variable interest
rates. The weighted average effective interest rates on pledged
bank deposits and bank balances as at 31 December 2019 were
0.25% (2018: 0.35%) and 0.46% (2018: 0.49%) respectively.
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26. BIEIIRITER SR1T4 8K 26.Pledged bank deposits/bank balances and

B (&) Cash (Continued)

RITER CERBRTERGE) Bank balances/pledged bank deposits (Continued)
AR EB AT B AN BT The Group'’s bank balances that are denominated in currencies
BENREERITERETIAT ¢ other than the functional currencies of the relevant group entities

are set out below:

E0 AR
Tt Tt
uUss$ RMB
‘000 ‘000
20195124318 As at 31 December 2019 44,536 310,693
2018 12A31H As at 31 December 2018 48,581 333,421
BT ARH
T T
HK$ RMB
‘000 ‘000
201912 A31H As at 31 December 2019 5519 4,944
72018F12H31H As at 31 December 2018 19,652 17,219
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27. ESG REMENRERIRETE 27.Trade and other payables & deposits

EMEzEWEZES received from pre-sale of properties
() EZRHEMENRE (a) Trade and other payables
20194 2018%F
AR¥ETF T AREFT
2019 2018
RMB’'000 RMB'000
B SRR Trade payables 1,661,147 1,620,043
aHaEEED) Contract liabilities (Note i) 110,645 133,019
JRE A<F B T 365 B (PR i) Payroll payable (Note i) 341,429 405,741
M - IR R BRI E IR Payable for property, plant and equipment
(B i) (Note i) 103,170 161,564
H b T IE Other tax payables 77,520 90,556
ERE B ERYED Construction cost payables for properties
JEAS e TR AR under development for sale 286,114 112,742
Hih e R BT IE Other payables and accruals 153,222 178,046
“azE Total 2,733,247 2,701,711
PEE - Notes:
() ZEBAEELIEREEMNERER (i) The amount represents the receipt in advance from customers
IA © arising from the pre-sale of chemical products.
(i) M2019%12A318 - BB IEHMEE (i) As at 31 December 2019, included in the payroll payable is a
—EATEMNBARESHRESR provision for social insurance fund for employees of the PRC
# A R #12,236,00070(2018%F : AR ¥ subsidiaries amounting to RMB12,236,000 (2018: RMB72,261,000).
72,261,0007T) B & FEIE AR KB A B At The amount of the provision represents the Group's entire
BAREENZ2BMHRESEE iR obligation for social insurance fund for employees of PRC
BIR AL RERETE - WIREHFENU subsidiaries and is determined based on the relevant national
MR ERGE - HRESTIEBS LA — regulations on social insurance and calculated based on the basic
FEFAHAIE THRINEWHREE counting unit multiplied by the social insurance rate. The basic
FROGOTR o counting unit for social insurance shall be the average wages of

an employee in the preceding year and shall not be less than the
minimum limit promulgated by the local social insurance bureau
each year.
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27. EZ RHEMEBENRERKAER
EMEZEWRE (&)

27.Trade and other payables & deposits
received from pre-sale of properties
(Continued)

(a) EZREMBENTEGE)
GERC)

(@) Trade and other payables (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(i) WHEYE  BBRRENENFE/ZR (iii)
BENRBLETKE=ZBEARAZNM
RN ENFTAFIZEZTIE ©

The payable for acquisition of property, plant and equipment
will be settled three months after the completion of installation
of the plant and machinery which is recorded in the addition of
construction in progress during the year.

H 5 [N IR B 5 E A K 100,000,000
JC(2018%F : AR #237,055,0007T) 2 &
NEE - ENERRASENEEIFR
THERIERER -

REEmMNTFHEEHRR0R - NEE
EHFEE M ERRERBR - AR

Included in the trade payables are bills payable amounting
to RMB100,000,000 (2018: RMB237,055,000). Bills payable are
secured by the Group’s pledged bank deposits.

The average credit period on purchase of goods is 90 days.
The Group has financial risk management policies in place

A RN REREEMRABME -

REBHZEH - BHRNFTENKRED

to ensure that all payables are settled within the credit

timeframe.

The following is an analysis of trade payables by age,

20T : presented based on invoice date:
2019% 2018%F
AR®TF T AREFT
2019 2018
RMB’000 RMB'000
308X Within 30 days 1,064,166 822,980
31HZ90H 31-90 days 410,407 595,215
91THE180H 91-180 days 83,322 141,672
181HZ365H 181-365 days 67,312 41,282
1226 1-2 years 19,708 11,728
FBIE2F More than 2 years 16,232 7,166
1,661,147 1,620,043

AEBEAEBASEER 2 RSB IA
SN ERHEME R EM R IAH

ZanR -

group entities are set out below:
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27. ESG REMENRERIRETE 27.Trade and other payables & deposits

EVMEZCWRE(E) received from pre-sale of properties
(Continued)
(a) EZ RHAMEASFRIE(E) (a) Trade and other payables (Continued)
EYH ARYE
T T
uss$ RMB
‘000 ‘000
M20195F12A31H As at 31 December 2019 205 1,432
R2018F12H31H As at 31 December 2018 1,403 9,632
(b) REBREMEZEWIRE (b) Deposits received from pre-sale of properties
20194 20184
ARET T ARETT
2019 2018
RMB’'000 RMB'000
aHadE ) Contract liabilities (Note) 826,555 1,632,556
M : ZeATREEMEELENTERE Note: The amount represents the receipt in advance from customers
FRIE - 1R2019F12A318 * Z & %H arising from the pre-sale of properties in the PRC. The amount
B IRTTF A A R #5247,623,0007T was secured by pledged bank deposits of approximately
(20184F : AR %280,433,0007T) fEH I - RMB247,623,000 as at 31 December 2019 (2018: RMB280,433,000).
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28. 8 € 28.Borrowings
2019% 20184
ARBT R AREBTT
2019 2018
RMB’000 RMB'000
EIIRIRITER Unsecured bank loans 1,888,550 2,042,450
BIWIBITER Secured bank loans 42,600 40,000
1,931,150 2,082,450
AR THRAEZEMNIRE®E :  Carrying amounts are repayable:
1R Within one year 510,600 873,150
ZINFETBEF More than one year, but not exceeding
two years 100,000 769,300
EINVESERN T EREES More than two years, but not more than
five years 1,320,550 440,000
1,931,150 2,082,450
B FIRRBIAE THIFEARNEIE  Less: amounts due within one year shown
B under current liabilities 510,600 873,150
FIRIERE B E THIFIA Amounts shown under non-current liabilities 1,420,550 1,209,300
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28

fEE (&)

20195124318 + ARM426000007T(20185F
AR #40,000,0007T) ¥ B HEFRITEFHA
SEEmAEARARE4363,0007C(2018%F :
AR #482000070 ) WEFREMAEBEAA
R#5,782,0007C(20184F : BREBEAARE
5913000 MFEMNES ) NERREAEESR
B - ZEBERBRITERIRTF B435%E
470%(20184F : 4.70%)5T & o

AEBETEREERR LGOI H A (HEH
EBE)WT

28. Borrowings (Continued)

As at 31 December 2019, secured bank loans of RMB42,600,000
(2018: RMB40,000,000) are secured by the Group’s buildings
with the aggregate carrying amount of RMB4,363,000 (2018:
RMB4,829,000), right-of-use assets with the aggregate carrying
amount of RMB5,782,000 (2018: prepaid lease payments with the
aggregate carrying amount of RMB5,913,000). The secured bank
loans carry interest at 4.35%-4.70% (2018: 4.70%) per annum.

The exposures of the Group's fixed-rate borrowings and the
contractual maturity dates (or repricing dates) are as follows:

2019 2018%F
ARBT T ARETT
2019 2018
RMB’'000 RMB'000
EBEE Fixed-rate borrowings:

1A Within one year - 306,800

LN FE BT BIE2F In more than one year but not more than
two years = 249,650

LA F BT R ES T In more than two years but not more than
five years - -
= 556,450

o AREBERFEEENT ¢
7A20195F12H31H
NERESE F=

AR
1,931,150,0007C

=S FF E owE
15% (AN 4F Z 3 A
HEK : 4.47%F4.75%)

2018512310 Ax

MER&HE
NG 12 E A K hon=E
1,526,000,0007T 15% (AN 4F JZ 3 F A

FR : 4359%%6.37%)

In addition, the Group has following variable-rate borrowings:
Loan amount as at

31 December 2019 Interest rate

RMB1,931,150,000 Standard lending rate plus 0% to 15%
(current year applied rate: 4.47% to

4.75%)

Loan amount as at

31 December 2018 Interest rate

RMB1,526,000, 000 Standard lending rate plus 0% to 15%
(current year applied rate: 4.35% to

6.37%)
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28. Borrowings (Continued)

The variable interest rates change in accordance with the standard
lending rate. The standard lending rate is promulgated by the
People’s Bank of China. The interest of borrowing at standard
lending rate will be reset when there is a change in the borrowing
rate promulgated by the People’s Bank of China.

Interest is repriced every 3 to 12 months.

The ranges of effective interest rates (which are also equal to
contracted interest rates) are as follows:

20194 2018%F
2019 2018

BEIRFE Effective interest rate:
EBEE Fixed-rate borrowings TEH N/A 435%%5.67%
4.35% to 5.67%
FEEE Variable-rate borrowings 4.47%%E4.75% 435%%6.37%
4.47% to 4.75% 4.35% to 6.37%

REE2019F 128318 IEEE - AEBK
EHM%%MHEW%Eﬁﬂﬁﬁ%%ﬁ(zow8$ i)

BETEE ARG HRITEE AR 220,000,000
7)) REE £ A AR #1,140,000,0007T
(20184 :+ A R #1,316,000,0007T ) #Y £ I 7
RHISRITER -

During the year ended 31 December 2019, the Group obtained
no new unsecured short-term bank loans (2018: obtained
new unsecured short-term bank loans of RMB220,000,000)
and unsecured long-term bank loans in the amount of
RMB1,140,000,000 (2018: RMB1,316,000,000).

RMERR AEEAUTREREER As at the end of the reporting period, the Group has the following
R undrawn borrowing facilities:

2019 2018%F

ARBT T AREFT

2019 2018

RMB’000 RMB'000

NS E Expiring within one year 2,205,450 2,042,750

B 1 FE W Expiring beyond one year - -

2,205,450 2,042,750
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20.fHEAE 29. Lease liabilities
31/12/2019
AR¥ T
31/12/2019
RMB’'000
ENHERE Lease liabilities payable:
1R Within one year 4,795
REAZFENBEF Within a period of more than one year but not more
than two years 4,744
REZ PO EETEASE Within a period of more than two years but not more
than five years 18,865
REABRSF Within a period of more than five years 21,201
49,605
B FIRRBEE T R2EAR Less: Amount due for settlement with 12 months
B HAEEFUA shown under current liabilities (4,795)
FIRIERBBETHI2EARE Amount due for settlement after 12 months shown
S| HAEIE RIE under non-current liabilities 44,810
0. JEZEUW A 30. Deferred income
RIEWAE D MBS - #es RaERE - Deferred income represents government grants received in
AEBEENRERXNRERLERRE respect of property, plant and equipment and research and
MBS KA AMHAL - development expenses incurred by the Group in and the prepaid

lease payments for existing office and plant and research and
development expenses.

FRRERANZEEOT - Movements of deferred income during the year are as follows:
20194 2018%F
ARBTR AREFIT
2019 2018
RMB’000 RMB'000
M1AR At 1 January 307,418 253,080
NE Additions 5,151 88,448
HEEES Release to profit or loss (23,734) (34,110)
RK12A31H At 31 December 288,835 307,418
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30. IEZEUR A (&) 30. Deferred income (Continued)
BWEFENDTIT ¢ Analysed for reporting purposes as:
20194 20184
ARET T ARETT
2019 2018
RMB’000 RMB'000
BIEAER 7> Current portion 23,444 21,636
JEBNERER > Non-current portion 265,391 285,782
288,835 307,418
31. R 31. Share capital
RGEE &N
T AREFT
Number of Share
shares capital
‘000 RMB'000
FRRMEE BT E B Ordinary shares of HK$0.1 each
JETE ¢ Authorised:
M2018%F1 18 ~ 2018%F 128318 At 1 January 2018, 31 December 2018 and
K2019%F12A31H 31 December 2019 4,000,000 382,200
BEIREE Issued and fully paid:
M2018%F 1 A18 ~ 2018%F 128318 At 1 January 2018, 31 December 2018 and
K2019F12A31H 31 December 2019 2,111,689 200,397
MR2018FE 20195 E - BIEARATIHEB AT None of the Company’s subsidiaries purchased, sold or redeemed
BE  LESELQAQRRTME FHES - any of the Company’s listed securities during the year 2018 and
2019.
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32. EARAEIE 32. Capital commitments
R2019F12A31H » RNEE HREEAHIE At 31 December 2019, the Group had outstanding commitments
wm as follows:
2019% 20184
ARET T AREBTT
2019 2018
‘000 ‘000
BIRRIE Capital Commitments
BB R REREMER Capital expenditure in respect of acquisition
T BETHERELZABBIR  of property, plant and equipment
FKNBAE contracted for but not provided in the
consolidated financial statements 57,950 43,071

EBIERERABR 2 WEMNEARTE  Capital expenditure in respect of properties
i BRELLREMIERERAEME  for sale but not provided in the
consolidated financial statements = 130,000
BB ATFEFAREMEMEMUEEZ Capital expenditure in respect of equity
BRARENEARTH - BEET#ME  instruments at fair value through other

RELE B MERAREE comprehensive income contracted but
not provided in the consolidated financial
statements 480,000 480,000
537,950 653,071
H R iE Other Commitments
ERELERBRZERYENIET Construction commitment contracted in
AW DEINBARESABIE®R  respect of properties under development
RN for sale contracted for but not provided in
the consolidated financial statements 48,594 428,016
586,544 1,081,087
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33. HE&IE 33.Lease commitments
EEBEREAMEA The Group as lessee

20184
ARETFT
2018
RMB'000

FREMELHEEREMAESME © Minimum lease payments paid under operating leases during the

year:
Y/ Premises 1,600
HE T Leasehold land -
1,600
RIMEHR  REBRBIBEKCEHEE At the end of the reporting date, the Group had commitments for
AEBERERESNMNE  ERESROT : future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating
leases which fall due as follows:

20184
ARETFT
2018
RMB'000
TE R Within one year 6,256
FEOFEESF(BEEBEREMSE) In the second and fifth inclusive 25,024
SE Over five years 35,827
67,107
4 AT o] B X BB e R 2 B SR T A E A Operating lease payments mainly represent rentals payable by the
HFEE o FAL RS9 880004 - Group for certain lands. Leases are negotiated for an average term

of 20 years.
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3. FEALTRS 34. Related party transactions
FER - BREAVBRBRENELEI)  AEE Other than set out in the consolidated financial statements, the
BEITNEEALTRS Group entered into the following related party transactions during
the year:
(a) BEERMHE (a) Purchase of raw materials
20194 2018%F
ARBT R ARETT
2019 2018
RMB’000 RMB'000
FEVEAR AR SR i Non-controlling interest = 6,125
(b) TEEIE A S H (b) Compensation of key management personnel
FR - BEENEMTEEEAENE The remuneration of directors and other members of key
(TN management during the year was as follows:
20194 20184
ARBT T AREFT
2019 2018
RMB’000 RMB'000
SRl S FER Short-term employee benefits 54,094 48,652
() FHRREERRNVBRITFRRE (c) Bank deposit placed to major shareholder and
AR 2 WA related interest income
20195 2018%F
ARBT T AREFT
2019 2018
RMB’000 RMB'000
R12A3BRITEREHE Bank deposit amount at 31 December 382,444 464,184
FRMEWA Interest income during the year 620 1,180
238 REEEERDLA —EB-IEFH
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. FEALTRS (1) 34. Related party transactions (Continued)
(d) HEEm (d) sales of good
20194 2018%F
ARBT R ARETT
2019 2018
RMB’000 RMB'000
FEVEAR AR SR i Non-controlling interest = 118
(e) HRAEATWEAEE —HKHE (e) Capital injection for acquisition of further
NAZE—SREZITE equity in a subsidiary of the Group from
connected parties
2019 2018%F
ARBT T AREFT
2019 2018
RMB’000 RMB'000
REREBMEME AR ATESE  Capital injection in Dong Yue
& kB RAKEERAR Organosilion Material Co., Ltd from:
([RAEHE]) (MiEa) Cheung Shek Investment Limited
("Cheung Shek Investment”) (note a) - 180,519
SEE/ R EER AT (ARAE) Zibo Xiaoxi Enterprise Management
([VEE/NER]) (MiEED) Limited Partnership (“Zibo Xiaoxi”) (note b) = 234,675
= 415,194
MIEE - Notes:
(@) RAKREHAQNT—BYITESMELRS - (@)  Cheung Shek Investment is directly controlled by an executive
director of the Company.
(b) JEENERBEARFMBRTEETASLBEBA (b)  Zibo Xiaoxi was owned more than 30% together by two of the
30% ° executive directors of the Company.
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. BAEALTRS (E) 34. Related party transactions (Continued)
f) BE—REAEATWE—BHEL (f) Acquisition of further equity interest in a
AZE—SIRE subsidiary from a related party
2019%F 20184
AR®T AR¥ETT
2019 2018
RMB’000 RMB'000
WEREREEEERAT Cash consideration paid to purchase 40%
B40% = B IR e R E equity interest in Dongying Dongyue Salt
Co,, Ltd. - 86,463
= 86,463
BT Note:
HEMELISEAR AT B EBIERAR A Macro-link Asset Investment Co., Ltd. is an associate of Macro-Link
FHHBMB A MEERHAARATNEETER Holding Limited, which is an indirect substantial shareholder of the
Wo Company.

35. BREFIETE 35. Retirement benefits plans
NEFEAEFHEOGES PR EH A HBFE The employees of the Group in the PRC are members of state-
ENRERERENGTEIAOKE - NERER managed retirement benefit schemes operated by the respective
HEMEFIETA S (R AETE) - £ local governments in the PRC. The Group is required to contribute
BEBEBINNES AEENE—STEY a specified percentage of payroll costs to the schemes to fund the
EH A ER e EMR o benefits. The only obligation of the Group with respect to these

schemes is to make the specified contributions.



36. EERERESE

MR2018F12A27H » RN RGN E B BB E
SEI([EEERERE ) EEBEHRAER
BARF -

RIEEBERETS - AARE2ENB AR
IWREERREEERZARBERA A
ERZFAIZEADBENRAEREE
AR (BBRAEBREREGTSER
800,000,000 ) BTG LB ERBRMD
WHEBFSHENANEEAHES S EM
([EZEES MR FEZERS -

EERATREENBERER TEMEERE
BRENABERBEBRMD(THBERE]D - E17
ERERRErs - BB ESEEEFE()EER
Ko,/ 2 (i) B SRR A1) 84 65 (B A% ER B AR
TTEERZEANZR(NE)NENHHKE -

BHE_Z-—NF+_A=Z+—BHUIEFE =%
AAEREEEEREFIBEODARE
168,897,0007CHIAR D - EEAWME A H - &
BT SIE TR R -
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36. Employee share option scheme

On 27 December 2018, the Company adopted an employee
option scheme (the “Employee Option Scheme”) which shall be
valid and effective for a term of five years.

Pursuant to the Employee Option Scheme, Shandong Dongyue
Future Enterprise Management Consulting Services Co., Ltd.,, a
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, as the trustee (the
“Trustee”) will purchase existing Shares from the market out of
cash contributed by the Group of not more than HK$800,000,000
in total at all material times and hold such Shares on trust for the
relevant employees or consultants of the Group selected by the
Board (the “Selected Employees”).

The Board may, from time to time, at its absolute discretion
grant to any Selected Employee the right to purchase the
relevant Shares (the “Option”). The Selected Employee may, when
exercising the Option, elect the number of Shares which he wishes
to (i) be transferred and/or (ii) sell and receive the difference, if
any, between the sale price of the Shares and the exercise price of
the Option.

During the year ended 31 December 2019, Shares in the amount
of approximately RMB168,897,000 have been purchased by the
Trustee under the Employee Option Scheme. No Options have
been granted under the Employee Option Scheme up to the date
of this report.
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37. 8RR X EMB A RFE 37. Particulars of principal subsidiaries of the
company
37.1General information of subsidiaries

371 B AR A —RE
RBEBARERA T EEREERE 2

7

Details of the subsidiaries directly and indirectly held by

BARFHEEmmT the Company at the end of the reporting period are set out
below.
ERAI92E/ 28/ ) ‘
il PEEA ?‘ﬁ% f FERHRR ARARRE RAFREHERRENLS KARGRERLA  TEER
ountry o
incorporation Paid up ssued/
or registration/ registered Proportion ownership interest Proportion of voting power
Name of subsidiary operation Class of share held share capital . held by the Company held by the Company ~ Principal activities
A
Directly Indirectly
WOE - 08E  N9E - 08 N9E NigE
i % b % % % %
2019 018 2019 018 2019 2018
000 % % % % % %
RERAT 98 ifiax ARBon30r 10000 10000 - -0 000 e BEREERREE
Dongyue Polymers PRC Registered capital RMBe41 360 100.00 10000 - - 100.00 10000 Manufacture and sale of
nolytetrafluoroethylene
REHT il ifidx AREM0007 - - L0000 oo 10000 100 BEREEHRE
Dongyue Chemicals PRC Registered capital RMB340,000 - - 100.00 10000 100.00 10000 Manufacture and sl of
refrgerant
454 18 ifids ARBs0007 - -0 10000 oo 10000 om0 4EREEE
Dongyue Salt PRC Regstered capital RMBB0,000 - - 100.00 10000 100.00 10000 Production and sales of sa
ERTRIILIARLA i &% AREIGIT - S0 1000 om | 10000 q0m  BEREERZ
Dongying Dongyue Precision PRC Regstered capital RMB12,667 - - 100.00 10000 100.00 10000 Production and sales of
Chemical Co, Ltd. bromine
REAR il &% ARBaO0OOT 699 019 - 18 38 B2 82 PEREERRECH
Dongyue Fluo-Silicon PRC Registered capital RMB400,000 6979 6979 1383 1343 832 $20 Manufacture and sles of
‘ L - methane chloride
Hongfong Tal ntemational Tedng 75 iR 0BT 1000010000 - S 0000 00 HETER
(o,Ltd.
Hongkong Talli Interational Trading ~ HK Registered capital HKD100 100.00 10000 - - 100.00 10000 Sele of chemical products
(o, Ltd.
RiEAE ik 2% AREssomor £ 0 7w - L nn BEREERREIH
Dongyue Organasilcon PRC Registered capital RMBES0,000 7700 770 - - 7100 7700 Manufacture and sale of
organosiicon material
RELRECERNIARAR 1 g% ARET00T - -0 S0 5100 5100 WEREHEEKE(E
Inner Mongolia Dongyue Peak Fluarine PRC Regstered capital RMB70,000 - - 51.00 5100 51.00 5100 Manufacture and sale of
Chemicals Co, Ltd. anhydrous fluoride
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37. K AT EEMBATHIE(E)  37.Particulars of principal subsidiaries of the
company (Continued)

371 B DRI —RER (&) 37.1General information of subsidiaries
(Continued)
ERiI928/ 28/ )
i ek 2887 f FsRHER ARARRE ROAFERERERL KAFGRERE  IERE
Countryo
incorporation Paid up issued/
or registration/ registered Proportion ownership interest Proportion of voting power
Name of subsidiary operation Class of share held share capital held by the Company held by the Company ~ Principal activities
E]
Directly Indirectly
WOE 08E  NE - N8E  NE - DigE
ﬁ % b % % % %
2019 2018 2019 2018 2019 2018
00 % ! % b % b
FRERERRLA 78 ift&s ARES00T - S0 B wm B0 BEREESE
(hifeng HuaSheng Mining Co, Ltd. ~ PRC Registered capital RMB9000 = - 8000 8000 8000 8000 Manufacture and sale of
fluorite
REaRERMHERAT ! &% ARES000T - -0 1000 o0 | 10000 00 BEREESR
Inner Mongolia Dongyue Fluorine  PRC Registered capital RMB30,000 - - 100.00 10000 100.00 10000 Manufacture and sale of
Chemicals Co, Ltd. fluorite
URRERAZHARLE 98 s ARB11510T - -5 500 5100 S0 HEREEEEE
Shandong Dongyue Wenhe Fluorine  PRC Registered capital RMBI15,700 - - 5100 5100 51.00 5100 Manufacture and sale of
Chemicals Co, Ltd. silicone rubber
URRERAERARAT i &% AREBI00T - S B0 G0 6400 6 FENE
Shandong Dongyue Union Property  PRC Registered captal RMBB0,000 = - 6400 6400 6400 6400 Property development
(o, Ltd.
URBABHERZARAT 98 ift&d ARBS000T - S B0 G0 6400 6 FENE
Shandong Boda Real Estate PRC Registered capial RMB30,000 = - 6400 6400 6400 6400 Property development
Development Co, Ltd.
FARERRUERLARAR  1E Gl ARE0R - S0 em 60w FENE
Zhangjiaje Xinye Real Estate PRC Registered capital RMBB0,000 = - 6400 6400 6400 6400 Property development
Development Co, Ltd.
BaREAREAERAT ! Gl AREs 007 - - 010000 oo 10000 00 BELTER
Huangtai Dongyue Intemational Trade  PRC Registered capital RMBS,000 = - 100.00 10000 100.00 10000 Sale of cherical products
(o, Ltd.
ZR8R ! Gl AREI0007 - - L0000 o 10000 1000 HEREEAERATIH
Huaia Shenzhou PRC Registered capial RMB10,000 = - 100.00 10000 100.00 10000 Manufacture and sale of
fluoropolymer
URREAK P &z ARBI000T - - A 0 © M0 A0 EEREESEIE
Shandong Dongyue Future PRC Registered capital RMB10,000 = - 4000 4000 4000 4000 Production and sals of
hydrogen energy materials
HETRIGARREATS  PE &R ARBI000007T - - 10000 0000 10000 q000  SKHERREEEN
Zibo Herun Shuiwy Company PRC Registered capital RMB25,000000 = - 100.00 10000 100.00 10000 Sewage disposal and
Limited. 2 environmental monitoring
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ARBEEMERRFE(E)

37. 1B A RN —RER (&)

EERA LRFIINARFMBRARTE
FEAGEXENEE - EFRS 0 MHeF7
HifBRRNEN  BEEAEERBR
TR e

RER - WBARBERTINERES
FIETEMBARSEARE -
Wi

@) EETEKBARETARK2018F11A7AK
7 o

V2B ERFERRRERNFE
EMBARNFE

TRIREREA IR R R A A
SEFZEMBARNFS

37. Particulars of principal subsidiaries of the

company (Continued)

37.1General information of subsidiaries
(Continued)

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company which, in the
opinion of the directors, principally affected the results or assets
of the Group. To give details of other subsidiaries would, in the
opinion of the directors, result in particulars of excessive length.

None of the subsidiaries had issued any debt securities at the end
of the year. All the PRC subsidiaries are domestic enterprises.

Notes:

(@)  Zibo Herun Shuwu Company Limited has been set up on 7 November
2018.

37.2Details of non-wholly owned subsidiaries that
have material non-controlling interests

The table below shows details of non-wholly-owned
subsidiaries of the Group that have material non-controlling
interests:



37. XA RBEEMB L AFE (&)

V2B ERFERBRREFNFE

EMEARNFE (&)
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37. Particulars of principal subsidiaries of the
company (Continued)

37.2Details of non-wholly owned subsidiaries
that have material non-controlling interests

(Continued)
FERRRER
MBI R REEEES AETFFER REFER
HEAR AR TEEENY RREERLA R RAER HEF RRER
Propertion
of ownership
interests and
Place of voting rights Profit
incorporation and held by allocated to Accumulated
principal place non-controlling non-controlling non-controlling
Name of subsidiary of business interests interests interests
31/12/2019 31/12/2018 31/12/2019 31/12/2018 31/12/2019 31/12/2018
(ARBFT) (ARBTT) (ARETR) (AR%FR)
(RMB’000) (RMB’000) (RMB’000) (RMB’000)
IWRREMABEERAR H 36% 36% 72678 15,790 191,589 177,408
(Shandong Dongyue Union PRC
Property Co, Ltd)
REA#E i 23% 23% 12529 161,512 475,620 433,124
(Dongyue Organosilicon) PRC
RESEE (Dongyue Fluo-Silicon) 16.78% 16.78% 28,566 55,075 139,009 225,549
PRC

TXEHIEREAIFER RS
SEZMBARNMBEMRBE - T
MBERBBERETRERNHEMOE

B

Summarised financial information in respect of each of
the Group's subsidiaries that has material non-controlling
interests is set out below. The summarised financial
information below represents amounts before intragroup
eliminations.
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37.

RRTFEEMBLRFE(E)

V2B ERFERBRREFNFE

37. Particulars of principal subsidiaries of the
company (Continued)

37.2Details of non-wholly owned subsidiaries

BB ATNFE(E) that have material non-controlling interests
(Continued)
(LRREBABELFRLAA) (Shandong Dongyue Union Property Co., Ltd.)
31/12/2019 31/12/2018
ARET T ARETT
31/12/2019 31/12/2018
RMB’'000 RMB'000
RENEE Current assets 2,193,671 2,323,917
FEREBEE Non-current assets 256,438 261,337
mEAE Current liabilities (1,859,916) (2,034,453)
FERHEaE Non-current liabilities (58,000) (58,000)
RARHEB ANEGER Equity attributable to owners of the
Company 340,604 315,393
(ILRREHABEZXBRATN) Non-controlling interest of (Shandong
IR AR AR R Dongyue Union Property Co., Ltd.) 191,589 177,408
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37. K AT EEMBATHIE(E)  37.Particulars of principal subsidiaries of the

company (Continued)

JV2BEERFERRRERZNES 37.2Details of non-wholly owned subsidiaries

EMEARNFE (&)

that have material non-controlling interests
(Continued)

(LRREHPEXERELAT) (F) (Shandong Dongyue Union Property Co., Ltd.)

(Continued)

31/12/2019 31/12/2018
ARBTR ARETT
31/12/2019 31/12/2018
RMB’000 RMB'000
Yees Revenue 952,594 186,043
sz Expenses (750,710) (142,183)
F R A Profit for the year 201,884 43,860
RAEHEB AR Profit attributable to owners of the
Company 129,206 28,070
(IRREHABERXRBRAFN) Profit attributable to the non-controlling
1 A AR SR R 2 P A i ) interests of (Shandong Dongyue Union
Property Co., Ltd.) 72,678 15,790
BRI AR AR SR A 2 D AR B Dividends paid to non-controlling
(WRREBAERERAF) interests of (Shandong Dongyue Union
Property Co., Ltd.) 58,500 13,500
KEEHRESMACRL)FE  Net cash inflow (outflow) from operating
activities 111,814 259,580
BRETHRESMACRL)FERE  Net cash inflow (outflow) from investing
activities 143,484 (143,017)
BMEEHRSMACORL)FE  Net cash inflow (outflow) from financing
activities (239,083) (101,379)
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37. K AT EEMBATHIE (&)  37.Particulars of principal subsidiaries of the
company (Continued)

V2B EEARFEIERBRREESZNIES 37.2Details of non-wholly owned subsidiaries
EM B A TS (&) that have material non-controlling interests
(Continued)
(REAE#E) (Dongyue Organosilicon)
31/12/2019 31/12/2018
ARET T ARETT
31/12/2019 31/12/2018
RMB’'000 RMB'000
MENEE Current assets 1,482,407 1,485,246
ERBEE Non-current assets 1,000,205 872,706
mERE Current liabilities (361,648) (418,016)
FnBasE Non-current liabilities (53,049) (56,788)
RNRABEE ARIEER Equity attributable to owners of the
Company 1,592,295 1,450,024
(ILERFEBABEXBRATN) Non-controlling interest of (Shandong
70 {0 AR B Ak 4 .

IR R A 2R Dongyue Union Property Co., Ltd.) 475,620 433,124
Yzs Revenue 2,760,055 3,418,730
53 Expenses (2,215,290) (2,662,939)
F R F Profit for the year 544,765 755,791
RAEHEB AEE R Profit attributable to owners of the

Company 419,469 594,279
(ﬁfﬁﬁifﬁéﬁiﬁ'ﬂ ) FEFEARAR R Profit attributable to the non-controlling

B IE T interests of (Dongyue Organosilicon) 125,296 161,512
EH?FQH&H&;?%ET%E@HQE __ Dividends paid to non-controlling

(URREMABRBRAF) interests of (Shandong Dongyue Union

Property Co., Ltd.) 82,800 -
KEEHREMACRL)FE  Net cash inflow (outflow) from operating

activities 728,012 726,842
RETHRESMAORL)FE  Net cash inflow (outflow) from investing

activities (247,805) (181,052)
BMEEHRSMACORL)FE  Net cash inflow (outflow) from financing

activities (360,000) 189,496
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company (Continued)

37. Particulars of principal subsidiaries of the

37.2Details of non-wholly owned subsidiaries

that have material non-controlling interests

(Continued)

(RESHE) (Dongyue Fluo-Silicon)
31/12/2019 31/12/2018
AR¥T T ARETIT
31/12/2019 31/12/2018
RMB’'000 RMB'000
MENEE Current assets 395,520 1,259,108
ERBEE Non-current assets 1,313,254 1,109,694
Uik N=NE Current liabilities (689,305) (996,790)
FERBAE Non-current liabilities (191,043) (33,821)
RABHEE AEIEER Equity attributable to owners of the
Company 689,417 1,113,642
(REAEN)IFERIRIREZR  Non-controlling interest of (Dongyue
Fluo-Silicon) 139,009 224,549
Wz Revenue 2,280,110 2,337,850
2 Expenses (2,109,876) (2,009,634)
F R4 A Profit for the year 170,234 328216
KAEIHEB AEERF Profit attributable to owners of the
Company 141,668 273,141
CREAMEER) IR Profit attributable to the non-controlling
R BN T interests of (Dongyue Organosilicon) 28,566 55,075
Eﬁ?Hﬁ?%%ﬁ;ﬁ%ﬂnﬁgﬂ& %1\_ Dividends paid to non-controlling
(LRREHHERFRAF interests of (Shandong Dongyue Union
Property Co., Ltd.) 114,104 10,068
REEBREMACRL)FERE  Net cash inflow (outflow) from operating
I . . - activities 720,981 577,362
KEFFESRACEL ) F5E Net cash inflow (outflow) from investing
- ki e activities (253,259) (279,213)
MERPHHESMACORL)FEE  Net cash inflow (outflow) from financing
activities (814,828) 46,000
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HE2019F12831 HIEFZ
For the year ended 31 December 2019

38. HE—EKE AT 38. Disposal of a subsidiary
M2018F10A16R » AEEHBILE=F On 16 October 2018, the Group entered into a sales and
I EE W UIRAEAR12,000000 purchase agreement with independent third parties, to dispose
THELERREARESBERAR(RE 60% shareholding of Shandong Dongyue Mass Trade Co., Ltd.
KRR 1) BI60%AHE B R E KRR — KB B A (‘Dongyue Mass") together with a subsidiary of Dongyue Mass, at
A HEEMR2018F10A16 AT © a consideration of RMB12,000,000, the disposal was completed on

16 October 2018.

HE TS SIBEESE Net assets disposed of:
ARETFT
RMB'000
IEEFI I E A Deferred tax assets 1,682
78 Inventory 12,177
B 5 R E A IR Trade and other receivables 43,266
AT Y ElFE I8 Tax recoverable 1,884
ReRERBLEER Cash and cash equivalents 4,561
B 5 R H M ERRIE Trade and other payables (43,642)
BEFE Net assets 19,928
VAR AR SR i Non-controlling interest (7,971)
RARHERAELREERE Total assets attributable to owners of the Company 11,957
& — R f A B e s Gain on disposal of a subsidiary 43
RE Consideration 12,000
ATHFAZA Satisfied by:
Be Cash 3,000
H fth FEUL IR Other receivable 9,000
12,000
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REMBRRME
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BE2019F 1231 HIFFE
For the year ended 31 December 2019

38. Disposal of a subsidiary (Continued)

An analysis of the net inflow of cash and cash equivalents in

respect of the disposal of a subsidiary as follows:

AREFT

RMB'000

ReRE Cash consideration 3,000

HEReRERRESIAE Cash and cash equivalents disposed of (4,561)
EALE—FNBARIMNRESEERI  Net outflow cash and cash equivalents in respect of the

SIEBRLFRE disposal of a subsidiary (1,561)

39. {REEHAREIE

a.

HEBRESHTE

H20205 V1A - BRRERBEERER
AEENEERITER T BT HEE R
= URAEENEE  BHIRAKRE

AEE-ERYERRBEERYASE

EMEE  YCKRMEREG - %5
EEEREE - MREHNE  FEEL

B BEREINFEX  IMREPE
o AREERERAN - NEEASHEE
RIENER - FHEBRFEEEERE

REBE AT BT IR SR IG5 %
& WAHE B AREE S BN KL
BOTE NERBAMBHRREME
A AEEHAERREHPBERERE
RAERIERTHZE -

a.

39. Events after the reporting period

Effect of the coronavirus

The coronavirus outbreak since early 2020 has brought
about additional uncertainties in the Group’s operating
environment and has impacted the Group’s operations and
financial position and performance.

The Group has been closely monitoring the impact of the
developments on the Group's businesses and has put in
place contingency measures. These contingency measures
include: step up marketing effort; reducing operation cost;
putting on hold of non-operating expenses; speeding up
payment from customers; and lowering finance cost. The
Group will keep its contingency measures under review as
the situation evolves.

The Group will pay close attention to the development of the
coronavirus outbreak and evaluate its impact on the financial
position and operating results of the Group. As at the date
on which this set of financial statements were authorized
for issue, the Group was not aware of any material adverse
effects on the financial statements as a result of the outbreak.
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EFE2019F12A31 HIFFE
For the year ended 31 December 2019

Ly ‘{’--

REHIREIE(E) 39. Events after the reporting period
(Continued)
b. REEREERIIBSXZMD b. The spin-off and separate listing of Dongyue
FEm Organosilicone on the Shenzhen Stock
Exchange
REARECRBAREE®ITT Dongyue Organosilicone has issued 300,000,000 Offer Shares
300,000,000i% B E WD - HELBHITER under the A Share Offering at the final offer price of RMB6.9 per
BRBEERMNARKCIT - AREERN Offer Share. The net proceeds raised from the A Share Offering
BEEESFHENAARK1986EETT was approximately RMB1,986 million.
REREAREES TKE - NARIHER Immediately upon completion of the A Share Offering, the
BREBHAELS57.75% S - T B HEIt Company indirectly holds approximately 57.75% interest
REBRENAEARKEZENBA in Dongyue Organosilicone, and therefore Dongyue
A e Organosilicone remains as a non-wholly-owned subsidiary of
the Company.
AR BB ARR RN 40. Summarised statement of financial
position of the Company
20194 2018%F
ARET T AREFT
2019 2018
RMB’'000 RMB'000
R B A RHIRE Investments in subsidiaries 1,521,381 1,521,381
BATFERAHMEE RS Equity investments at fair value through
ZIRAEIEE other comprehensive income - 33,119
RITEBREIRS Bank balances and cash 37,962 41,180
EHMmEEE Other current assets 219 215
EMnsaE Other current liabilities (2,227) (3,558)
1,557,335 1,592,337
R& 2K Share capital 200,397 200,397
4 (BEE) Reserves (Note) 1,356,938 1,391,940
1,557,335 1,592,337

FES 202043 528 B #HEAE M IRAETEE o

Approved and authorised for issue by the Board of directors on 28

March 2020.
RER RE &
Zhang Jianhong Zhang Zhefeng
EE £
Director Director
REEEERLAR —E-NEFH

>
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BE2019F 1231 HIFFE
For the year ended 31 December 2019

40. Summarised statement of financial
position of the Company (Continued)

M3E Note:
REE Movement in the reserves:
EEBRE
sHEETZ
RRE ROBERE RAfEE REBF Fot )
AREBFT ARBTT ARBTT ARETT AREBFT
Share purchase
reserve under
Share employee option Capital Retained
premium scheme reserve earnings Total
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
2018F1 A1B&# Balance at 1 January 2018 1,224,924 - 200,344 184,020 1,609,288
AEERNREERSEE Profit and total comprehensive
income for the year = = = 297,820 297,820
BRRE Dividends paid - - - (515,168) (515,168)
2018F 12 A31 B &R Balance at 31 December 2018 1,224,924 = 200,344 (33,328) 1,391,940
AEERNREERSEE Profit and total comprehensive
income for the year = = = 766,313 766,313
BERADETRD Purchase of existing issued
shares - (168,897) - - (168,897)
BERRE Dividends paid = = = (632,418) (632,418)
2019912 A31 H &84 Balance at 31 December 2019 1,224,924 (168,897) 200,344 100,567 1,356,938

HEFS M HRR

5 EM202053 A28 8 & KR B T34
BHIS®REK -

41. Approval of the consolidated financial
statements

The consolidated financial statements were approved and
authorised for issue by the board of directors on 28 March 2020.
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BZ12A3ALEE
Year ended 31 December
2015 20165 20175 20184 20195
AREFTL AREFL AREFTT ARBFTL ARETR
2015 2016 2017 2018 2019
RMB 000 RMB 000 RMB 000 RMB 000 RMB’000
6 Revenue 7,032,486 7,969,773 10,137,137 14,218,937 12,958,692
HERA Cost of sales (5863,519) (6,328,718) (7,072,865) (9,687,291 (9,512,770)
E7 Gross profit 1,168,967 1,641,055 3,064,272 4531,646 3,445,922
Heple A Other income 343,949 186,667 225467 119,209 138,523
AERBERT Distribution and selling expenses (251,284) (283,058) (313,959) (358726) (366,263)
TBAX Administrative expenses (261,116) (387,610) (656,333) (782,735) (665,666)
ARHERERE Impairment of available-for-sale
investments - (42,324) - - -
EVEERE Impairment of intangible assets (40,000) = (17,485) = -
MEEE Assets written off (1,478.200) = - - =
HFx Other expense - - - - (2,446)
HRRARHEY Research and development
expenses (69,797) (73,947) (94,609) (177,360) (329,242)
RARAK Finance costs (208,663) (166,229) (112,890) (97,135) (100,528)
[ERBENREE Share of results of associates (573) (12,440) 47310 = =
BRBATEF Profit before tax (796,717) 862,114 2,141,773 3,234,899 2,120,300
FEHEX Income tax expense 115,780 (246,648) (459,974) (800,200) (378,019)
FEEGRA Profit for the year (680,937) 615,466 1,681,799 2,434,699 1,742,281
Hitt2EAX Other comprehensive expense
TEENHEEREMES Item that will not be reclassified to
profit or loss:
BATESAEbZEREZ Fair value loss on investment
ATEEBE at fair value through other
comprehensive income - - - (52,902) (1,119,292)
FR2ENEAE Total comprehensive income for
the year (680,937) 615,466 1,681,799 2,381,797 622,989
THEAEERFR2ERE  Profit and total comprehensive
(P45 income (expense)
attributable to:
ARAHEBA Owners of the Company (690,479) 588,154 1,601,397 2,076,196 343,682
FERRR R Non-controlling interests 9,542 27312 80402 305,601 279,307
(680,937) 615,466 1,681,799 2,381,797 622,989




hEMBEHRE
FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

20155 20165 20175 20184 20195
ARETFT AREFT ARBTT ARETRT ARETE
2015 2016 2017 2018 2019
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000
BERTE Total Assets 11,500,728 10,865,117 12,277,964 16,523,851 14,931,339
BEEH Total Liabilities (6,428,353) (5,178,366) (4,965,553) (7131,652)  (5,975,716)
RNNREE AMELEZ  Equity attributable to Owners
of the Company 4,801,539 5,388,008 6,709,732 8,336,606 7,880,019
FEPE AR I R e Non-controlling interests 270,836 298,243 602,679 1,055,593 1,075,604
2019 12 A31 B &% Balance at 31 December 2019 5,072,375 5,686,251 7312411 9,392,199 8,955,623
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afmER Registered office

Vistra (Cayman) Limited Vistra (Cayman) Limited

P.O.Box 31119 P.O.Box 31119

Grand Pavilion, Hibiscus Way Grand Pavilion, Hibiscus Way

802 West Bay Road 802 West Bay Road

Grand Cayman, KY1-1205 Grand Cayman, KY1-1205

Cayman lIslands Cayman Islands

PEAREER FTELEEME Head office and principal place of business in the PRC
H Dongyue International Fluoro

IR A Silicone Material Industry Park

ETET Zibo City

REREMBEEE Shandong Province the PRC

ERTELEME Principal place of business in Hong Kong
BEET Flat 02, 15th Floor, Capital Centre

ETITEI515R 151 Gloucester Road

B AR L Wan Chai

151202 Hong Kong

A 3t Website address

www.dongyuechem.com www.dongyuechem.com

5= Directors

HITES Executive directors

REBREA (EREFITHAAE) Mr. ZHANG Jianhong (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)
BELE Mr. FU Kwan

BEFEE Mr. LIU Chuangi

REBGRE(BREFEEIEE) Mr. ZHANG Zhefeng (Vice President and Chief Financial Officer)
RLERE Mr. ZHANG Bishu

REBSTE Mr. ZHANG Jian
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Independent non-executive directors

Mr. TING Leung Huel, Stephen
Mr. Yang Xiaoyong
Mr. YUE Rundong

Company secretary

Ms. Chung Tak Lai

Authorized representatives

Mr. FU Kwan
Ms. CHUNG Tak Lai

Audit committee

Mr. TING Leung Huel, Stephen (Chairman)
Mr. YANG Xiaoyong
Mr. YUE Rundong

Remuneration committee

Mr. YANG Xiaoyong (Chairman)
Mr. TING Leung Huel, Stephen
Mr. ZHANG Jianhong

Nomination committee

Mr. ZHANG Jianhong (Chairman)
Mr. TING Leung Huel, Stephen
Mr. YANG Xiaoyong
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TEEREES
RS (ZE)

gEFEE
RMEFE
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TREXRE(TE)
BEERE
FRRLE

REF &R R

SMP Partners (Cayman) Limited
Royal Bank House

3rd Floor, 24 Shedden Road
P.O. Box 1586

Grand Cayman KY1-1110
Cayman lIslands

BERDBFERLTIRE

BEREERLAR AR
BB

EEKRER183
BS54

Corporate Governance Committee

Mr. ZHANG Jianhong (Chairman)
Mr. LIU Chuangi
Mr. ZHANG Bishu

Risk Management Committee

Mr. Ting Leung Huel, Stephen (Chairman)
Mr. Yang Xiaoyung
Mr. Yue Rundong

Principal share registrar and transfer office

SMP Partners (Cayman) Limited
Royal Bank House

3rd Floor, 24 Shedden Road
P.O. Box 1586

Grand Cayman KY1-1110
Cayman Islands

Hong Kong branch share registrar and transfer
office

Tricor Investor Services Limited
Level 54, Hopewell Centre

183 Queen’s Road East

Hong Kong
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Principal bankers

China Construction Bank Corporation
Huantai Branch

134 Jianshe Road

Zibo City, Huantai

Shandong Province, PRC

Industrial and Commercial Bank of China Limited
Huantai Branch

7 Zhangbei Road

Zibo City, Huantai

Shandong Province, PRC

Bank of China Limited
Huantai Branch

48 Heng Huan Road
Zibo City, Huantai
Shandong Province, PRC

Agricultural Bank of China Limited
Huantai Branch

101 Zhongxin Road

Suo Zhen

Zibo City, Huantai

Shandong Province, PRC

Industrial Bank Co., Ltd.

Zibo Branch

103 Liu Quan Road

Gaoxin District

Zibo Shandong Province PRC

China Everbright Bank Company Limited Huantai Branch
2299 Suo Zhen Zhongxin Road

Zibo City, Huantai

Shandong Province, PRC

Dongyue Group Limited Annual Report 2019

259



REEAEZERD

EERREERAR AT
BB

IR

K EE93-10358
WATT807E

BB

R EREtMmEEMARAR
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93-103 Wing Lok Street
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Hong Kong
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FELREAREREMHEREE

Dongyue International Fluoro Silicone Material Industry Park

E5E Tel: (0086) 533 8510072
{EE Fax: (0086) 533 8513000
#HE Website: http://www.dongyuechem.com
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